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FORWARD

In this volume are contained all of the final adjudications of the
Environmental Hearing Board issued during the calendar year 1985.

This Environmental Hearing Board was created by ﬁhe Act of December 3,
1970, P.L. 834, which amended the Administrative Code of 1929, Act of April 7,
1929, P.L. 177, as amended. The Act of December 3, 1970, commonly known as
YAct 275", was the Act that created the Department of Environmental Resources.

Section 21 of that Act, §1920-4 of the Administrative Code, provides as

"§1921-A Environmental Hearing Board

(a) The Environmental Hearing Board shall have
the power and its duties shall be to hold hearings
and issue adjudications under the provisions of the
act of June 4, 1945 (P.L. 1388), known as the "Ad-
ministrative Agency Law," or any order, permit,
license or decision of the Department of Environmental
Resources. i

(b) The Environmental Hearing Board shall con-
tinue to exercise any power to hold hearings and
issue adjudications heretofore vested in the several
persons, departments, boards and commissions set
forth in section 1901-A of this act.

(c) Anything in any law to the contrary notwith-
standing, any action of the Department of Environ-
mental Resources may be taken initially without
regard to the Administrative Agency Law, but no such
action of the department adversely affecting any
person shall be final as to such person until such
person has had the opportunity to appeal such action
to the Environmental Hearing Board; provided,
however, that any such action shall be final as to
any person who has not perfected his appeal in the
manner hereinafter specified.

(d) An appeal taken to the Environmental Hearing
Board from a decision of the Department of Environ-
mental Resources shall not act as a supersedeas, but,
upon cause shown and where the circumstances require
it, the department and/or the board shall have the
power to grant a supersedeas.




(e) Hearings of the Environmental Hearing Board
shall be conducted in accordance with rules and
regulations adopted by the Environmental Quality
Board and such rules and regulations shall inciude
time limits for taking of appeals, procedures for
the taking of appeals, location at which hearings
shall be held and such other rules and regulations
as may be determined advisable by the Environmental
Quality Board.

(f) The board may employ, with the concurrence
of the Secretary of Environmental Resources, hearing
examiners and such other personnel as are necessary
in the exercise of its functions.

(g) The Board shall have the power to subpoena
witnesses, records and papers and upon certification
to it of failure to obey any such subpoena, the
Commonwealth Court is empowered after hearing to
enter, when proper, an adjudication of contempt and
such order as the circumstances require."

In addition, the Board hears civil penalties cases pursuant to the Air

Pollution Control Act, Act of January 8, 1960, P.L. (1959) 2119, as amended,

35 P.S. §4009.1; the Clean Streams Law, Act of June 22, 1937, P.L. 1987, as

amended, 35 P.S. §691.605(a); the Dam Safety and Encroachment Act, Act of

November 26, 1978, P.L. 1375, as amended, 32 P.S. §693.21; and the 0il and

Gas Act, Act of December 19, 1984, P.L. 1140, 58 P.S. §601.506. Also, the

Board reviews the Department's assessment of civil penalties under the

Bituminous Mine Subsidence and Land Conservation Act, Act of April 27, 1966,

2
P.L. 31,

June 22,

Disposal
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1937, P.L. 1987, as amended, 35 P.S. §691.605(b); the Coal Refuse

Act, Act of September 24, 1968, P.L. 1040, as amended, 52 P.S.

§30.61; the Safe Drinking Water Act, Act of May 1, 1984, P.L. 206, 35 P.S.

§721.13(g); the Solid Waste Management Act, Act of July 7, 1980, P.L. 380, as

amended, §6018.605; and the Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act,

Act of May 31, 1945, P.L. 1198, as amended, 52 P.S. §1396.22.




Although the Board is made, by §62 of the Administrative Code, 71 P.S. 62
an administrative board within the Department of Environmental Resources, it is
functionally and legally separate and independent. Its Chairman and two members

1 and

are appointed directly by the Governor, with the consent of the Senate
their salaries are set by statute.? Its Secretary is appointed by the Board
with the approval of the Governor.

The department is always a party before the Board. Other parties include
recipients of DER orders, penalties assessments, permit denials and modifica-
tions and other DER actions. Third party appeals from permit issuances are
also common in which cases the permittees are also parties. In third party

appeals from permit issuances, the department often does not actively

participate in the appeal, but lets the permittee defend the permit issuance.

1 gection 472 of the Administrative Code, 71 P.S. §180-2.

2 Section 709 of the Administrative Code, 71 P.S. §249(m).
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(717) 787-3483

DEL~AWARE UNLIMITED, INC. .

" Docket No.84-361-G |
- Issued: May 13, 1985 -

.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES
and PHITADELPHTA ELECTRIC COMPANY Permittee . ..

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR MOTION TO DISMISS

SYNOPSIS

The permittee's M)tion to Dismiss ilsv granted in part and denied m
part. Issues relating to the effects ypon the Delaware Rlver are J.rrelevant in
this appeal of an NPDES permlt autlnrlzlng dlscharqes to the Schuylklll Rlver.
Nbreover, manv of the 1ssues whlch appellant seeks to ra:Lse in thlS actlon
ooncern:Lng the alleged effects upon the Delaware Rlver are establlshed by
prJ_nc:Lples of collateral estoppel. | L

Standlng is prov1s1onally granted subject to the presentatlon of
eVJ.dence by aopellant at the preliminary hearmg substantiating the allegatlons
oontalned in- appellant s pre—hearlng memorandum and response to permittee's
Motion. The Board is bound to follow state doetrlnes of standing, regardless
;of the fact that DERls issuance of an NPDES permit is subject, J.n part, to

federal requirements. Appellant citizens' group may base its standing upon a
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showing that it or any one of its members has an interest sufficiently sub-
stantial, immediate and direct to confer standing. Riparian property owners
have an interest which is sufficiently substantial, immediate and direct.
Persons who use the Schuylkill River for recreational purposes may have such
an interest; however, Wheﬁher the interest is sufficiently substantial,
immediate and direct depends upon the particular facts of the case. These
facﬁs are not yet developed; the Board must exercise caution to avoid prejudg-
ing the merits of the appeal. At the preliminary hearing on standing appellant
must establish that it is reasonably probable that when all the évidence is in,
after a full hearing on the merits, appellant will be shown to have a substantial,
immediate and direct interest in the challenged DER action.

The Board rejects permittee's contention that appellant has failed to
state a legal basis for this appeal. Appellant has alleged that DER incorrectly
applied certain regulations in determining certain parameters contained in the

instant permit. This claim states a valid legal basis for the appeal.

INTRODUCTION

This appeal concerns the issuance of a National Pollutant Discharge
‘Elimination System permit (NPDES permit) to the Philadeiphia Electric Company
(PEQO) by the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Resources (DER) , DER
issued the permit on September 19, 1984, pursuant to section 402 of the federal
Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1342 and the Pennsylvania Clean Streams Iaw, 35 P.S.
691.1 et seq. The permit aﬁthorizes discharges from PEQQ's Limerick nuclear
generating facility to the Schuylk'ill River and Possum Hollow Run in accordance
with effluent limitations, monitoring requirements and other conditions set

forth in the permit.
- 479 -




The appellant herein is Del-Aware, Unlimited, Inc., a local citizens'
group with a history of involvement in affairs concerning the operation of the
Limerick facility, including specifically an appeal previously adjudicated by
this Board addressing several DER actions authorizing the construction and
operation of various components of the Point Pleasant Diversion Project.

Del-Aware, Unlimited, Inc. v. DER, NWRA and Philadelphia Electric Company,

1984 FHB 178. The Point Pleasant project is a large scale water reallocation
plan involving the withdrawal of water from the Delaware River for use, among
other things, as oooling water for the Limerick reactor.

PECO has moved to dismiss this appeal on several grounds. Del-Aware
has responded to the motion, and various reply memoranda and supplements have
been received. DER has advised the Board that it supports the position adopted
by PECO. Among the bases asserted for dismissal is the argument that many of
the issues which Del-Aware wishes to raise herein are barred by principles of

res judicata as a result of the previous appeal. In addition, PEQO contends that

many of the issues raised are irrelevant in the present matter, that Del-Aware
lacks standing to bring this appeal, and that Del-Aware has failed to state a
legal basis for its appeal. Since the standing of the group depends upon an
assessment of the relation between the issues involved in the appeal and the
interests of the group and its members, we will address the relevance and res
judicata issues first, so as to clarify the scope of the subject we are called

upon to address in this matter.

Relevance and Res Judicata

Del~-Aware sets forth in its pre-hearing memorandum several bases for

this appeal, among which are certain alleged adverse effects upon the Delaware
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River resulting from the intake structure serving the Point Pleasant Project.
Specifically, Del-Aware alleges that the instant NPDES permit does not reflect
the best available technology regarding the location of the intake, that the
intake is located in a spawning and nursery area for Awerican Shad and that it
is located in an area of the river which is used for recreational purposes
such as fishing and tubing.

The purpose of an NPDES permit is to éstablish certain conditions
and ljJnitatibns with which .a discharge must comply so as to assure that the
possible adverse effects of the discharge can be monitored and controlled or
prevented. 25 Pa.Code §95.1. Thus, our concerns must focus on determinations
involved in the assessment of the possible adverse effects upon therlwaters
receiving the discharge, which in the present case means the possible effects
upon the Schuylkill. | We are in no way concerned with the possible effects upon
the Delaware River as a oconsequence of another, separate DER action.

Del-Aware attached to its Notice of Appeal a copy of the NPDES permit
at issue in this matter. Del-Aware avers that it is a "true and correct copy"
of the permit. We have closely examined the same; absolutely no reference is
made anywhere therein to the Delaware River with the exception of a label’ desig-
nating the river on a schematic representation as the origiﬁal source of the
water to be used at the Limerick facility and ultimately discharged to the
Schuylkill. This diagram states that it "does not limit the discharge in any
manner.” It is merely a diagram.

We conclude from the foregoing that any and all issues relating to the
possible effects upon the Delaware River resulting from the Point Pleasant Diversion

Project are irrelevant to this appeal. Del-ware has provided no legal authority
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for its contention that DER was required to consider such effects in issuing the
NPLDES permit for discharge of the Del-Aware River water to the Schuylkill, and
we are not aware of any such requirement. We in no way imply that the effects
upon the Schuylkill resulting from the discharge of the Delaware River water are
irrelevant. As we have emphasized, it is the effects upon the Schuylkill with
which we are here concerned.

PECO has argued that even if the issues regarding the possible effects
upon the Delaware River were not irrelevant in the present context, principles

of res judicata would bar Del-Aware from raising here the issues which it set

forth in its pre-hearing memorandum (and which are summarized above).

In order for res judicata to apply there must be the concurrence of

four elements: 1) identity of the thing sued for, 2) identity of the cause of
action, 3) identity of the persons or parties, and 4) identity in the quality

of the parties for or against whom the claim is made. Bethlehem Steel Corp. v.

DER, 37 Pa.Qwlth 479, 390 A.2d 1383 (1978). The parties here are identical to
those involved in the earlier proceeding (with the exception of Neshaminy Water
Resources Authority, which was a party to the earlier action but is not a party
here). Thus, items three and four clearly are met.

Under this formulation, however, we cannot find that all four elements
are met, because,' as Del-Aware itself admits, this appeal involves "some of the
same water, but a different discharge, and a different legal issue" than the
earlier appeal. It is, of course, for this reason that we have concluded that
effects upon the Delaware resulting from the intake structure are irrelevant.

For the same reason, res judicata technically does not apply heré. This is not

the same cause of action as that presented in the earlier appeal.
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/

Nevertheless, issues actually presented and litigated in the earlier
‘matter cannot be relitigated here under simple principles of issue preclusion or
collateral estoppel. Section 27 of the Restatement (2d) of Judgments provides
that:

When an issue of fact or law is actually litigated
and determined by a valid and final judgment, and
the determination is essential to the judgment, the
determination is conclusive in a subsequent action
between the parties whether on the same or a differ-
ent claim. (Emphasis added)

Moreover, contrary to Del-Aware's assertions that the preclusive effects of prior
administrative determinations are not equal to those of prior judicial determin-
ations, it is clear that the principle articulated in section 27, supra, applies
with the same force in the administrative context as it does elsewhere. Section
83 of the Restatement (2d) provides that "a valid and final administrative
determination has the same effect under the rules of res judicata, . . . as a
judgment of a court." (The Restatement uses the term "res judicata" to refer to
issue preclusion (collateral estoppel) as well as to claim preclusion. See
generally sections 17 and’27.) - This Board consistently has refused to relitigate
issues which had been litigated and decided in previous appeals before the Board.

Allegheny County Sanitary Authority v. DER, 1984 EHB 777. Consequently, those

issues actually presented and decided in the earlier Del-Aware appeal -cannot be
relitigated here.

In its prior adjudication, the Board exhaustively discussed the issue
of the effects upon the Delaware River resulting from the intake for the Point
Pleasant project. The Board specifically examined the possible effects upon the
American Shad population and concluded that "the intake's operation will not
adversely impact the aquatic commmity of the Delaware River at Point Pleasant.”

Although the Board did not specifically discuss the possible adverse effects upon
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"tubing" (the terminology of Del-Aware's pre-hearing memorandum) in the vicinity
of the intake, the Board did conclude that Del-Aware had presented no evidence
to demonstrate that the intake itself presented any danger to persons in the

" immediate vicinity because the structure will be located at least four feet
below the surface of the river and will have a very low intake velocity. 1984
EHB at 298. Thus, we conclude that the very issues which Del-Aware seeks to
raise here were resolved in the earlier appeal.

Del-Aware argues that it was not furnished an adequate opportunity in
its earlier appeal to address the issues it now seeks to raise and therefore it
should not be precluded from presenting them now. It states that this is one of
the issues it has raised in its appeal of our earlier decision, which is now
pending in the Commonwealth Court. The response to this argument is readily
apparent; if Commonwealth Court agrees with Del-Aware's assertion, it will grant
the appropriate relief--most likely remand of the case for further consideration
of Del-Aware's claims. The fact that in a previous appeal an appellant believes
it was adversely affected in the presentation of its case does not mean that it
may attempt to assert the claims it allegedly was precluded from presenting
earlier in a subsequent, unrelated proceeding. 1In addition, we would reject any
contention that such claims should not be treated as "actually litigated", and
thus established, because an appeal is pending. Under the law of this Commonwealth,
a valid judgment is conclusive until such time as it is reversed by a higher court.

Philadelphia Electric Co. v. Borough of Lansdale, 283 Pa.Super. 378, 424 A.2d 514

(1981).
In sum, we concur with PECO's contentions in its Motion- to Dismiss that
issues concerning adverse effects upon the Del-Aware River resulting from the

Point Pleasant Project are irrelevant in this present appeal of a permit regulating
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discharges to the Schuylkill River. Moreover, these issues are conclusively

established by principles of collateral estoppel.

Standing

We tum now to the issue of Del-Aware's standing. We emphasize that
our rulings here are provisional. For fhe purposes of this opinion we have
accepted as true--subject to later substantiation--Del-Aware's allegations.con-
cerning its members' interésts in the watér quality of the Schuylkill River.

An evidentiary hearing has been scheduled for the purpose of permitting Del-
Aware to place on the record evidence in support of these allegations.

Del—Aware argues that we should apply the federal law of standing in
this appeal to determine whether it has standing to bring this appeal. We do
not beleve we are free to do so. In issuing the instant permit to PECO, DER
applied state law, albeit state law which is, in part, an adoption of federal
minimum requirements. As an administrative tribunal of this Commonwealth, until
we are advised by higher authority to do otherwise, we consider ourselves bound
to apply state law, including the state's doctrine of standing.

As a citizens' group Del-Aware will be found to have standing if "its
members, or any one of them, are suffering immediate or threatened injury result-

ing from the challenged action sufficient to satisfy the William Penn Parking

Garage standard." BAmerican Bookseller's Association, Inc. v. Rendell, Pa.Super.

481 A.2d 919, 927 (1984). This concept of representational standing had been
adopted by Commonwealth Court prior to the American Bookseller's decision, in

Tripps Park Civic Association v. Pennsylvania PUC, 42 Pa.Cmwlth 317, 415 A.2d 967

(1980), and is now firmly established in the Pennsylvania case law. In our earlier

Del-Aware appeal we applied the concept as well. Del-Aware v. DER, et al., 1984 EHB

at 265.
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The William Penn standard to which the American Bookseller's court

referred is that set forth in William Penn Parking Garage v. City of Pittsburgh,

464 Pa. 168, 346 A.2d 269 (1975). The court there held that in order to have
standing a party must be "aggrieved", and that to be aggrieved, the party must
have a "substantial", "immediate" and "direct" interest in the subject matter

of the appeal. We will address each of these elements in turn, noting by way of
preface that we are confining ourselves to a discussion of effects upon the
interests of Del-Aware's members relating to the Schuylkill, and not the Delaware
River, in light of our ruling, supra, that effects upon the Delaware River are
irrelevant in this proceeding.

There is little question that if Del-Aware can substantiate its allegations
concerning riparian ownership interests, it will be granted standing. Standing
based upon ownership of land adjacent to an area affected by the challenged
administrative action (e.g.; the Schuylkill) has been repeatedly recognized. See,

e.g., Commnity College of Delaware County v. Fox, 20 Pa.Cmwlth. 335, 342 A.2d 468

(1975) ; Concerned Citizens of Rural Ridge v. DER, 1982 EHB 522; Concerned Citizens

of Breakneck Valley v. DER, 1979 EHB 20l1. In addition, it is clear that riparian

owners have an interest in administrative actions which affect the quality of the
stream or river along which their property is located sufficient to confer standing.

Committee to Preserve Mill Creek v. Secretary of Health, 3 Pa.Cmwlth. 200, 281 A.2d

468 (1971). Indeed, this was the basis for our finding of standing on the previous
Del-Aware appeal. 1984 EHB at 264.

With the exception of our previous Del-Aware decision, however, the cited
precedents concerned DER actions affecting privately held land. Where the chal-
lenged DER action affects a public natural resource such as the Schuylkill, such

cases may provide a starting point for analysis, but they cannot be construed as
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entirely applicable. The interests affected by the DER action simply are not
the same, and the DER decision-making process resulting in the challenged action

must take additional factors into consideration. (See, e.g., Payne v. Kassab,

468 Pa.226, 361 A.2d 263 (1976), discussing the duty imposed upon DER by Article 1,
section 27 of the Pemnsylvania Constitution.) Thus, it is unréalistic to expect
that standing to challenge actions such as the instant one will easily fit the
mold of decisions such as Fox, supra.

In order to be substantial, the interest of Del-Aware (i.e., that of
one or more of its members) must be distinguishable from the interest of the
general public in having others comply with the law. Del-Aware has alleged that
some of its members use the Schuylkill for a variety of recreational purposes
such as fishing, water-skiing and boating. PECO claims that "recreational use
of a public waterway is . . . precisely the kind of interest shared by the general
public which Pennsylvania courts have found insufficient as a basis for standing."

PECO incoi:rectly construes the meaning of the substantiality requirement
under Penn. Users of a particular public facility or resource can have a sub-
stantial interest under Pennsylvania law. (Whether the interest is also direct and
immediate, and thus sufficient to confer standing, is another matter.) William
Penn itself demoﬁstrates this principle. There the court granted standing to the
users of public parking garages who wo_uld be affected by the challenged city
ordinance imposing a tax upon the use of such parking places. In discussing the
element of substantiality the court made reference to two United Stated Supreme
Court decisions upholding standing of citizens' groups on the basis of  their

use of public resources. Citing United States v. SCRAP, 412 U.S. 669 (1973) and

Sierra Club v. Morton, 405 U.S. 727 (1972) the ocourt stated that "it is clear
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that some interests will suffice to confer standing even though they are neither

pecuniary nor readily translatable into pecuniary terms." 346 A.2d at 281. In

both SCRAP and Sierra Club, use of public natural resources by members of the
group was the basis for the conclusions reached regarding standing. We construe
this portion of the Penn decision to mean that a citizens' group can establish

the necessary substantial interest under Penn by demonstrating that its members

do make substantial use of the public resource which allegedly is threatened by
the challenged action. Whether the nature and extent of the use will establish
the necessary substantial use must depend on the specific facts, however. More-
over, we see no "bright line" formula for deciding whether any individual set of
facts constitutes "substantial” use of the public resource; a judicious common
sense evaluation of the specific facts cannot be avoided. In particular, we stress

that although in Concerned Citizens Against Sludge, Docket Nos. 82-220-G and

82-221-G (Opinion and Order, May 4, 1983), allegations of hunting and fishing in
an area were insufficient to confer standing to appeal sludge deposition nearby,
we certainly did not intend in Sludge that hunt;'.ng or fishing never could be a
use satisfying the "substantial" portion of the Penn test.

We believe the foregoing is a correct statement of Pennsylvania law

despite its apparent inconsistency with Western Pennsylvania Conservancy v. DER,

28 Pa.Cmwlth. 204, 367 A.2d 1147 (1977), cited by PE(. In Western Pennsylvania

Conservancy, the Commonwealth Court noted that "it would have some difficulty
embracing” a concept of standing which would permit an appeal by an environmental
organization "whose members use and enjoy state parks . . . where it appears that
(the challenged action) may result in harm to the state parks in question.”

367 A.2d at 1150. First, we note that this statement is purely dicta. The appeal
was dismissed as moot and, therefore, the quoted statement has no precedential
effect. Moreover, its persuasive effect appears to be somewhat undermined in that

it rested not upon Penn (unmentioned in Western Pennsylvania Conservancy) but upon
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three pre-Penn decisions, one of which was specifically disavowed in Penn.

Under Penn, the directness element requires a showing of a causal
connection between the action challenged and the harm alleged. The element that
the interest be immediate concerns the nature of that causal connection, i.e.,
whether the alleged harm would be a remote consequence of the challenged action.
346 A.2d at 282-84. In the present circumstances we must be careful to avoid |
prejudaing the merits of Del-Aware's appeal. Without specific evidence concern-
ing the allegedly detrimental effects upon the Schuylkill resulting from the
Limerick discharge it is impossible for us to fully assess the "remoteness" of
Del-Aware's claimed injury. It would be entirely improper for us to engage in
such an analysis in the context of this standing inquiry. Standing is a pre-
Iiminary legal issue, which of necessity must be determined without the benefit
of a full evidentia:yﬁggcord.

The prior Del—gﬁére appei} egﬁablished that certain levels of "heavy
metals, phosphorus, nitrate and fecal ébliform" are présent in the Delaware River
water withdrawn at Point Pleasant for use, among other things, at Limerick. 1984
EHB at 276. Consistent with our ruling, ggggg,'concerning the collateral estoppel
effects of that previous adjudication, the quoted finding is established for our
purposes here. (The prior decision did not reach the issue of whether these sub-
stances were present in such amounts as to require tredtment. The case was remanded
for review of this very issue, inter alia.) Given the fact that the Delaware River
water contains these substances and the apparently undisputed fact that at least
same of the water discharged to the Schuylkill under the terms of the instant permit
has its origin in the Delaware, we canmmot now say that there is no possibility of
a causal connection between the harm alleged by Del-Aware and the challenged action.
Nor can we say that the alleged harm is too remote to satisfy the immediate portion

of the Penn test.
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In sum, at the presently scheduled hearing concerning Del-Aware's
allegations regarding standing, we will be willing to consider evidence going
to the recreational uses made of the Schuylkill by Del-Aware members. Del-Aware,
at this preliminary hearing on standing, must convince us it is reasonably probable
that--when all the evidence is in, after a full hearing on the merits-—all facets

of the Penn test for standing will be satisfied.

Failure to State a legal Basis for Appeal

The final argument raised by PEQD in its Motion to Dismiss is that
Del-Aware has failed to state a legal basis for its appeal. PEQD makes specific
reference to Del-Aware's allegation that the increases in water temperature
allegedly allowed by the instant permit are inconsistent with prior administrative
determinations regarding the effect of temperature variations upon the Schuylkill.

We note pfeljlninarily that even if we were to hold that this allegation
failed to state a valid legal claim, we could not dismiss this appeal in its
entirety since there are other issues raised by Del-Aware whose legal sufficiency
has not been challenged by PECO.

We conclude that we camnot grant PECO's Motion on this point. PECO has
argued that DER corj:ectly applied these gquidelines to the permit evaluation and
that Del-Aware has not challenged the "applicability or correctness" of those
criteria. Thus, PECO would have us conclude that Del-Aware has stated no legal
basis for its claim.

We agree that in its pre-hearing memorandum Del-Aware did not expressly
raise the issue of the proper application of the Chapter 93 criteria. (Del-Aware
concedes it is not challenging the correctness of the criteria set forth in the
regulations themselves.) We consider, however, that paragraphs 5, 6 and 7 of

Appellant's pre-hearing memorandum impliedly contain this assertion and, in any
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event, in its Reply Memorandum, Del-Aware has expressly stated that it is
specifically challenging the application of the Chapter 93 criteria to the instant
permit. Our rules, 25 Pa.Code §21.51(e) make explicit the Board's policy that

an appellant is not restricted to issues raised in its notice of appeal. John F.
Culp v. DER, 1984 EHB 505. Consequently, Del-Aware has stated a valid legal basis
for the aspect of its appeal addressing the thermal limitations contained in the

permit.

ORDER

AND NOW, this 13th day of May, 1985, PECO's Motion to Dismiss is
sustained in part and rejected in part, consistent with the rulings contained
in the foregoing Opinion. The hearing presently scheduled for May 17, 1985 in
Philadelphia will be limited to the taking of testimony and the introduction of
other evidence pertinent to the issue of Del-Aware's standing in this matter.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARTNG BOARD

ed Ay

EUNARD GERJUOY ~

DATED: May 13, 1985

cc: Bureau of Litigation
Iouise Thompson, Esquire
Robert J. Sugarman, Esquire
Bernard Chanin, Esquire
Parela S. Goodwin, Esquire
Troy B. Conner, Jr., Esquire
Robert M. Rader, Esquire

Eugene J. Bradley, Esquire
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

SPRINGETTSBURY TOWNSHIP SEWER AUTHORITY Docket No.84-287-M

Appellant (June 3, 1985).

V.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

Appellee

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR DER'S MOTION TO DISMISS

Synopsis

DER's motion to dismiss the appeal of appellant Springettsbury Township
Sewer Authority (STSA) from DER's denial of STSA's National Pollution Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) interim permit and pending permanent permit application
modification requests is denied. DER's denial, following its determination that
an increased assimilative capacity exists in a section of the receiving stream
of STSA's sewage treatment plant, constituted an éppealable final action affecting
STSA's obligations under the Sewage Facilit®es Act, 35 P.S. §750.5 (and DER Rules
and Regulations promulgated thereunder) to provide sewége services to its con-

stituents. 2 Pa.C.S.A. §101; 25 Pa. Code §21.2(a).
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OPINION

Appellee Commorwealth of Pemnsylvania, Department of Environmental
Resources (DER) has moved the Board to dismiss the appeal of appellant
Springettsbury Township Sewer Authority (STSA) from DER's dénial of STSA's
request for modification of both its existing interim National Pollution
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit for STSA's sewage treatment
plant as well as STSA's pending application for a permanent NPDES permit.
| In support of its motion to dismiss, DER argues that its denial was
merely a deferral of STSA's modification request and therefore its decision
did not constitute an appealable final action. In addition,. DER argues that
its denial did not alter STSA's legal rights or dbligations and was there-
fore unappealable. Before addressing these issues, a recounting of the appeal's
factual history is warranted.

By letter dated July 3, 1984, STSA requested a modification of both
its existing interim NPDES permit (No. Pa.-0026808) and its pending appli-
cation for a permanent NPDES permit for discharges from STSA's sewage treat—
ment plant into a section of Codorus Creek. STSA's modification request for
an increase in average daily flow from 12.3 million gallons per day (MGD) to
15.3 MGD, and its request for an increase in the effluent limits for ammonia
nitrogen, was based upon, ac;cording to STSA, DER's new estimate of an increased
assimilative capacity for a section of Codorus Creek at a location approx-
imately sixteen hundred (1600) feet upstream of STSA's only discharge point.

In STSA's words, its modification request was based upon the fact that:
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...since the issuance of Springettsbury's interim permit,
the Comonwealth has determined that the characteristics

of the receiving stream [Codorus Creek] at the Springetts-—
bury outfall [no.] 001 would allow effluent limits of
ammonia nitrogen (as N) of a monthly average of 6, a weekly
average of 9, and an instantaneous maximm of 12, from May
1st to October 31st, with a requirement only for ménitoring
from November 1st through April 30th. This new estimate of
assimilative capacity of the Codorus Creek contrasts with
previous estimates which 1led to the present porposed
requirement of 1.75, 1.75, and 3.5 during the summer,
respectively, and 5.25, 5.25 and 10.5 during the winter.

A copy of a letter from G. Roger Musselman, [of DER's]: Chief
Planning Section, Harrisburg Regional Office, to Mr. Thomas
Henry, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, dated February
14, 1984, documenting the Department's conclusion, is enclosed
herewith.

Ietter dated July 3, 1984, from STSA +t0 Leon Oberdick, DER Regional Water
Quality Manager.
The February 14th letter, referenced in STSA's modification request,
sought Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) gpproval of DER's request on
behalf of the City-of York for relocation of one of York's two outfalls to a
point approximately sixteen hundred (1600) feet upstream of STSA's only existing
outfall on Codorus Creek. DER's request was based uoon new modeling studies con- j
ducted by a consultant hired by York which indicated that a section of Codorus
Creek could accommodate increased effluent limits. In DER'$ words, its request
to EPA was based upon the fact that:
... [tlhe additional modeling effort presented another scenario G
(which York City had not considered) and for which we felt
obliged to investigate in terms of effluent limits. This scenario
entailed the discharge of [putfiall no.] 002 (8 MGD) at the present
location and the discharge of [outfall no.] 002 (18 MGD) at a

downstream location where the characteristics _<_3__f_ the stream are
more condusive [sic) for wastewater assimilation....

letter dated February 14, 1984, from G. Roger Musselman, DER's Chief Planning
Section, to Thomas BHenry, Technical Assistance and Special Programs, EPA

(emphasis added).
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In addition, DER listed the effluent limits associated with the present
location of York's two outfalls and STSA's outfall, as well as the effluent
limits associated with the provosed relocation of York's outfall no. 001. Because
DER argues that its denial of STSA's NPDES permit modification request was
merely a deferral pending EPA action, é point we will discuss more thoroughly
anon, and because DER also denies that it determined that an increased assimilative
capacity exists at a section of Codorus Creek, it is necessary to reproduce the
various effluent limits set forth in DER's proposal to EPA. However, we will not
reproduce DER's tables in their entirety, but we will focus only upon those parameters
which were effected by DER's calculations, namely, average daily flow (in MGD),
and the effluent limits for ammonia nitrogen and 5-day BOD. The effluent limits
/are as follows: |

CURRENT EFFLUENT LIMITS

Monthly Weekly Instantaneous
Average Average , Maximm
York outfalls mos. 001 & 002
(26 MGD)
5-day BOD ' ‘
(5/1 to 10/31) 10 15 20
(11/1 to 4/30) 15 22.5 30 -
Ammonia Nitrogen
(6/1 to 10/31) 1.75 1.75 3.5
(11/1 to 5/31) 5.25 5.25 10.5
Springettsbury outfall no. 001
(12.3 MGD)
5-day BOD ‘ ;
(5/1 to 10/31) 15 22.5 30
(11/1 to 4/30) 20 30 40
Ammonia Nitrogen
(6/1 to 10/31) 1.75 1.75 3.5
0.5

(11/1 to 5/31) 5.25 5.25 10.
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PROPOSED EFFLUENT LIMITS

Monthly Weekly Instantaneous
Average Average Maximm
York outfall no. 002
(8 MGD) (present location)
5-day BOD
(5/1 to 10/31) 20 30 40
(11/1 to 4/30) 25 37.5 50
Ammonia Nitrogen
(5/1 to 10/31) 2 3 4
(11/1 to 4/30) 6 9 12
York outfall no. 001
(18 MGD) (proposed relocation)
5-day BOD .
(5/1 to 10/31) 15 22,5 30
(11/1 to 4/30) 20 30 40
Ammonia Nitrogen
(5/1 to 10/31) 6 9 12
(11/1 to 4/30) Monitor
Springettsbury outfall no. 001
(12.3 MGD)
5-day BOD
(5/1 to 10/31) 15 22.5 30
(11/1 te 4/30) 20 30 40
Ammonia Nitrogen
(5/1 to 10/31) 6 9 12
(11/1 to 4/30) Monitor :

Even a cursory review of the preceding tables (and of DER's letter to EPA)
indicates that, oontrary to DER's assertion, DER has in fact determined that
an increaéed assimilative capacity exists at a section of Codorus Creek located
approximately sixteen hundred (1600) feet upstream of STSA's outfall. A review
of the current and proposed effluent limits indicates that the permissable ammonia
nitrogen concentration for STSA's outfall increases from a monthly average
of 1.75, a weekly average of 1.75, and an instantaneous maximum of 3.5, to a
monthly average of 6, a weekly average of 9, and an instantaneous maximum of 12

for the period from May lst to October 31st. Moreover, the proposed relocation of
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York's outfall no. 001 would entail an increase in the effluent limits for

ammonia nitrogen to a monthly average of 6, a weekly average of 9, and an in-
stantaneous maximum of 12 for the period from May 1lst to October 31st. In addition,
for tne period from November lst to April 30th, both York and STSA would only be
required to monitor ammonia nitrogen discharges. Finally, the proposed relocation
of York's outfall no. 001, while maintaining at current levels the effluent

limits for 5-day BOD from STSA's sewage treatment plant, would nonetheless increase
York's effluent limits for 5-day BOD discharged at the proposed relocation point
during the period from May 1lst to October 31st from a monthly average of 10, a
weekly average of 15, and an instantaneous maximum of 20 to a monthly awverage

of 15, a weekly average of 22.5, and an instantaneous maximum of 30.

However, despite these obvious conclusions, DER argues that the recalcu-
lation of assimilative capacity referred to by STSA in its NPDES permit modifi-
cation request is only the assimilative capacity that may exist if EPA approves
the proposed relocation of York's outfiall no. 001 and if and when York's outfall
no. 001 is in fact relocated. DER said as much in its appealed—-from denial letter
of July 16, 1934, wherein it stated:

... [DER] is not in a position at this time to grant the permit
modification as described in your letter. The proposed effluent
limits for the City of York sewage plant upgrade has not been
approved by EPA. Until such time as the effluent!limits are
approved and York finalizes their [sic] plan for an extended
outfall line, we cannot entertain your request.
In addition, the change in the ammonia nitrogen concentratioii
for Springettsbury are also dependent on the EPA approval and
the final location for York's discharge. The relaxation of
effluent limits is possible because of the increased assimilative
capacity in Codorus Creek in the area of Springettsbury('s]
discharge as opposed to the Creek's condition around the York
sewage plant.
DER letter dated July 16, 1984, from Leon Oberdick, Regional Water Quality
Manager, to Robert J. Sugarman, Esquire, Special Solicitor (and ounsel herein)

for STSA.
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However, STSA correctly notes that DER has in fact determined that an
increased assimilative capacity exists in a section of Codorus Creek; after all,
DER's proposal to relocate York's outfall no. 001 is based solely upon this deter-
mination, which is reflacted in the higher 5-day BOD and ammonia nitrogen effluent
limits summarized in the preceding tables. In addition, as STSA also notes,

DER has determined that York should get the first opportunity to utilize this
increased assimilative capacity by DER's deferral (i.e. denial) of STSA's NPDES
pexrmit modification request until such time as EPA approves the proposed relo-
cation of York's outfall no. 001. In a time and area of increased residential
and commercial development, and because of the finite design capacities of both
York's and STSA's sewage treatment plants, STSA is justifiably concerned that
it will be foreclosed from attempting to utilize the increased effluent limits |
and average daily flow should STSA be forced to wait until EPA acts upon Ydrk's
relocation request, which could conceivably result in York's receipt of the
entire benefit of the increased assimilative capacity DER has determined exists
in a section of Codorus Creek.

'mexefore , STSA argues that, however labeled by DER, its "deferral” of
STSA's NPDES permit modification request is indeed a denial which constitutes
an appealable final action. We agree that STSA is entitled to a DER determination
and allocation of the increased assimilative capacity based upon the following |
leqgal principles.

DER's denial of STSA's NPDES permit modification request is an appealable
final action which affects STSA's legal rights or obligations and upon which the
Board can exercise its jurisdiction. 2 Pa.C.S.A. §101; 71 P.S. §510-21(a); 25

Pa. Code §21.2(a) (definition of "action").
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First, the Board's jurisdictional grant permitting review of DER decisions
is set forth in Section 510-21(a) of the Administrative Code, which provides,
in pertinent part:

(a) The Environmental Hearing Board shall have the power and its
duties shall be to hold hearings and issuwe adjudications under

the provisions of the act of June 4, 1945 (P.L. 1388), known as
the Administrative Agency Law, on any order, permit, license or
decision of the Department of Environmental Resources.

71 P.S. §510-21(a) (footnote omitted).
While the word "decision" is not defined in either the Administrative Code,
the Administrative Agency ILaw or the Board's Rules and Regulations, Section 510-21(c)

of the Administrative Code provides that:

(c)Anything in any law to the contrary notwithstanding, any
action of the Department of Environmental Resources may be
taken initially without regard to the Administrative Agency

Law, but no such action of the department adversely affecting
any person shall be final as to such person until such person
has had the opportunity to appeal such action to the Environmen-
tal Hearing Board; provided, however, that any such action shall
be final as to any person who has not perfected his appeal in
tne manner hereinafter specified.

71 P.S. §510-21(c).

An "action" by DER, from which an appeal shall commence with the filing
of a written notice of appeal with the Board, 25 Pa. (ode §21.31, is defined in
the Board's Rules and Regulations in:the following manner:

(a) The folllowind words and terms, when used in this chapter,
[25 Pa. Code §21.1 et seg.;] shall have the following meanings,
unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

Action— Any order, decree, decision, determination or ruling
by the Department [of Environmental Resources] affecting personal
or property rights, privileges, immmities, duties, liabilities,
or obligations of any person, including, but not limited to,
denials, modifications, suspensions and revocations of permits,
licenses and registrations; orders to cease the operation of an
establishment or facility; orders to correct conditions endangering
waters of the Commonwealth; orders to construct sewers or treatment
facilities; orders to abate air pollution; and appeals from and
complaints for the assessment of civil penalties.

25 Pa. Code §21.2(a).
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Similarly, the Administrative Agency Law (AAL) provides that an "adjudication™
is defined as:

"Adjudication" Any final order, decree, decision, or determin-
ation affecting personal or property rights, privileges, immmn-
ities, duties, liabilities or obligations of any or all of the
parties to the proceeding in which the adjudication is made....

2 Pa.C.S.A. §101.
The requirements of appealability that can be gleamed from a reading of
the above-cited statutory and code provisions can be summarized as follows:

for - a DER decision to be appealable per _s_g,l

it must constitute a final agency
éction affecting personal or property rights, privileges. immmities, duties,
liabilities, or obligations of the complaining party. 2 Pa.C.S.A. §101; 25 Pa.

Code §21.2(a); Guthrie v. Borough of Wilkinsburg, Pa. ’ , 478 A.2a |

1279,1281 (1984); Allegheny Ludlum Steél Corp. v. Pemnsylvania Public Utility

Commission, 501 Pa. 71, , 459 A.2d 1218,1220-21 (1983); Gateway Coal Company

1

A DER action is appealable per se if it can be classified as an adjudication
under the AAL. However, because the ' Board's jurisdiction may also be exercised
over DER decisions, a term left undefined in the AAL and Adninistrative Code,
separate yet similar criteria govern the appealability of DER decisions. These
criteria are as follows:

1) the decision-making power and the manner in which it

functions indicates judicial characteristics;

2)public policy requires that the decision in question

be deemed appealable; and,.

3)the agency's action substantially affects property

rights. '
Bethlehem Steél Corp. v. DER, 37 Pa.Cnwlth. 479,489, 390 A.2d 1383,1388 (1978)
(citing Man O'War Racing Association v. State Horse Racing Commission, 433 Pa.
432, 250 A.2d4 179 (1969)).

The Board's disposition of the issue of the "per se appealability" of DER's
action makes it unnecessary for us to consider its appealablllty wmnder the above-
cited cases. However, even if we were so inclined to engage in such a discussion,
which would most certainly constitute dictum, we could not in good faith, upon
the state of the parties' memorandums of law now before us, determine whether
any of appellant STSA's property rights are substantially affected by DER's
action.
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v. DER, 41 Pa.Cmwlth. 442,446-47, 399 A.2d 802,804-5 (1979); Kerr v. Commorwealth

of Pennsylvania, Department of State, 35 Pa.Cmwlth. 330,333-34, 385 A.2d 1038,1039-40

(1978); DER v. New Enterprise Stone and Lime Co., 25 Pa.Cmwlth. 389,392-94, 359 A.2d

845,847 (1976) ; Sunbeam Coal Corp. v. DER, 8 Pa.Cmwlth. 622,625-26, 304 A.2d4 169,

171 (1973); Standard Lime and Refractories Co. v. DER, 2 Pa.Cmwlth. 434,438-39,

279 A.2d 383,385-86 (1971).

"I‘he issue of whether or not any particular DER decision constituted an appeaiable
final action has been increasingly litigated before the Board over the years. Board
opinions which have found no appealable final action on DER's part include the following:

Snydenr Township Residents for Adequate Water Supplies v. DER, EHB Docket No. 84-

355-G (080, January 8, 1985) (DER's denial of request for public hearing in comnec-

tion with a mining permit application); Michael G. Sabia and the Warehouse 81 Limi-

ted Partnership v. DER, EHB Docket No. 83-275-M (08O, November 1, 1984) (DER's issu-

ance of a letter expressing concern over appellants' proposal to inject air stripped
groundwater back into the water table and suggesting that appellants should submit a

more detailed proposal); Snyder Township Residents for Adequate Water Supplies v. DER,

EHB Docket No. 84-316-G (080, October 30, 1984) (DER's issuance of a letter quoting
staff opinion and stating that a mine drainage permit application was still pending

and under review); Reitz Coal Company v. DER, EHB Docket No. 84-195-G (0&O, Septem-

ber 19, 1984) (DER's issuance of a letter informing appellant that DER had j.ssmd a
notice of violation to another company and informing appellant that, since appellant's
corporate officials were also corporaté officials of the other corporation that had:
received DER's violation notice, the violations would result in DER's refusal to
issue any permits to appellant until the other corporation's violations were correc-

ted to the satisfaction of DER); Fred Erickson v. DER, EHB Docket No. 84-079-G (0s0,

June 20, 1984) (DER's issuance of a notice of violation requiring remedial action by
appellant and stating that failure to comply could lead to the institution of legal

action against appellant by DER); Donnelly Printing Company v. DER, EHB Docket No.
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83-048-M (0&0, July 12, 1983) (DER's issuance of notice of violation); Consolidation

Ooal Company v. DER and J & D Mining, Inc., EHB Docket No. 82-265-H (0&0, March 9, 1983)

(DER's refusal to add conditions to previously issued permit); Howard W. Minnich v. DER.

and Northern York County Regional Joint Sewage Authority, EHB Docket No. 82-047-H, 1982

EHB 397,398 (DER's publication in the Pemnnsylvania Bulletin of an inventory of state

municipal discharge sewage construction needs); Perry Brothers Coal Company v. DER, EHB

Docket No. 82-122-H, 1982 EHB 501,502 (DER's issuance of notice of violations which
informed appellant of the possibility of legal sanctions should appellant fail to sub-
mit a corrective plan within a stated time period and which also stated that no new

pexmits would be issued to appellant until all violations were corrected); Perry Brothers

Coal Company v. DER, EHB Docket No. 81-137-H, 1981 EHB 583,584 (DER's issuance of a

notice of violation which proposed that appellant make a penalty payment or create an

escrow fund to avoid the filing by DER of a civil penalty assessment); Thomas E. Siegel

v. DER, EHB Docket No. 79-152-B, 1980 EHB 364,366 (DER's denial of mine drainage permit

modification request); Annville Township Sewer Authority v. DER, EHB Docket No. 80-064-W,

1980 EHB 425,426-27 (DER's denial of water quality management permit modification request);

Township of Salisbury v. DER, EHB Docket No. 80-115-W, 1980 EHB 444,445 (DER's issuance

of a letter requiring appellant to submit additional information in connection with its
pending planning module submission and determining that appellant's submission consti-

tuted a plan revision rather that a plan supplement}; Andre Greenhouses, Inc. v. DER,

EHB Docket No. 78-177-W, 1979 EHB 311, 312-14 (DER's issuance of a letter responding
to an inquiry concerning the applicability of Envirommental Quality Board regulations
and stating that the regulations would be applied evenly without exception); Upper

Moreland Township, et al. v. DER, et al., EHB Docket Nos. 77-198,199,200-D, 78-050,051-

D, 1978 EHB 104,107-13 (DER's publication of a study which concluded that regional
spray irrigation was the most cost effective method of sewage treatment for the region

that encompassed appellants' municipalities; DER's listing of the Central Pennypack

area in the 1978 project priority list); Soott Paper Company v. DER, EHB Docket No.
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78—107—D, 1978 EHB 237,243 (Environmental Quality Board's promulgation of regula-

tions); Bethlehem Steel Corporation v. DER, EHB Docket Nos. 75-017,134-W, 1977 EHB

23,28-29; reversed 37 Pa.Cwlth. 479, 390 A.2d 1383 (1978) (DER's denial of a request
for an extension or withdran of a DER wvariance order; DER's issuance of a letter
setting forth a clarification of an Environmental Quality Board regulation); George

Eremic v. DER and Chanbers Development Campany, Inc., EHB Docket No. 75-283-C, 1976

EHB 249,256; adjudication upon reconsideration, 1976 EHB 324,328-29 (DER's refusal

to revoke a previously issued solid waste disposal permit and DER's refusal to bring

an enforcement action); Hooversville Water Company v. DER, EHB Docket No. 75-067-D,

1975 EHB 145,146-48 (DER's issuance of a notice of violation requiring appellant

to submit a compliance proposal by a DER-specified date); and, 'Anthony Toma and Alice

Toma v; DER, EHB Docket No. 73-406-C, 1974. EHB 288,291 (DER's issuance of a letter
to township setting forth conditions that should accompany the grant of ra solid waste
disposal permit) .

However, Board opinions which have found an appealable final action on DER's

part include the following: James E. Martin t/d/b/a James E. Martin Coal Company v.

DER, EHB Docket No. 83-120-G (08O, August 20, 1984) (DER's refusal to grant appellant's
request for modification of his mining permit for purpose of allowing terrace back-
filling rather than the originally permitted approximate original contour backfilling) ;

Allegheny County Sanitary Authority v. DER, EHB Docket No. 82-269-G (0&0, July 22,

1984) (IER's exclusion of appellant's proposed sludge disposal project from the 1983

project priority list); Del-a—ware Unlimited, et al. v. DER, EHB Docket No. 82-177-H
(080, January 19, 1983) (DER's decision to permit the diversion of water from the
Delaware River to the North Branch of Neshaminy Creek and stating that no National

Pollution Discharge Elimination System permit would be required for such diversion);

Hatfield Township Municipal Authority v. DER, EHB Docket No. 82-081-M, 1982 EHB 331,
332 (DER's issuance of a letter to mumnicipal sewer authority limiting new connec- .

tions to its sewage plant); Merit Metals Products Corporation v. DER, EHB Docket

No. 81-024-M, 1982 EHB 508,509 (DER's issuance of a letter denying a campliance
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timetable submitted hy appellant and ordering appellant to formulate anothex

compliance plan); Cambria Coal Company v. DER, EHB Docket No. 82-109-H, 1982

EHB 517,518 (DER's issuance of a letter ordering appellant to submit an accep-
table agreement or document the availability of a replacement water supply of

equal or better quality and quantity); Borough of Downirigtown v. DER, EHB Docket

No. 80-075-H, 1980 EHB 410,411-13 (DER's issuance of a letter ordering appellant
not to accept for treatment leachate from a landfill operator with which appellant

had contracted, pending completion of a DER evaluation); K & J Coal Company, Inc.

and Aquitane Penn, Inc. v. DER, EHB Docket No. 80-097-M, 1980 EHB 418,420-21

(DER's verbally conveyed opinion that appellants' mine drainage permit had become

null and void due to non-production at the permitted mine); Snyder, et al. v. DER;

EHB Docket Nos. 79-201-B, 80-001,041-B, 1980 EHB 437,439-40 (DER's bond forfeiture

appealable by principal's surety); Newlin Township v. DER and Strasburg Associates,

EHB Docket No. 78-127-D, 1979 EHB 33,54-58 (DER's approval of envirommentall signif-
icant revisions to previously approved landfill construction plans); Borough of

Mercer and Mercer Borough Sewage Treatment Authority v. DER and County of Mercer,

EHB Docket No. 79-070-S, 1979 EHB 340,342-44 (DER's issuance of a letter stating
that appellants were not prohibited from permitting the construction of an addition

to their sewage collection system); Upper Moreland Township, et al. v. DER, et al.,

EHB Docket Nos. 77-198,199,200-D, 78-050,051-D, 1978 EHB 104,107-13 (DER's return

of outdated permit and federal funding grant applications); Zbington Township v.

DER, EHB Docket No. 78-012-D, 1978 EHB 323,325-26 (DER's refusal to certify appel-
lant's sewage collection system as a "treatment works segment" for purpose of avail-

ability of federal funding); Porter, et al. v. DER, et al., EHB Docket No. 74-205-W,

1975 EHB 230,232-34 (DER's grant of permission to municipal authority for cper-

ation of a landfill); Latrobe Municipal Authority, et al. v. DER, EHB Docket No.

75-111-C, 1975 EHB 422,426-29 (DER's assignment of priority points to a municipal-
ity's proposed sewage treatment facility upgrading under the Federal Water Pollution
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Oontrdl Act is appealable if appellant presents a "creditable showing" of the
invalidity of the state's implementing regulations under state or federal law

or the misapplication of the state agency's own rules); Consolidation Coal Com—

pany, et al. v. DER, EHB Docket No. 72-297-D, 1975 EHB 446,447 (DER's consolida-

tion of appellants' mine drainage permits into one permit); and, Monongahelia

and Chio Dredging Company v. DER, EHB Docket No. 72-388-B, 1974 EHB 489,490

(DER's issuance of an order requiring appellant to cease certain activities and
ordering compliance with the law).

Of the above-cited Board opinions, the one most clearly and directly appli~
cable to the issues presented herein is‘ the Board's recent opinion in James E.

Martin, supra (hereinafter Martin) . Because Martin evidences a significant shift

in the Board's treatment of both Commorwealth Court and Board precedents concerning
the issue of the appealability of DER actions, a discussion of the Martin opinion
and its antecedents is warranted.

In Martin, the Board granted DER's motion to dismiss appellant's appeal from
DER's denial of his mining permit modification request for terrace backfilling
instead of the originally permitted and required more burdensome backfilling to
approximate original contour (AOC). However, the Board's grant of DER's motion
to dismiss was based upon appellant's failure to appeal' in a timely fashion DER's
imposition of the AOC requirement, because appellant's modification request occurred
many years after DER's issuance of appellant's mining permit; the Board held that
the public's interest in the finality of administrative agency actiohs required
that, absent a showing of "truly exceptional circumstances," collateral attacks
upon the validity of unappealed-from and hence final DER actions could not be
{ maintained.

| More importantly for our purposes, however, in addressing the issue of the
appealability per se (see footnote one, supra) of DER's denial of a permit mod-
ification request, the Board questioned the wisdom of its decision in Annville,

supra (and, by implication, the Commorwealth Court precedents upon which Annville
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- relied), which, in construing the definition of "adjudication" as set forth in
Section 101 of the AAL, supra, held that DER's refusal to change a previously
issued permit's wastewater treatment requirements was not appealable because DER'S
refusal to change the status quo did not alter the rights or obligations of the

appellant permittee. Martin, supra, slip opinion at 4 (citing Gateway Coal Com—

pany v. DER, supra; DER v. New Enterprise Storne and Lime, supra; and, Amnville,

supra) . Accordingly, the Board in Martin oonceded that its Amville decision
was directly applicable to the facts presented in Martin, wherein the appealed-
from DER action was also a refusal to grant a permit modification request.
However, in stating its dissatisfaction with the Amnville heclding, the Board
in Martin opined that DER's refusal to change the status quo can affect personal

or property rights or obligations. Martin, supra, slip opinion at 7 (citing 25

Pa. Code §21.2(a) (definition of "action"). For example, the Board noted that
appellant Martin's "property rights and obligations under allowance of terrace
backfill would be substantially different from his present property rights and

obligations binding him to AOC backfilling." Martin, supra, slip opinion at 7.

Thus, the Board held that DER's denial of Martin's mining permit modification
request was an action affecting rights and obligations under the definition of
"action" as set forth in both 2 Pa.C.S.A. §101 and 25 Pa. Code §21.2(a), and it was

therefore . appealable. Martin, supra, slip opinion at 9.

Similarly, DER's denial of appellant STSA's NPDES permit modification re-
quest (and its pending NPDES permit application modification request) was an action
affecting STSA's cbligations. 2 Pa.C.S.A. §101; 25 Pa. Code §21.2(a). While we
have already declined to determine whether or not STSA's property rights were
(and are) affected by DER's denial, (see footnote one, :supra)l, we nonetheless
hold that, at the very least, STSA's obligations were (and are) affected by DER's
denial of STSA's requests. Id. That is, as the duly constituted sewer authority
for Springettsbury Township, STSA has the obligation to provide sewage services

for areas within its jurisdiction. Sewage Facilities Act, 35 P.S. §750.5(a); 25
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Pa. Code §§93.1 et seq., 94.1 et seq., 95.1 et seq. One aspect of STSA's cbli-
gation surely requires STSA to utilize, or attempt to utilize, the maximum design
capacity of its sewage treatment plant and any increased assimilative capacity

and relaxed effluent limits of its sewage treatment plant's receiving stream, for
the purpose of adequately serving the sewage needs of its constituents. Therefore,
since by its denial of STSA's requests DER has hindered STSA's attempts to faith-
fully undertake its obligations at the present time, such action on DER's part is

appealable. 2 Pa.C.S.A §101; 25 Pa. Code §21.2(a); James E. Martin, supra. Accord-

ingly, DER's motion to dismiss is denied.

ORDER

AND NOW, this 3rd day of June, 1985, DER's motion to dismiss the
appeal of appellant Springettsbury Township Sewer Authority from DER's denial
of appellant's National Pollution Discharge Elimination System interim permit
and pending permanent permit application modification requests, docketed at
EHB Docket No. 84-287-M, is hereby denied.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

« M).

ANTHON? 4. MAZULIOOR.

Member

Dated: June 3, 1985.

cc: Bureau of Litigation

For DER:

John C. Dernbach, Esg.

Assistant Counsel

Harrisburg, Pa.

For Springettsbury Township Sewer Authority:
Joanne R. Dermorth, Esg.

Robert J. Sugarman, Esq.

Phila., Pa.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
_THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

MARLIN L. SNYDER

" Docket No. 84-400-G
Issued: June 3, 1985

i A

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
' DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

513

.o

OPINION AND ORDER

SYNOPSIS
Sanctions a.ré imposed against Appellant _pfeventing the presentétion
of his case in chief. App_eliant has failed to file a pre-hearing memorandum
despite repeated warnings by the Board that such failure would result in the

imposition of sanctions. 25 Pa.Code §21.124.

OPINION

This app,eﬂ of a DER compliance brdér was filed with the Board on
December 3, 1984. Pursuantb to its us{;tal practice, the Board issued Pre-hearing
Order No. 1 shortly thereafter, requiring that Appellant file a pre-hearing
memorandum by February 19, 1985. The memorandum was to set forth the factual
and legal bases for the appeal. When no such mermorandum had been filed by
March 4, 1985, the Board sent a default notice to Appellant, via certified mail,
notifying him that failure to file the memorandum by March 18, 1985 could result

in the imposition of sanctions. Although it is not the Board's usual practice,
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a second default notice was sent on April 2, 1985 permitting Appellant to file
the memorandum within ten days of that date. The returned receipts from both
notices show that Appellant received the same.

On April 15, 1985--after the expiration of this ten-day period--the
Board received a letter from Appellant indicating that he believed that his
engineer had filed the memorandum on his behalf. In light of the fact that
Appellant was not represented by counsel, the Board withheld the imposition of
sanctions but sent a letter--again via certified mail--to Appellant directing
him to file his pre-hearing memorandum by May 9, 1985. The letter explicitly
warned that "failure to file the memorandum by May 9, 1985 will result in the
imposition of sanctions against you." The returmed receipt shows that Appellant
received this letter. Nevertheless, no pre-hearing memorandum has been filed nor
has there been a request of an extension of time within which to file the same.
Appellant did respond to the Board's letter but did not explain his failure to
comply with the Board's order.

The Board has unsuccessfully attempted to contact Appellant by phone on
several occasions and has twice requested by letter that Appellant contact the
office of the hearing examiner handling this appeal so that this matter could be
discussed. No such call has been received.

DER bears the bﬁrden of proof in this appeal pursuant to 25 Pa.Code
§21.101(b) (3). Therefore, in light of the foregoing history, the following sanctions
are imposed, pursuant to 25 Pa.Code §21.124. At the hearing on the merits of this
appeal, if and when held, Appellant will be precluded from presenting his case in
chief. Appellant will be allowed only to offer evidence in rebuttal, to cross-—

examine DER witnesses, and to file a post-hearing brief. See Armond Wazelle v. DER,

EHB Docket No. 83-063—-G (Opinion and Order dated September 13, 1983).
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ORDER

- WHEREFORE, sanctions as set forth in the foregoing Opinion are
imposed upon Appellant.

mm@mLHEARmsBOARD

Lt Ay

ED'NARD GERJUCY

DATED: June 3, 1985
cc: Bureau of Litigation

Joseph K. Reinhart, Esquire
Marlin L. Snyder (Certified Mail No. 392562052)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

CLATIR D. AND VICKI HARDY, et al.

Appellants

Docket No. 83-127-M
Issued: June 4, 1985

V.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

2ppellee

OPINION AND ORDER

Synopsis
2ppellants have applied for an award of attorney's fees pursuant to
the Act of December 13, 1982, P.L. 1127, No. 257, 71 P.S. §§2031 - 2035
("The Costs Act"). Appellants' application for attorney's fees is denied.
This matter originated in an appeal from the failure of the Department
of Envirormmental Resources (DER) to order a municipality to revise it official
sewage facilities plan as requested by appellants pursuant to 35 P.S. §750.5(b),
and 25 Pa. Code §71.17. The Costs Act expressly requires that there be an
adversary adjudication initiated by aCommorwealth agency before attormey's
fees can be awarded against that agency. The Board construes the use of
the word "initiates," in §2033(a) of the Costs Act, as limiting the appli-

cation of the Costs Act to those cases in which an agency takes, upon its
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initiativa, sane positive action against a party. Thus, the Costs Act does
rot apply to cases, such as this, where a party requests an agency to take

an action, and the agency refuses to do so.

OPTNION

This matter originated in an appeal, filed with this Board by Clair D.
and Vicky Hardy, et al., on June 23, 1983, from a failure by the Department
of Envirommental Resources (DER) to order Carroll Township, York County to
revise its official sewage facilities plan as requested by appellants pursuan£
to §5(b) of the Pemmnsylvania Sewage Facilities Act, 35 P.S. §750.5(b), and
§71.17 of DER's regulations, 25 Pa. Code §71.17. On June 8, 1984, however,
DER ordered Carroll Township to revise its official sewage facilities plan
to address various sewage problems in the township, including those of ap-
pellants. Because DER's order rendered most of the issues in appellants'
appeal before this Board moot, on Auvgust 8, 1984, appellants withdrew their
appeal. By order dated August 20, 1984, this Board marked the docket in the
appeal closed and discontinued.

Then, on September 10, 1984, appellants filed with this Board an ap-
plication for an award of attorney's fees pursuant to the Act of December 13,
1982, P.L. 1127, No. 257, 71 P.S5.§§2031 - 2035 ("The Costs Act"). The Board
held a hearing on appellants' application for attorney's fees on October 18,
1984, and the Board received the final briefs in this matter by January 25,
1985. \

The effective date of the Costs Act was July 1, 1983, and this is
the first occasion that this Board has had to review an application for
attorney's fees under the Costs Act. Section 2031(c) of the Costs Act sets

forth the purpose of the Costs Act as follows:
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(c) It is therefore the intent of the Assembly to:

(1) Diminish the deterrent effect of seeking review
of or defending against administrative agency action by providing
in specified situations an award of attorney's fees, expert witness
fees and other costs against the Commornwealth.

(2) Deter the adminigtrative agencies of this Coammorwealth
from initiating substantially unwarranted actions against individuals,
partnerships, corporations, associations and other nonpublic entities.

71 P.S. §2031(c).
Section 2033 (a) of the Costs Act sets forth the following circumstances under
which a Commonwealth agency shall award fees and expenses:

(a) Except as otherwise provided or prohibited by law, a

Commonwealth agency that initiates an adversary adjudication shall

award to a prevailing party, other than the Commorwealth, fees and

other expenses incurred by that party in connection with that pro-

ceeding, unless the adjudicative officer finds that the position of

the agency, as a party to the proceeding, was substantially justified

or that special circumstances made an award unjust.

71 P.S. §2033(a).
Thus, the Costs Act expressly requires that there be an adversary adjudication
initiated by a Commonwealth agency before attorney's fees can be awarded against
that agency. In this case, the action of DER from which this appeal was taken
was a denial of a private request; made by appellants pursuant to §5(b) of the
Sewage Facilities Act, 35 P.S. §750.5(b), and §71.17 of DER's regulations, 25
Pa. Code §71.17; for DER to order Carroll Township to revise its official
sewage facilitieé plan. Therefore, a preliminary issue in this case is
whether a denial by DER of a private request for an order to revise an official
sewage facilities plan constitutes an adversary adjudication initiated by DER.
Appellants argue that any appealable action by DER would meet the requirement
of the Costs Act for an adversary adjudication initiated by a Commonwealth

agency. This Board does not believe, however, that the Costs Act was intended to

have such a broad application.
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Adversary adjudication is defined in the Costs Act as, "an adjudication
as defined in 2 Pa. C.S. §101," 71 P.S. §2032. An adjudication is defined
in 2 Pa. C.S. §101 as, "Any final order, decree, decision, determination or
ruling by an agency affecting personal or property rights, privileges, im-
munities, duties, liablilities or obligations of any or all of the parties
to the proceeding in which the adjudication was made." Section 1921-A(a)-(c)
of the Administrative Code, 71 P.S. §510-21(a)-(c), authorizes this Board
to hold hearings and issue adjudications on DER actions that constitute ad-

judications as defined in 2 Pa. C.S. §101. Eremic v. DER, 1976 EHB 249.

Thus, any DER action that is appealable to this Board is also an "adversary
adjudication,” as defined in the Costs Act. It is well established that
a DER denial of a private request for an order to revise an official sewage
facilities plan is an appealable action. 25 Pa. Code §71.17(d); Betz v.

DER, 1980 EHB 107; Longwell v. DER, 1980 EHB 514. Therefore, if the Costs

Act applied to all adversary adjudications by DER, the Costs Act would apply
to a DER denial of a private request for an order to revise an official
sewage facilities plan. The Costs Act, however, does not apply to all ad-
versary adjudications by DER, but only to those adversary adjudications ini-
tiated by DER. 71 P.S. §2033(a).

The purpose of the requirement that the adversary adjudication be
initiated by the agency is to narrow the application of the Costs Act. This
Board construes the use of the word "initiates" 'in 71 P.S. §2033(a) as lim~
iting the application of the Costs Act to those cases in which an agency
takes, upon its own initiative, some action against a party. The Costs
Act does not apply to cases in which a party requests an agency to take an action
and the agency refuses to do so, Therefore, the Costs Act does rot apply 0 a
DER denial of a private request for an order to revise an official sewage

facilities plan.
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ORDER

AND NOW, this  4th day of June , 1985, the appli-

cation for attorney's fees of Clair D. and Vicki Hardy, et al., at EHB

Docket No. 83-127-M, is denied.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Aatler)) i

ANI'HONY 5 MAZULLO/JR., MEI

ot AL

WARD GERJUGY, MEMPER 7

cc: Bureau of Litigation

Eugene E. Dice, Esq.
Paul Simon, Esq./Central

DATED: June 4, 1985
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

SANDY CREEK FOREST, INC.

Appellant
Docket No. 84-111-M
Issued: June 4, 1985
v. . Aff'd No.1900 C.D.1985
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA Pa.Cmwlth Ct. February 4, 1986
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES
Appellee

OPINION AND ORDER

Synopsis

Sandy Creek Forest, Inc. appealed from a letter from the Department
of Environmental Resources (DER). DER's Motion to Dismiss is granted be-
cause the letter was not an appealable action.

The DER letter was written in response to appellant's request that
DER determine that no revision to a municipality's official sewage facilities
plan would be necessary before appellant could subdivide land in that mumic-
ipality. 1In the absence of a request for planning approval, DER is under
o legal obligation to examine a municipality's official plan and determine
whether a proposed subdivision would constitute a revision to that plan.
The DER letter merely recited the regulations pertaining to revisions and
supplenments to official sewage facilities plans, 25 Pa. Code §71.15, and did
not affect the personal or property rights, privileges, immunities, duties,

liabilities, or obligations of the appellant.
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OPINION

Sandy Creek Forest, Inc. (Sandy Creek) filed an appeal with this Board
on March 19, 1984, from a letter from the Department of Environmental Resources
(DER), dated February 24, 1984. The DER letter was written in response to
a request by Sandy Creek that DER determine that no revision to the officiél
sewage facilities plan of Covington Township, Clearfield County wouid be
necessary before Sandy Creek could subdivide land that it owned in the town-
ship. DER informed Sandy Creek that DER could not determine whether Sandy
Creek's proposed subdivision would require a revision to Covington Township's
sewage facilities plan unless Sandy Creek sSubmitted information required by
25 Pa. Code §71.15 of DER's sewage facilities regulations. On May 16, 1984,
DER filed a Motion to Dismiss Sandy Creek's appeal on the grounds that the
DER letter from which Sandy Creek appealed was not an appealable action of DER.

As a prerequisite to subdividing property, 25 Pa. Code §71.15 requires
planning approval from DER to determine whether a proposed subdivision is
in conformity with the official sewage facilities plan of the muniéipality
within which the proposed subdivision is to be located. If the official
plan of the municipality does not adequately provide for the sewage disposal
reeds of the proposed subdivision, then the official plan must be revised
to accamodate the proposed sibdivision. 25 Pa. Code §71.15(b). If, however,
the official plan does adequately provide for the sewage disposal needs of
the proposed subdivision, the regulatiéns do not require a revison to the
official plan, but, rather, only require a supplement to the plan. 25 Pa.
Code §71.15(c) .

In this. case, the record contains no evidence that Sandy Creek at-
tempted to obtain the required plamning:approval for its proposed subdivision.
Instead, Sandy Creek merely requested DER to declare that no revision to

Covington Township's official plan would be necessary to accomodate Sandy

- 517 -




Creek's proposed subdivision. DER responded to this request by setting forth
the requirements of the regulations concerning the information that must be
swbmitted to DER with requests for planmning approvals for new subdivisions.
In the absence of a request for planning approval, DER is under no
legal obligation to examine a municipality's official plan and determine
whether a proposed subdivision would constitute a revision to that plan.
The DER letter from which Sandy Creek appealed merely recited the regulations
pertaining to revisions and supplements to official sewage facilities plans.
DER did not deny a revision or a supplerent to Covington Township's official
sewage facilities plan, but, rather, DER informed Sandy Creek of the proce-
dures required to obtain planning approval for a proposed subdivision. Thus,
the DER letter from which Sandy Creek appealed is not a final action of DER,
and does not affect the personal or property rights, privileges, immumnities,
duties, liabilities, or obligations of the appellant. As such, the DER
letter does not constitute an action that is appealable to this Board.

2 Pa.C.S. §101; 25 Pa. Code §21.2(a}; Stané_iard Iime and Refractories Com—

pany v. DER, 2 Pa. Cmwlth. 424, 279 A.2d4 383 (1971); DER v. New Enterprises

Stone and Lime Company, Inc., 25 Pa. Cmwlth. 389, 359 A.2d 845 (1976) .

ORDER

AND, NOW, this 4th day of June , 1985, DER's

Motion to Dismiss is granted, and the appeal of Sandy Creek Forest, Inc.,

at FHB Docket No. 84-111-M is dismissed.
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cc: Bureau of Litigation

John A. Mihalik, Esq.

Lynn Wright, Esg./Central |

DATED: June 4, 1985

ENVIRONMENTAL HFARING BOARD

ANTHONY d. MAZUI.ZLO&JR. '

Z 3,

EDWARD GERJUOY, MEMBE¥
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

NEMACOLTN MINES CORPORATION, and
THE BUCKEYE COAL COMPANY

Appellants

Docket No. 76-170-B
Issued: June 4, 1985

v.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

Appeliee

OPINTON AND ORDER

Synopsis
This is an appeal from a DER letter notifying appellants that an inves-

tigation had disclosed that their mining operations had caused subsidence
damage to private property, and directing appellants to deposit a sum of money
in escrow until the claim is settled. 52 P.S. §1406.6(a). The appeal is

dismissed as having been taken from an unappealable action. The DER letter

was simply a violation notice.

OPINION
Nemacolin Mines Corporation and the Buckeye Coal Company filed an
appeal with this Board on Decenber 27, 1976, from é letter from the Depart-
ment of Environmental Resources (DER), dated November 24, 1976, informing
appellants that an investigation had disclosed that appellants' mining op-

eration had caused damage to the residence of John Reposky, Jr., and direct-
- 520 -




ing appellants, pursuant to section 6(a) of the Bituminous Mine Subsidence
and Land Conservation Act of 1966, 52 P.S. §1406.6(a), to deposit $2000.00
in escrow wntil this claim is settled. On March 11, 1977, DER filed a
Motion to Dismiss this appeal on the basis that the DER letter from which
ampellants appealed did not constitute an appealable DER action. Then, by
order dated April 22, 1977, the proceedings in this matter were stayed in-
definitely, pending the outcome of negotiations between the parties. On
October 29, 1984, the Board requested the parties to this appeal for a status
report, and by letter dated November 7, 1984, appellants informed the Board
that DER's Motion to Dismiss was still pending, and that appellants did not
wish to withdraw this appeal. Thus, this Board will now rule on DER's Motion
to Dismiss.
The DER letter that is the subject of this appeal read as follows:
We have been advised by Mr. S.E. Cortis, Chief
" . of our Division of Mine Subsidence Regulation,
that an investigation has disclosed that damage
to the residence of John Reposky, Jr., 118
Schroyers Lane, Carmichaels, was caused by
mining operations of the Nemacolin Mine,
Buckeye Coal Company.
Section 6(a) of the Bituminous Mine Subsidence
and Land Conservation Act of 1966 provides
that when a claim has not been satisfied within
six months, the permit holder shall deposit
with the Secretary of Environmental Resources,
as security, a sum of money in an amount equal
t0 said damage or the reasonable cost of repair.
It is, therefore, necessary that you deposit
in escrow the amount of $2000.00 until this
claim is settled.
In its Motion to Dismiss, DER argued that this letter was solely a Notice
of Violation, and purported neither to suspend or rewvoke the appellants®

pemmit,, nor to require cessation of appellants' mining operation. In sup-

port of this argument, DER cited Sunbeam Coal Corporation v. DER, 8 Pa.

Omwlth. 622, 304 A.2d 169 (1973), which held that absent a suspension or
revoca‘c;f_;g?{l of a permit, or the issuance of a cease and desist order, a Notice
of Violatigf*i,; does’niot constitute an appealable action.
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In response to DER's Motion to Dismiss, appellants argued that the
DER letter was not a Notice of Violation because the letter did not cite
section 9 of the Bituminous Mine Subsidence and Land Conservation Act (BMSI@),
52 P.S. §1406.9, the provision of the Act pertaining to violation notices,
and the letter alleged no violation of the Act. Moreover, appellants argued
that the letterwvas appealable because the letter required appellants to de-
posit $2000.00 in escrow for a claimfor which they denied liablility, and
had they mot deposited thé $2000.00 in escrow, they would have lost their
permit. Thus, appellants argued, the letter affects their personal property
rights, privileges, immunities or obligations, and is therefore an appeal-

able action. 2 Pa. C.S. §101; 25 Pa. Code §21.2(a); Eremic v. DER, 1976 EHB 249.

This Board has had previous occasion to rule upon the appealablility
of a DER letter informing a mine operator that it has been found to have
caused subsidence damage to private property, and dirécting the mine operator,
| pursuant to!the BMSICA, to either place in escrow an amount equivalent to the
' cost of repair of the damage, or demonstrate to DER that the claim has other-

wise been satisfied. In Mathies Coal Company v. DER, EHB Docket No. 84~015-G

(Opinion and Order, November 30, 1984), this Board held that a letter, such
as the one that is the subject of this appeal was not an appealable DER
action.
Although section 6 of the BMSICAwould have required that.appellants' permit be
suspended or revoked if appellants had not deposited the $2,000.00 in escrow,
the placement of this money in escrow does not amount to an admission of
liability for the claim of subsidence damage. 52 P.S. §1406.6. In Mathies,
the Board stated that a DER.letter directing the placement of money in escrow

pursuant to section 6 of the RMSICA is analogous to the facts of Perry Brothers

oal Company v. DER, 1982 EHB 501. In Perry Brothers, DER notified the ap-

pellant by letter that it was in violation of several permit conditions, and

that DER would isste no new permmits to Perry Brothers until all vidlations
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were corrected. This Board, relying on the authority of Sunbeam Coal Corpo-

ration v. [ER, 8 Pa. Cwlth. 622, 304 A.2d 169 (1973), held in Perry Brothers

that the DER letter was solely a Notice of Violation, and as such was not

appealable.

In Mathies, however, the Board expressed the following concerns regard-

ing the nonappealability of DER letters directing mine operators to place

money in escrow for subsidence damage claims pursuant toisection 6 of the

BMSICA:

Where DER can decide on its own that a damage
claim against a permittee is justified, and
where the statute then mandates suspension
or revocation of the permit unless the per-
mittee(no matter how unjustified the permittee
thinks the claim is) either repairs the dam-
age or places the estimated repair costs in
escrow, it borders on an abuse of discretion
for DER to issue an unappeable notice of vio-
lation instead of -~ as so easily ocould have
been issued -- an order requiring the permit—
tee to repair or escrow; such an order would
have been appealable, and therefore would
have allowed the permittee to challenge the
underlying damage claim before the mandated
permit suspension or revocation became
imminent.

But, DER informed the Board during the Mathies appeal that it was establishing

policies that will ensure that permittees in Mathies' position, and the

position of appellants in this case, will receive an appealable order to

repair or escrow before pemit suspension or revocation is ordered. Thus,

the Board held in Mathies, and reaffimms here, that a DER letter informing

a mine operator that it has been found to have caused subsidence damage to

a private property owrer, and directing the mine operator, pursuant to §6

of the BMSICA, to either place in escrow an amount equivalent to the cost

of repair of the damage, or demonstrate to DER that the claim has otherwise

been satisfied, is not an appealable action of DER.
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ORDER

IAND NOW, this 4th day of June , 1985, DER's Motion to

Dismiss is granted, and the appeal of Nemacolin Mines Corporation and the

Buckeye Coal Comparny, at EHB Docket No. 76-170-B, is dismissed.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARTNG BOARD

M«/W}

ANTHONY/Z. MAZULIO éa‘R

Sty

cc: Bureau of Litigation

Henry Ingram, Esqg.
Dennis W. Strain, Esq./Western

DATED: June 4, 1985
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

. 221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

GOLDEN FLAME FUEL COMPANY

" Docket No. 84-353-G
Issued: June 6, 1985

. Y.
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

7

OPINION AND ORDER

SYNQPSiS ‘
Sanctions weﬁ:e imposed against Appellant for failure to file a pre-
hearing memorandum as ordered by the Board. ’;?ursuantv.to the éuthority granted
oy 25 Pa.Code §21.124, Appellant is preclﬁded from presehting its case in chief.
OPINION
On October 16, >l984-, the Board issued Pre-Hearing Order No. 1, reéuiring
that Appellant file a pre—heai*ing memorandum on or before January 3,. 1985.. The
purpose of the memorandum is to outline the factual and legal bases of the appeal.
When no mermrandﬁn had been filed by January 21, 1985, the Board sent a notice to
,wounsel for Appellant warning that failure to file the memorandum within fifteen
days might result in the imposition of sanctions. On January 30, 1985 the Board
received from.Appellant a motion for extension of time to file said memorandum.
Said motion was granted; Appellant was to file the memorandum by April 26, 1985.
When the memorandum still had not been filed by May 15, the Board sent a notice to

counsel for Zppellant via certified mail warning that failure to file the same by
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May 28, 1985 would result in the imposition of sanctions. To date no such
merorandum has been filed with the Board, This is an
appeal of a DER compliance order. Consequently, DER at least as an initial
matter bears the burden of proof. 25 Pa.Code §21.101(b) (3). Therefore, dis-

missal of the appeal is not an appropriate sanction. See Armond Wazelle v. DER,

EHB Docket No. 83-063-G. (Opinion and Order dated September 13, 1983).

However, the Board will not tolerate continued disregard of its orders.

ORDER

WHEREFORE, in light of the foregoing, it is ordered that at the hearing
on the merits of this appeal, if and when held, Appellant will be precluded from
presenting its case in chief. Appellant will be limited to the presentation of
evidence such as would normally be offered in rebuttal, rather than in its case
in chief , cross—~examination of DER's witnesses, and the filing of a post-hearing
brief. DER's pre-hearing memorandum is due within fifteen (15) days of receipt
of this Opinion.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

A

EDWARD GERJUOY < J 7
Member
DATED: - June 6, 1985
cc: Bureau of Litigation
Gregg M. Rosen, Esquire
Joseph K. Reinhart, Esquire
$="526 -
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

WILLIAM FIORE

Docket No. 85-020-G
* | Issued: June 7, 1985

V. :

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

SYNOPSIS
Summary judgment is granted in favor of the Department of Environmental
Resources. Previous court decisions have established {:hat Appellant has violated
the Solid Waste Management Act. 35 P.S. §6018.101 et seg. These established
violations clearly indicate that A;;pellant lacks the intention or the ability to
comply with the Act. Therefore, DER was fully justified in denying- Bppellant's
application for a hazardous waste permit pursuant to section 503(c) of the Act,

35 P.S. §6018.503(c).

OPINION

This is an appeal from the denial of Appellant's application for a
permit to operate a hazardous waste disposal facility. The Department of Environ-
mental Resources ("DER") denied the permit for several reasons, including its

finding that Appellant had demonstrated an inability and unwillingness to comply
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with the Pemnsylvania Solid Waste Management Act, 35 P.S. §6018.101 et seq.
("SWMA"). DER has moved for summary judgment and filed a supporting brief.
Appellant has responded to the DER Motion.
Pursuant to Pennsylvania Rule of Civil Procedure 1035, summary Jjudg-

ment shall be rendered if there is no genuine issue as to any material fact
and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. The applicable
law in this appeal is the Solid Waste Management Act, particularly section 503(c),
35 P.S. §6018.503(c), which provides in relevant part:

In carrying out the provisions of this act, the

department may deny . . . any permit . . . if it

finds that the applicant . . . has failed or con-

tinues to fail to comply with any provision of

this act . . . or if the department finds that

the applicant . . . has shown a lack of ability or

intention to comply with any provision of this

act . . . as indicated by past or continuing

violations.

This Board recently has been presented with a case involving these

same parties and virtually identical factual and legal issues. In Fiore v. Common-

wealth Department of Envircnmental Resources (EHB Docket No. 84-292-G, Opinion and

Order Sur Motion for Summary Judgment dated February 13, 1985) we ruled that DER
was Jjustified in denying Appellant's application for a hazardous waste transporter's
license under section 503(c). There we held that DER was fully entitled to rely
upon certain established viclations of law in deciding‘ to deny Appellant's permit
application. We stated that the established violations "provide an ample basis

for determining that Appellant has shown a lack of ability or intention to comply
with the requirements of the Solid Waste Management Act." (Opinion at p. 8).

That oonclusion is no less applicable here.

The DER denial letter from which this appeal was taken cites, inter alia,
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section 503(c) as the basis upon which the permit application was denied,l and
makes reference to Appellant's failure to comply with the terms of a consent
order and agreement (CO&A) signed by Appellant with DER on January 25, 1983.
In our Opinion of February 13 (discussed supra) we relied upon a Commonwealth
Court decision which found that Appellant had violated the terms of that C0&A,

holding that the court's finding was res judicata for the purposes of the appeal

before the Board. Commonwealth Department of Environmental Resources v. Wm. Fiore,

d/b/a Municipal and Industrial Disposal Company, Inc. No. 2083 C.D. 1983 (Opinion

and Order entered October 28, 1983). On the date that we issued the aforesaid
opinion, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court entered an order affirming the Commonwealth
Court's finding that Appellant had violated the terms of the (0&A and therefore was '

guilty of criminal contempt. Commonwealth Department of Environmental Resources v.

William Fiore, d/b/a Municipal and Industrial Disposal Company, Inc., Pa.

486 A.2d 950 (1985). Suffice it to say that Appellant'cannot successfully argue
2
that he did not violate the terms of the (0&A, and hence, the SWMA. We hold that

these violations of the SWMA are res judicata for the purposes of this appeal.

Bethlehem Steel Corp. v. Commonwealth Department of Environmental Resources, 37 Pa.

Qmwlth. 479, 390 A.2d 1383 (1978).

B

The violations which are established by the Comimonwealth Court and
Supreme Court rulings are of the following paragraphs of the CO&A:
4. By June 15, 1983, M & I shall remove all

solid waste material that has been and is presently
stored on the area identified as the temporary

1. Although the denial letter also relied upon section 503(d) of the Act, and
although DER puts forward an extensive argument in support of denial on this basis,
we need not rule upon the propriety of basing the denial upon that section since we
have determined that DER's action can be fully supported under section 503(c) alone.

2. Paragraph 12 of the O0&A provides that certain paragraphs of the agreement
constitute an order of DER. Under section 603 of the SWMA, 35 P.S. 6018.603, failure
to comply with a DER order issued pursuant to the SWMA is a violation of the SWMA
itself.
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storage pits on drawing 167-01-01, (Revised
January, 1979), the temporary storage pits,

all contaminated soil, below and surrounding
the excavated waste and the storage pits,

and said waste, pits, and contaminated soil
("Waste Material") shall by June 15, 1983,

be either disposed of in the Phase I Pit, or
remove the Waste Material to a storage or
disposal location off-site authorized to accept
such Waste Material (hereinafter referred to as
the "Off-Site Waste Facility"), it being under-
stood that M & I shall notify DER in writing
of the identity of the Off-Site Waste Facility
and obtain all required authorization for stor-
age or disposal prior to the transportation of
any Waste Material thereto.

5. Within fifteen (15) days of the date
of the execution of this Consent Order and
Agreement, M & I shall submit to the DER Bureau
of Solid Waste Management, 851 Kossman Building,
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15222, a revised
closure plan in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the 25 Pa.Code §75.265(o) (Sept. 4,
1982 Pa. Bulletin Pa. 3063) to reflect the
removal of the Waste Material as required by
Paragraph 4, above.

7. M & I shall not expand the above-referenced
hazardous waste facility; the Phase I Industrial Waste
Pit, and shall not utilize or construct any off-site
or on-site hazardous waste disposal facility which
is not permitted by the Pennsylvania DER Bureau of
Solid Waste Management or does not qualify for interim
status as a hazardous waste disposal facility.

9. Commencing February 1, 1983, and by the fifth
day of each succeedingmonth until M & I has received
a permit from the Department pursuant to Paragraph 1l(a)
above, M & I shall pay a civil penalty of $500.00 per
month to the Department's Clean Water Fund, payable to
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Environ-—
mental Resources, at the address set forth in Paragraph
1(a) above.

In reaching the conclusion that Appellant had violated the foregoing
provisions of the (0&A, Judge Barry made certain other findings.regarding Appellant's

management of his waste disposal facility, including the following:
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As a result of (Appellant's actions at his solid
waste disposal facility) industrial wastes have
been discharged into an unnamed tributary of the
Youghiogheny River at the site. The discharges
constitute "hazardous waste" within the meaning
of the Solid Waste Management Act. 35 P.S.
§6018.103.

* % *

Testimony introduced at the hearing in this case
indicated that the chemical constituents (which
find their way to the unnamed tributary) contain
polyaromatic hydrocarbons and other organic chem-
icals which are constituents of coal tar decanter
sludge. Some of the chemicals present in the
discharge are either known or suspected carcinogens.
It was also established that the McKeesport Water
Authority intake for its public water supply system
is located on the Youghiogheny River approximately
8.5 miles downstream from the point at which the
unnamed tributary enters the Youghigheny River.

As we have previously stated, these violations unquestionably demon-
strate a lack of ability or intention to comply with the provisions of the SWMA.
Appellant argues that DER must prove that these violations continue to exist;
however, Appellant is clearly in error. Section 503(c) provides that DER may
deny a permit for a demonstrated lack of ability or intention to comply with
the SWMA "as indicated by past or continuing violations" (emphasis supplied).
Unlike section 503(d) of the SWMA, which states that DER shall deny a permit
wmless the permit application demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Department
that unlawful conduct has been corrected, 503(c) does not require that DER con-
sider the present status of the applicant's violations.

In short, there are no disputed issues of material fact presented in
this appeal. Since we have found that the established violations unquestionably
demonstrate a lack of ability or intention to comply with the SWMA, it necessarily
follows that, under section 503(c), DER was fully entitled to deny Appellant's

application for a hazardous waste permit. The following order is consistent with

this conclusion.
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ORDER

WHEREFORE, this 7th day of June, 1985, it is ordered that this
appeal is dismissed. DER is entitled to judgment herein as a matter of law.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARTNG BOARD

At fpeo 3,

ANTHONY 'J. MAZULIO, IR,

MZZ/,M

EDWARD GERJUOY <
Member

DATED:  june 7, 1985

cc: Bureau of Litigation
Robert P. Ging, Jr., Esquire, Pittsburgh, for Appellant
Dennis W. Strain, Esquire, Pittsburgh, for Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, DER
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C OMM ONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRdNMENTA L HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

SECHAN LIMESTONE INDUSTRIES, INC.

" Docket No. 85-162-G
 Issued: June 18, 1985

. '._V. , v - o
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

VIRONMENTAL RESOURCE
DR ARTHERY x0k Cheek Glnan watar, ‘TNC. Tntervenor

and ARMCO, INC., Intervenor
‘ OPINION AND ORDER

SYNOPSIS ' :

Appellant bears both the burden ef producfion and the burden of_
persuasion on the issues of'whether pollution existing at its hazardous waste
disposal facility is being abated and whether the cause ef this pollution has
been ellmlnated These issues are ralsed by Appellant as afflrmatlve defenses
to the DER.actlons appealed hereln. .Appellant must meet its burden on these
issues by clear and Qonvincing evidence,'inkconformity witn the‘poiiey evidenced

. by section 611 of the Solid Weste Management Act, 35 P.S. §6018.611.
| DER retains the ultimate.burden of denonstrating thatvits actions,
i.e., permit revocation, ternination of interim status, and issuance of a cessation
order, were not an abuse of discretion or an otherwise arbitrary exercise of its
duties and functions, given the facts as they eventually are established concern-
ing the existence, cause, and abatement of the pollution existing at the facility.
Neither §6018.611 nor 25 Pa.Code §21.101(d) shifts the burden to Appellant on
this issue.
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OPINION

Appellant, Sechan Limestone Industries ("Sechan") has appealed
several actions taken by the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Resources
("DER") which affect Sechan's hazardous waste disposal facility in Butler and
Lawrence counties, Pennsylvania. In respoﬁse to the existence of groundwater
contamination in the vicinity of the facility and after several months of
action by DER and Sechan directed toward abating the same, DER suspended Sechan's
Solid Waste Permit No. 300705 and terminated Sechan's interim status to operate
the facility. In addition, DER issued a separate order requiring the cessation
of all waste disposal in one of two disposél pits located on the site, the
"C-1 pit.” The DER actions were to take effect nearly immediately, thereby
effectively precluding Sechan from continuing its waste disposal operations at
the site.

Appellant appealed each of these actions, which appeals have been
consolidated under the above-captioned docket number. Petitions for supersedeas
were filed by Sechan and a hearing on these petitions was held on May 3 and 6,
1985. Following the hearing, the presiding Board member denied the petitions.
It is anticipated that the record developed at the supersedeas hearing will
become part of the record at the hearing on the merits of this appeal.

In preparation for the up-coming hearing on the merits, DER has filed
a Motion for determination of the burden of proof. DER urges that the Board
impose the burden of production and of persuasion upon Sechan regarding the
issues of whether Sechan contributed to the pollution which is admitted to exist
at the site, whether this pollution has been eliminated, and whether the cause
of the pollution no longer exists. In support of its Motion, DER relies upon
section 611 of the Pennsylvania Solid Waste Management Act, 35 P.S. §6018.611,
and 25 Pa.Code §21.101(d), the provision of the Board's rules which permits
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shifting the burden of proof under certain circumstances.
35 P.S. §6018.611 provides:

§ 6018.611. Presumption of law for civil and
administrative proceedings

It shall be presumed as a rebuttable pre-
surption of law that a person or municipality
which stores, treats, or disposes of hazardous
waste shall be liable, without proof of fault,
negligence, or causation, for all damages, con—
tamination or pollution within 2,500 feet of the
perimeter of the area where hazardous waste activi-
ties have been carried out. Such presumption may
be overcome by clear and convincing evidence that
the person or municipality so charged did not con-
tribute to the damage, contamination, or pollution.

1980, July 7, P.S. 380, No. 97, §6l11, effective
in 60 days.

25 Pa.Code §21.101(d) states:

When the Department issues an order requiring.
abatement of alleged environmental damage, the
private party shall nonetheless bear the burden of
proof and the burden of proceeding when it appears
that the Department has initially established:

(1) that some degree of pollution or environ-
mental damage is taking place, or is likely to take
place, even if it is not established to the degree
that a prima facie case is made that a law or regu-
lation is being violated; and '

(2) that the party alleged to be responsible
for the environmental damage is in possession of the
facts relating to such environmental damage or should
be in possession of them.

The Order Directing Cessation of Disposal Operations

The central issues underlying a determination of the propriety of DER's
order directing Sechan to cease its disposal activities at the C-1 pit are:
1) whether pollution exists at the site, and 2) whether that pollution is Sechan's
responsibility. See 35 P.S. §6018.602. Normally, DER would bear the burden of
proof on issues supporting the validity of its order, pursuant to 25 Pa.Code
§21.101(b). In the instant case, however, Sechan does not contest the fact that

pollution is present at the site. In addition, Sechan has admitted that this

- 535 -




pollution is somehow the result of Sechan's operations. Thus, in effect, these
issues have been removed from contention. (A discussion of the burden of proof
regarding Sechan's claim that it is abating the pollution is reserved for the
discussion concerning permit revocation infra.) It is important, however, to
note the possible operation of section 611 of the Solid Waste Management Act in
this context, since the public policy considerations it reflects are relevant
to other issues raised by DER's motion.:L

Under section 611, where there has been an initial showing that pollution
exists within 2500 feet of the perimeter of a hazardous waste facility, it is
presumed that the operator of that facility \bears legal responsibility for the
pollution, without regard to cause, fault, or negligence. This presumption can be
overcame only by clear and convincing evidence. We reéd section 611 as evidencing
a very strong legislative policy in favor of holding an operator of a hazardous
waste facility liable for harm which reasonablymay be presumed to result from its
operation. Section 611 clearly places the burden of production upon the operator,
and, in light of its emphasis upon strict liability and its elevated standard of
proof, it likewise places the burden of persuasion upon the operatof with regard

to the operator's responsibility for the existing pollution.

The Suspension of Solid Waste Permit No. 300705

The suspension of Sechan's Solid Waste Permit was based upon section 503

of the Solid Waste Management Act, 35 P.S. §6018.503, which provides in pertinent

part:

1. In light of the fact that this issue has been removed from contention, we
need not address DER's claim that 25 Pa.Code §21.101(d) would shift the burden of
proof to Sechan with regard to the instant order.
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*x % %

(¢) . . « (TYhe department may deny, suspend,
modify or revoke any permit . . . if it finds that
the . . . permittee has failed or continues to
fail to comply with any provision of this act

. . . the Clean Streams Law . . . or any other
state or Federal statute relating to environmental
protection or to the protection of the public
health, safety and welfare; or any rule or regu-
lation of the department; or any order of the
department;. or any condition of any permit or
license issued by the department; or if the
department finds that the . . . permittee has
shown a lack of ability or intention to comply
with any provision of this act or any of the acts
referred to in this subsection or any rule or
regulation of the department or order of the
department, or any condition of any permit or
license issued by the department as indicated by
past or continuing violations.

* * %

(e) Any permit . . . granted by the department,
as provided in this act, shall be revocable or
subject to modification or suspension at any
time the department determines that the solid
waste . . . disposal facility or area . . . :

(1) is, or has been, conducted in violation
of this act or the rules, regulations adopted
pursuant to this act;

(2) is creating a public nuisance;

(3) is creating a potential hazard to the
public health, safety and welfare;

(4) adversely affects the environment;

(5) is being operated in violation of any
terms or conditions of the permit; or

(6) was operated pursuant to a permit or
license that was not granted in accordance
with law.

It is readily apparent that the central factual issue when DER suspends
a permit under section 503 is whether the facility has been operated and is being
operated in conformity with all appl_icable legal requirements. Discharge of
contaminants to the groundwater without a permit is a violation of these legal
requirements, including, inter alia, section 610 of the Solid Waste Management
Act, 35 P.s. §6018.610, and section 307 of the Clean Streams Iaw, 35 P.S. §691.307.
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As noted above, Sechan does not dispute that contaminants have entered the
groundwater in the vicinity of the site and that it does not have a permit
authorizing their discharge. Rather, Sechan has argued that it is effectively
dealing with those contaminants and that therefore the DER actions at issue
were too harsh in light of the alleged abatement that is taking place.

Sechan's argument regarding abatement of the conditions at the site
is an affirmative defense. Sechan admits the central factual bases for the
DER action, i.e., that pollution is present and is the result of its operations,
but contends that, even given these facts, the DER action is unjustified because
of other relevant factors which Sechan seeks to prove, i.e., that the actions
it is taking are effectively controlling the contamination. (See definition of
"affirmative defense", Black's Law Dictionary, 5th ed.) Moreover, Sechan is
the party in possession of the facts necessary to support this defense; it relies
upon its own actions as the basis for its argument that DER acted improperly.
Consequently, we have little difficulty concluding that with regard to the issues
necessary to support this affirmative defense Sechan bears the burden of proof,
i.e., both the burden of production and the burden of persuasion.

In this context, section 611 of the Solid Waste Management Act is again
relevant. The legislative policy evidenced by section 611 (as well as other
portions of the Act) is clear: hazardous waste management is a dangerous business
and persons who intend to engage in that business must bear the sizable risks
involved. Improper solid waste practices create "irreparable harm to the public",
35 P.S. §6018.102, and this harm is significantly increased where the solid waste

2
in question is designated "hazardous".  Thus, the heavy burden of proof placed

2. Hazardous waste is defined as material which may "cause or significantly
contribute to an increase in mortality or an increase in morbidity in either an
individual or the total population; or pose a substantial present or potential
hazard to human health or the environment when improperly treated, stored, trans-
ported, disposed of or otherwise managed." 35 P.S. §6018.103.
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upon the operator by section 611 is consistent with the extreme caution that is
warranted whenever hazardous waste disposal is oconcerned. As we stated in

Coolspring Township v. Commonwealth, DER, 1983 EHB 151, the determination of

the degree of proof required to meet the burden varies depending upon the magni-
tude of the potential harm. We there stated: "If the effects, once they have
occurred are sufficiently calamitous, then even a small probability of occurrence
may be intolerable." The party contending that the harm will not occur bears a
heavier burden where the potential harm is great. Section 611 reflects this

~ same policy.

We see no reason to distinguish between the burden placed upon the
operator under section 611 to prove that the pollution was not caused by its
operations and the burden which is placed upon the operator who attempts to
show that that same pollution is not continuing. Indeed, the public policy con-
siderations in favor of requiring a clear and convincing showing are even more
compelling where the operator claims it is abating the pollution. The abatement
defense would not be relevant unless it were already established that the
operator is legally responsible for the pollution. Since section 611 permits
the imposition of an elevated degree of proof to overcome a presumption of
responsibility for the pollution, a fortiori an elevated degree of proof should
be required where the operator has admitted that it in fact caused the polluton.
Thus, we conclude that it is Sechan's responsibility to demonstrate by clear
and convincing evidence that it is eliminating the pollution and that the cause
of the pollution no longer exists. This showing is relevant in the context of
the cessation order as well as the permit suspension, and therefore this standard

applies in both circumstances.
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Our conclusion, supra, does not alter the ultimate burden of persuasion
on the issue of whether the DER actions in question, i.e., suspension of the
permit and issuance of the cessation order, represent an abuse of discretion or an
otherwise arbitrary exercise of DER's duties or functions, however. Factors other
than the existence of a pollutional condition and an operator's responsibility
therefor may be involved in the decision on these issues. Section 611 addresses
only the operator's responsibility for the polluting condition. It does not
establish any presumptions concerning the propriety of DER actions given the
established responsibility of the operator, and thus it cannot shift the burden
of proof regarding that issue.

In addition, we cannot accept DER's suggestion that 25 Pa.Code §21.101(d)
shifts the burden of proof to Sechan to show that the permit revocation was :i_mproper.3
By its own terms, §21.101(d) applies only to "orders requiring abatement of alleged
environmental damage." We cannot stretch this language to permit suspensions and
analogous actions such as the termination of interim status. Although the ultimate
purpose of a permit suspension may be to prevent further pollution, the issues
underlying the issuance of an abatement order and those underlying a permit sus-—
pension are not identical. Therefore, §21.101(d) does not apply.

The considerations such as those set forth supra concerning the burden
of proof with regard to the permit suspension apply as well to the termination of
interim status, to the extent they are relevant. If the cause and continued
existence of the groundwater contamination is relevant to a determination of the
propriety of the interim status termination, then it will be Sechan's burden to

denmonstrate by clear and convincing evidence that the problem has been remedied.

3. See footnote 1, supra, concerning the relevance of §21.101(d) in the
context of the cessation order appealed herein.
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DER, however, retains the ultimate burden of demonstrating that its action was
proper, given whatever facts are eventually established concerning the existence, -

cause and abatement of the pollution.

ORDER

WHEREFORE, it is ordered that:

1. BAppellant bears the burden of proving by clear and convincing
evidence that the pollution existing in the vicinity of its hazardous waste
disposal facility has been abated and that the source of that pollution no
longer is present. This burden includes both the burden of production and the
burden of persuasion and must be met by clear and convincing evidence.

2. DER retains the ultimate burden of proof, i.e., production and
persuasion, with regard to the issue of whether its actions were an abuse of
diécretion or an otherwise arbitrary exercise of its duties and functions, to
the extent that this issue remains in dispute after resolution of the factual
issue described in paragraph 1, supra.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
Ay A

EDWARD GERJUOY
Member

DATED: June 18, 1985

cc: Bureau of Litigation
Lawrence A. Demase, Esquire
Howard J. Wein, Esquire
Linn K. Beachem
Harley N. Trice II, Esquire
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

KEYSTONE MINING COMPANY, INC. .-

“Docket No. 83-241-G

Issued: June 19, 1985

: ‘ . _
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

SYNCPSIS

Summary judgment is granted for DER in this appeal of a surface mining
license denial. The appeai— is not moot althdﬁgh the year for which the license
was requested hés bassed. The operator intends to continue to conduct coal mining
6perations_within the Oonmonwealth;' therefore, this DER action is of the type which
is capable .of repetition yet would evade review if the normal principles of moot-
ness were applied to the appeal.

DER properly exerciséd its duties‘ and functions when.it denied the mining
license. Pursuant to section 3.1 of the Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation
Act, 52 P.S. _§1396.3a,' DER must deny thé license if it finds that the applicant has
demonstrated a lack of ability or intention to comply with the Act as indicated
by past or continuing violations. The appellant herein admitted thaLt it had previously
mined a site, as a subcontractor, which it subsequently agreed to reclaim. It also

admitted that the site has not been reclaimed to date. Consequently, DER did not
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abuse its discretion in determining that Appellant has shown a lack of ability

or intention to comply with the Act. Having previously mined the site, Appellant
was under an obligation to reclaim the same. The failure to do so constitutes a
violation of the Act itself, as well as a breach of the agreement which it entered
into with DER. Therefore, there remains no disputed issue of material fact and DER

is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. The appeal is dismissed.

OPINION

History

Keystone has appealed DER's denial of Keystone's application for a 1983
surface mining operator's license. Although this denial now is technically moot,
since surface mining license applications must be renewed yearly [25 Pa.Code §87.18],
we nevertheless shall rule on this appeal because Keystone continues to express
its intention to engage in surface mining operations [see Keystone's Reply to DER's
Motion for Summary Judgment, filed July 23, 1984]. Thus Keystone may be expected
to re-apply for a surface mining operator's license if we now were to dismiss this
appeal as moot. In other words, this appeal falls squarely into the exception to
the usual doctrine that a case becomes moot when the court cannot grant relief;
mmder this exception "a case that is technically moot may be decided on its merits
if it involves a quest_:ion that is capable of repetition but is likely to evade

review if the normal rules on mootness are applied.” Al Hamilton Contracting

(Qompany v. DER, Docket No. 83-248-G (Opinion and Order, February 23, 1984). We

note that Keystone's continued desire to engage in surface mining is the distinguish-

ing fact between the instant appeal and the appeal of Paul C. Harman v. DER, Docket

No. 82-121-M (Opinion and Order, October 26, 1984), which was dismissed for mootness.
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DER's letter denying the license application, dated September 21,
1983, read (in pertinent part) as follows:

The reasons upon which this license denial are
based were discussed at your informal hearing. They
include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. There arecurrently outstanding violations
of the Surface Mining Act and Clean Streams Law at
the Cal Smith site covered by MDP 38A77SM37 and
MP 1494-6(c) and Amendments, which violations were
created by Keystone Mining Company, Inc. ("Keystone")
when it mined the site as a subcontractor for Cal
Smith. The specific violations were identified in
inspection reports, notices of violation or abatement
orders and at the informal conference.

2. Joan Becker, who is an officer of Keystone,
was an officer of Becker Coal Company, Inc. This
association precludes the Department from issuing a
surface mining license to Keystone, because there are
outstanding violations against Blake Becker, Jr. and
his wholly owned subsidiary — Becker Coal Co., Inc.

3. Keystone has failed to camply with the pro-
visions of a letter agreement dated October 5, 1981,
which it entered into with the Department concerning
violations at the aforementioned Cal Smith site.

4. Keystone is the alter ego of Blake Becker
and there are outstanding violations of law charged
to Mr. Becker.

5. The combination of all the foregoing indicates
to the Department that Keystone is either unable or
wmwilling to comply with the provisions of the Surface
Mining Act and the Clean Streams Iaw.

The Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (the "Act"), 52 P.S.
§1396.3a(b) states:

(b) The department shall not issue any surface
mining operator's license or permit or renew or amend
any license or permit if it finds, after investigation,
and an opportunity for an informal hearing that (1) the
applicant has failed and continues to fail to comply
with any provision of this act or of any of the acts
repealed or amended hereby or (2) the applicant has
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shown a lack of ability or intention to

comply with any provision of this act or of
any of the acts repealed or amended hereby

as indicated by past or continuing violations.
Any person, partnership, association or corp-
oration which has engaged in unlawful conduct
as defined in section 18.6 or which has a
partner, associate, officer, parent corporation,
subsidiary corporation, contractor or sub-
contractor which has engaged in such unlawful
conduct shall be denied any license or permit
required by this act unless the license or
permit application demonstrates that the un-—
lawful conduct is being corrected to the satis-
faction of the department.

-On this basis, together with the reasons for license denial listed supra, DER
filed a motion for summary judgment on May 23, 1984. Keystone's response to this
motion "denied that any alleged violations are properly chargeable to Keystone
under the facts of this case.” DER's motion did not point to any admissions by
Keystone that might contradict.its denial of "alleged violation properly charge-
able to Keystone." Indeed IER's motion was not accompanied by any evidence in
support of the motion, other than an affidavit by a DER District Compliance
Specialist, to the effect that the averments of the motion were true and correct
"to the best of the affiant's knowledge, information and belief." Keystone's
Reply to DER's motion denied most of the allegations in DER'g,motion, and was
accompanied by an affidavit by one Wayne Dougherty, affirming that the averments
in Keystone's Reply were "true and correct or satisfactorily proven toﬂle "‘5est
of his knowledge and belief." Therefore the Board denied the motion, on November 2,
1984.

Thereafter DER has served requests for admissions on Reystone, and
Keystone's answers thereto have been filed. With these admissions in hand, DER on
March 8, 1985 has renewed its motion for summary judgment. As of this writing,

April 24, 1985, Keystone has not responded to this renewed motion, although our
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Pre-Hearing Orders Nos. 1 and 2 clearly require that responses to motions be
filed within twenty days of receipt. In fact, Pre-Hearing Order No. 2 states:
3. 2Any party desiring to respond to a

petition or motion filed by another party must

do so within 20 days of receipt of the petition

or motion being responded to. 1 Pa.Code §35.179.

THE BOARD WILL NOT NOTIFY THE PARTIES THAT A

RESPONSE MAY BE DUE. (Upper case in the original)

In view of the circumstances just recounted, we deem waived Keystone's
opportunity to respond to DER's renewed motion for summary judgment. Consequently
we proceed to rule on DER's motion. However, we will give due consideration to
Keystone's reply to DER's original motion for summary judgment, where such reply

is not inconsistent with Keystone's later-filed answers to DER's requests for

admissions.

Keystone's Admissions

. DER's renewed motion for summary judgment rests primarily on its claim
‘that Keystone failed to comply with the provisions of an October 5, 1981 letter

agreement between Keystone and DER (see paragraph 3 of DER's originally offered

reasons for the license denial, quoted supra). This agreement was incorporated ‘\’§$

in a letter from DER's Compliance Specialist John Matviya to "Frederick V. Hudaqu
, tld
President Mine Reclamation and Land Development Corporation and Keystone Mining

®., Inc." The letter, in substantial entirety, reads as follows:
Dear Mr. Hudach:

I have received a letter dated September 29,
1981, from your attorney, William L. Henry. In it,
Mr. Henry stated that you were making a commitment
to a certain schedule for reclaiming the Calvin
Smith mining sites and for correcting the violations
cited against Calvin Smith. In order that there be
no misunderstanding as to your commitments I am
restating them below. I have exchanged dates for
seasons of the year so that the deadline is clear
and also complies with the regulations.
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Keystone Mining Company, Inc. and/or Mine
Reclamation and Land Development Corporation
will undertake the following by the dates
specified:

1. By November 15, 1981, install and main-
tain adequate erosion and sedimentation controls,
in accordance with Chapter 102 of the Rules and
Regulations, 25 PA Code Chapter 102, on the north,
west and south sides of Mining Permit #1494-3 &
1494-3(a), (the Lawrence Smith property).

2. By June 1, 1982, install and maintain
adequate erosion and sedimentation controls, in
accordance with Chapter 102 of the Rules and Regu-
lations, 25 PA Code Chapter 102, on the east side
of Mining Permit #1494-3 and 1494-3(3).

3. By June 1, 1982, commence backfilling and
reclamation of Mining Permit #1494-3 and 1494-3(a).

4. By September 15, 1982, complete reclamation,
including backfilling, grading, restoration and
revegetation, with drainage controlled, on Mining
Permit #1494-3 and 1494-3(a7).

5. By May 15, 1982, camplete the revegetation
of the Vivian L. & Robert M. Scott and Marlin Mohney
properties on Mining Permit #1494-6.

6. By May 15, 1982, camplete reclamation, in-
cluding backfilling, grading, restoration and revegeta-
tion, with drainage controlled, on the Vivian L. &
Robert M. Scott and Marlin Mohney properties on Mining
Permit #1494-6.

7. By September 15, 1982, complete reclamation,
including backfilling, grading, restoration and re-
vegetation, with drainage controlled, on the Eugene
Reed property on Mining Permit #1494-6.

8. By September 15, 1982, complete reclamation,
including backfilling, grading, restoration, and re-
vegetation, with drainage controlled, on the Ralph
Smith property on Mining Permit #1494-38A77SM37-01-5.

9. During the time covered by this letter agree-
ment, all laws, rules and regulation of this Department,
and all conditions of the above referenced Mine Drainage
Permits, will be complied with except as specifically
extended by the above compliance deadlines.
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I would like your signature and that of
your attorney, concurring with the abowve commit-
ments. Upon the signing of this letter, and the
receipt of the $50.00 per acre reclamation fee,
Mining Permit #1494-38A77SM37-01-5 will be issued
to Calvin-Smith. Please remember that all erosion
controls and treatment facilities must be installed
and approved by the Mine Conservation Inspector
before mining commences.

1If the above is acceptable to you, please sign
below. If not, notify me immediately.

The letter was signed, underneath Mr. Matviya's signature, by Joan Becker, Secretary,
for the Keystone Mining Company and for the Mine Reclamation and Land Development
Corporation. The letter also was "Approved as to form and legality” by William L.
Henry, identified as "Attorney for Keystone Mining Company, Inc. and Mine Reclamation
and Land Development Corporation.”

DER's Request for Admissions No. 1 reads "Will the Appellant admit that
it executed a letter-Agreement with the Department, attached hereto as Appendix A?"
Appendix A is the above—quoted letter from Matviya to Hudach. Keystone's reply to
this requested admission reads:

1. ZAppellant Keystone Mining Company admits
that it executed agreements with the Department.
The document attached as Appendix "A" does not
represent the entire agreement, referring on its
face to a letter dated September 29, 1981 from
Attorney William L. Henry, who represented Keystone
Mining Company, Inc. and Mine Reclamation and Land
Development Corporation. Said letter of September 29,
1981 is attached as Appendix A-1, and itself refers
to other agreements the terms of which have been
previously set forth in Appellant's Pre-Hearing
Memorandum.

The signature of Joan Becker, signing as Secre-
tary, and of William L. Henry, Attorney, for both
Keystone and MRLDC, are admitted to be genuine, and
Appendix "A" is a true and correct copy of ‘the original
which Appellants are willing to have admitted into
evidence, along with Appendix A-1 and related corres-
pondence without necessity for further proof.
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L.
i,

Appellant dcges not hereby intend to waive

objection as to the legality of the agreement,

the mutual mistake of fact and/or law under

which it was executed, the failure or lack of

consideration for the agreement; or any claim

of antecedent breach or ant1c1patory repudiation

by the Department with respect tog ithe agreen‘ent

of the parties as set forth &lsevhere in these

proceedings and related proceedings.

The letter of September 29, 1981, referred to in the above quote,
was written by William L. Henry to Mr. Matviya. This letter sets forth a
sorevhat less detailed reclamation schedule than does Mr. Matviya's October 5,
1981 letter in response, quoted supra; our reading of the September 29, 1981
letter discerns no references to "other agreements". The contents and construc-
tion of the September 29, 1981 letter are irrelevant however. The October 5,
1981 letter clearly is an integrated agreement on its face. Mr. Matviya
carefully wrote, "In order that there be no misunderstanding as to your commit-
ments I am restating them below." Keystone has admitted that the October 5,
1981 letter agreement was signed by a responsible Keystone officer and by Keystone's
attorney. The letter was signed without any written reservations. Mr. Matviya's
letter is quite free from ambiguities which the September 29, 1981 letter might
be called upon to resolve; indeed, Keystone's Admission No. 1 does not claim the
October 5, 1981 letter agreement is ambiguwous in any way. In short, under standard
contract law principles the prior September 29, 1981 letter has no bearing whatsoever
on the nature of the agreement between the parties memorialized by the later
October 5, 1981 letter.
DER's remaining requests for admissions mainly are concerned with

Keystone's performance of the scheduled tasks set forth in the October 5, 1981
agreement. In particular Keystone has admitted that it has not met the require-

ments 4-7 of that agreement, quoted supra. Indeed, Keystone admits that "Mining
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Permit Nos. 1494-3 and 1491-3(A) remain unreclaimed, in that the site has not

been completely backfilled, graded and revegetated." Similarly, Keystone admits
that "complete reclamation of the Eugene Reed property, Mining Permit No. 1494-6,
has not been accomplished to date [February 25, 1985, when Keystone's admissions

were filed]."

The License Refusal

Paragraph 1 of DER's September 21, 1983 letter to Keystone, denying
the license renewal, alleges "There are currently outstanding violations of the
Surface Mining Act and Clean Streams Law at the Cal Smith site . . . , which
viclations were created by Keyé;tone . +» «» When it mined the site as a subcontractor
for Cal Smith."

There is no doubt that under the Surface Mining Act any person who
engages in surface mining is inviolation if he fails to properly reclaim land
he has affected by such mining. 52 P.S. §§1396.4(a) (2) and 1396.24; 25 Pa.Code

§86.13. The record before us establishes that Keystone fits this description.

In paragraph 2 of its pre—ﬁéaring memorandum Keystone admits that:
Keystone Mining Company . . . previously conducted
mining operations as a subcontractor to Calvin
Smith Coal Company on a single site in Jefferson
County, Pennsylvania, Mining Permit No. 1494-6 and
« 1494-6A known as the Scott, Mohney and Reed
o properties.
Since all documents filed with the Board are subject to the execution and verifi-
~cation requirements of 1 Pa.Code §§33.11 and 33.12, it is appropriate for us to
consider the statement just quoted in evaluating whether there remains any "genuine

issue of material fact" here. Pa.R.C.P. 1035(b). See also Lewis Alderfer v. DER,

FHB Docket No. 82-038-M (Opinion and Order issued January 20, 1984).
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Keystone admits it mined the property covered by Mining Permit 1494-6;
therefore, it has the obligation to reclaim the same by virtue of the Surface
Mining Act itself. In addition, Keystone agreed, in paragraphs 5, 6 and 7 of
the agreement of October 3, 1981 to assume the obligation of reclaiming that
property. As noted above, Keystone admits that the area covered by Permit
No.‘ 1494-6, known as the Eugene Reed property, remains unreclaimed to date. Thus,
it is clear that Reystone has failed and continues to fail to comply with the
Surface Mining Act as well as with the terms of the agreement. Consequently,
there remains no material factual dispute here.

This matter is therefore reduced to a single legal issue, i.e., whether,
given the established lack of dompliance, DER properly exercised ‘its duties and
functions in denying Keystone its 1983 surface mining license. Paragraph 5 of

the denial letter appealed herein, quoted supra, states that DER has concluded

that Keystone is either unable or unwilling to comply with the Surface Mining
Act. This conclusion is based in part upon the finding that Keystone has failed
to complete reclamation in accordance with the terms of the October 3, 1981
agreement. Under §1396.3a(b), the lack of ability or intention to comply must
be established by "past or continuing violations."

It is established that Keystone in fact mined the site covered by
Permit No. 1494-6 and failed to reclaim the same; therefore, there is no question
that Keystone is in violation of the Act. The fact that such mining was con-
ducted in the capacity of a subcontractor is immaterial. A subcontractor is
jointly and severally liable with its principal for violations of the Surface

Mining Act. 'Black Fox Mining and Development Corporation v. DER, EHB Docket No.

84-114-G (Adjudication issued April 29, 1985). As we noted in that decision,

section 3 of the Surface Mining Act, 52 P.S. §1396.3, indicates a clear legislative
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intention to hold all parties who have engaged in surface mining operations
liable for any violations which occur as a result of those operations. Section 3
provides in pertinent part that "where more than one person is engaged in surface
mining activities in a single operation, they shall be deemed jointly and
severally liable for compliance with the provisions of this Act." Section 3
defines a "person" as, inter alia, "any natural person, partnership, association
or corporation", a definition within which Keystone clearly falls. Keystone's
continued failure to reclaim lands which it itself has mined is sufficient cause
for DER to determine that it has demonstrated a lack of ability or intention to
comply with the Surface Mining Act. (Indeed, this failure now has persisted for
two and one half vears.) Therefore, DER is entitled to judgment herein as a
matter of law.

Having determined that Keystone's failure to complete reclamation of
land which it previously had mined constitutes a violation of the Surface Mining
Act for which DER may properly deny a surface mining license, we need not decide
whether Keystone's admitted failure to comply with the terms of the agreement
of October 3, 1981 concerning reclamation of those same lands likewise would
amount to a violation of the Act, on the basis of which DER could rest a

license denial.

ORDER
WHEREFORE, this 19th day of June , 1985, it is ordered that DER's Motion

for Summary Judgment is granted and this appeal is dismissed.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

EDWARD GERJUOY, ¥Member,/  /
DATED: June 19, 1985
cc: Bureau of Litigation
Alan S. Miller, Esquire, Pittsburgh, for the Commonwealth
Allan E. Macleod, Escuire, (oraorolis. for Ropmellant
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OPTNION AND ORDER

o | |
25 Pa.Code §21.101(d) does not shift the burden of proof, i.e'.. the
burden of persuasion, to the Appellant in this appeal of a DER order. | ’Ihe
order at issue concerns safety practices in Appellant's deep mine. It is not
an order "requiring abatement of alleged environmental damage," suéh as would
be 'requiréd to trigger the operétion of §21.101(d).. Appéllant bears the burden

of persuasion on any affirmative,' defenses which it raises.

OPINION
Pennsylvania Mj_ne,s' (hereinafter "PaM") has timely appealed a DER order

concerning PaM's mining and ventilation practices in its Greenwich Nos. 1 and 2

mines. The pertinent terms of this order are:

1. Effective immediately you will put into
effect and enforce the following system of mining:
The return side of all working sections will be
advanced first, driving two entries and making the
air connection (cut thro) between them, vou will be
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permitted in case of bolting problems to mine
20 feet out of the third entry while numbers

1 and 2 are being bolted, this system will be
strictly enforced at all times.

2. Starting at once you will establish and
put into effect a ventilationg (sic) plan for
existing and future development of mains, sub-
mains and butt entries with two splits of air
in each, using the outside entries as returns.

3. Starting at once you will provide a
minimum quantity of air of 20,000 CFM for all
longwall face ventilation panels.

4. Stoppings between intake and return
entries shall be erected of solid concrete blocks
set in cement, in addition, serious consideration
shall be given to spraying these overcasts and .
stoppings to reduce leakage.

5. Cavities along track entries, belt entries
and supply roads shall be ventilated by installing

pPipe up into the cavity and be vented directly into
the return air course.

The order was issued after an investigation by DER; according to DER, the order
was necessitated by the failure of PaM's present mining practices to control
methane accumilation.

This Opinion addresses the question: Who has the burden of proof in
this appeal? Under the Board's rules, 25 Pa.Code §21.101(b) (3), DER has the
burden of proof:

where it orders a party to take affirmative

action to abate air or water pollution; or

any other condition or nuisance, except as

otherwise provided in this rule.
PaM has been ordered to take affirmative action, in this case to abate allegedly
hazardous methane accumulations. Therefore the Board, on December 20, 1984,
issued an Order stating (in pertinent part): "In this appeal, DER will have the

burden of proof and the burden of going forward, unless DER can convince the
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Board to rule otherwise.” DER has attempted to convince the Board to rule
otherwise, via a brief to which PaM has responded. Therefore this burden of
proof question now is ready for decision.

DER advances the following reasons for assigning the burden of proof
to PaM: (a) in this appeal, 25 Pa.Code §21.101(d), which provides an exception
to §21.101(b) (3) quoted supra, is applicable, especially in view of 25 Pa.Code
§21.101(a); (b) the presumption of validity which attaches to actions of DER
and the presumption that the Legislature favors the public interest against
Jprivate interests imply PaM should be assigned the burden of proof. We are not
convinced by these arguments, however, as elaborated below.

The text of 25 Pa.Code §21.101(d) is:

(d) Wwhere the Department issues an order

requiring abatement of alleged environmental

damage, the private party shall nonetheless

bear the burden of proof and the burden of pro-

ceeding when it appears that the Department

has initially established:

(1) that some degree of pollution or

environmental damage is taking place, or is

likely to take place, even if it is not estab-

lished to the degree that a prima facie case

is made that a law or regulation is being

violated; and

(2) that the party alleged to be

responsible for the environmental damage is in

possession of the facts relating to such environ-

mental damage or should be in possession of them.
The language of §21.101(d) clearly limits its application to appeals "Where the
Department issues an order requiring abatement of alleged environmental damage."
The instant appealed-from DER order is intended to abate a work-place hazard, not
environmental damage. Thus §21.101(d) is inapplicable on its face. Moreover, in

‘Teon E. Kocher v. DER, 1972 EHB 161, the Board assigned the burden of proof to

CER where DER had issued an order to repair water impoundments found to be hazard-
ous. Although Kocher admittedly is one of the Board's earliest adjudications, its
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reasoning about the bﬁrden of proof when DER seeks to abate a hazardous condition
seems sound and was accepted by the Commonwealth Court {9 Pa.Crwlth. 110, 305 A.2d
784 (1973)].

As for 25 Pa.Code §21.101(a), it reads as follows:

(a) In proceedings before the Board the
burden of proceeding and the burden of proof
shall be the same as at common law in that
such burden shall normally rest with the party
asserting the affirmative of any issue. It
shall generally be the burden of the party
asserting the affirmative of the issue to
establish it by a preponderance of the evidence.
In cases where a party has the burden of proof
to establish his case by a preponderance of the
evidence, the Board may nonetheless require the
other party to assume the burden of going for-
ward with the evidence in whole or in part if
that party is in possession of facts or should
have knowledge of facts relevant to the issue.

Thus, as PaM argues, §21.101(a) cannot justify more than shifting the burden of
going forward to PaM; under §21.101(a) the burden of persuasion--which is the
burden DER wants shifted to PaM--remains with DER, "the party asserting the
affirmative">order in this appeal. Nor can the presumptions DER cites, namely
 of validity and of favoring the public over private interests, shift the burden

of persuasion, for reasons amply discussed in W. P. Stahlman Coal Co. v. DER,

Docket No. 83-301-G (Opinion and Order, April 29, 1985).
DER also argues as follows:

In the alternative, if §21.101(d) were not
found to be applicable, under 25 P.S. §21.101(b) (3),
the Department would have the burden of proof in
the instant appeal, to show (1) that Pennsylvania
Mines' mining and ventilation practices and pro-
cedures were in violation of the Act, or were
unsafe practices, and (2) the required mining and
ventilation practices and procedures were safe.
Bethlehem Mines Corporation v. CER, EHB No. 82-067-G,
Opinion and Order Sur Motion for Summary Judgment
at pages 8-9, February 16, 1983. Once these were
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established the burden would shift to

Pennsylvania Mines to show that the mining

and ventilation practices and procedures

required by the Department would not pro-

mote the health, safety, and welfare of the

workers or would be unreasonable.
However, this statement, though in large measure a correct statement of legal
principles governing this appeal, does not imply (as DER apparently feels is
inmplied) that the burden of persuasion in this appeal shifts to PaM once DER
has met the initial burdens (1) and (2) listed in the quotation. Under 25 Pa.
Code §21.101(b) (3) and under established precedent, DER has the burden of

showing that the order it issued was within DER's discretion. Warren Sand and

Gravel Company, Inc. v. DER, 20 Pa.Cnwlth. 186, 341 A.2d 556 (1975). To meet

this burden, DER certainly must show the items (1) and (2) listed in the above
quotation, although we would have preferred to write: (2) the order's required

mining and ventilation practices will provide safe operation. Bethlehem Mines

Corporation v. DER, Docket No. 82-067-G, 1983 EHB 296 at 304 (Opinion and Order,

February 16, 1983). PaM may try to counter DER's showing of the aforesaid items
(1) and (2) with various affirmative defenses, wherein PaM bears the burden of
persuasion. However, the fact that PaM bears the burdén in its affirmative
defenses does not shift the ultimate burden of proof in this appeal. It still

is DER's burden to show it did not abuse its discretion; it is not PaM's burden
i:o show DER did abuse its discretion. However, the burden we have placed on DER
does not mean that DER must show its order quoted supra is the only or best means

of ensuring safe mine operations. Bethlehem Mines, supra; see also Coolspring

Township v. DER, Docket No. 81-134-G, 1983 EHB 151 at 173 (Adjudication,

August 8, 1983).
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ORDER

WHEREFORE, the Board's December 20, 1984 Order, that DER will have

the burden of proof and the burden of going forward in this appeal, is affirmed.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

WZZ/M

EDWARD GERJUOY ¢

DATED: June 20, 1985

cc: Bureau of Litigation
Joseph T. Kosek, Jr., Esquire
William F. Larkin, Esquire
R. Henry Moore, Esquire
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‘COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
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and THOMAS AND TAMMY RIETSCHA, Intervenors

'OPINTON AND ORDER

- SYNOPSI

Res judicata and collateral estcjppel do .not apply to preclude litigation

of issues cohcerning} an order of the Department of Environmental Re‘soﬁrces' (DER)
requiring Appellants to take certain actions concerning fheir alleged degradation
of water supplies. "An adjudication, by"thev federal Office of Heariﬁgs and Appééls
on a civil pen_alty' assessniént iésued by the federal Office of Surface Mining (_OSM)
regarding a portion of the alleged waté‘rv sﬁpply degradation iproble;ﬁ'has bno pre- . _ |
ive effect ’ﬁ”ré vsi.nce OSi. ana DER are not 1_1'1 privity w1tn oné ahbthér. | |
A prior, unaépealed DER order is final al:ld therefore not subject-to

challenge in this subsequent proceeding. The findings of said order are considered

established for the purposes of this matter.
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OPINION

Appellant (hereinafter "NCF") has appealed a DER order requiring
NCF to restore the water supplies of a number of residents in the vicinity
of NCF's. surface mining operation in Pine Township, Indiana County. DER's
order found that the wells serving these residents had been "contaminated and
degraded" by NCF's surface mining operations. Extensive hearings on the merits
of this appeal have been held, and are scheduled to resume (on September 23,
1985). Therefore this matter normally would not yet be oconsidered ripe for
adjudication. NCF has raised a purely legal issue which can be decided now,
however, and which could be dispositive of this appeal. In particular, NCF
argues that an adjudication filed on August 13, 1982 by the Office of Surface
Mining ("OSM") requires this Board to adjudicate this appeal in favor of NCF,
on grounds of issue preclusion. This issue preclusion claim is the main subject
of this Opinion. But we also examine DER's claim that an unappealed DER order
to NCF, dated June 25, 1981, precludes NCF from challenging some of DER'sS con-

tentions in the instant appeal.

Preclusive Effect of OSM Adjudication

The adjudication was issued by Administrative Law Judge Sheldon L.
Shepherd, of the Interior Department's Office of Hearings and Appeals (OHA),
after a full hearing on the merits of NCF's appeal of an OSM civil penalty
assessment. OSM had assessed the civil penalty because NCF had not replaced
the water supply of Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Watterson; after an inspection by OSM's
Mr. Yacovone, the OSM had found that NCF's surface mining operations had dele-

teriously affected the Wattersons' well during 1980 and 1981. According to

Judge Shepherd's summary of the testimony, Mrs. Watterson testified that, beginning
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in November 1980, the water in her well had diminished in quantity and quality.
Other residents in the area, notably Mary Simo and Judy Yarnell, testified that
their wells had been adversely affected as well. Nevertheless, Judge Shepherd
sustained NCF's appeal of the OSM civil penalty assessment. His findings and

rulings, in toto, were as follows:

In a penalty assessment case such as this the
respondent has the burden of going forward to estab-
lish a prima facie case and the ultimate burden of
persuasion as to the fact of violation and the amount
of the penalty (43 CFR 4.1155). 1In the instant case
a prima facie case was established by the respondent
by the testimony of Mxs. Watterson, Mrs. Yarnell and
Mrs. Simo along with OSM Exhibit 5 and the testimony
of Mr. Yacavone.

However, upon examining the documentary evidence
in this case and considering the testimony of the
witnesses, I feel compelled to conclude that the
respondent did not carry the ultimate burden of persua-
sion as to the fact of violation. The respondent did
not overcome the evidence of the petitioner which in-
cluded the extensive investigation conducted under the
supervision of Mr. Noll along with the evidence by the
petitioner's witnesses of the shortcomings in the water
analysis by the respondent and the persuasive testimony
of Mr. Wilson who had three decades of experience
drilling and servicing wells who testified that the
iron encountered in the Watterson well and the other
wells was not unusual and that most wells need servicing.

Furthermore, it would seem to me that, if there
was a significant amount of water movement from the
regional aquifer through the aquitard, there would not
have been the kind of failure complained of in late
1980 and early 1981 in the Watterson well. 1In substance
I find that the evidence of the respondent establishes
mere possibilities or "oould bes" rather than overcoming
the burden placed upon the respondent by the evidence of
the petitioner.

Under recent precedent, an adjudication by one administrative tribunal
(in this case OHA) can have binding effect on adjudications by a second administra-
tive tribunal (here the EHB). Restatement Judgments 24, §83. However, for reasons

explained infra, we cannot agree with NCF that the above-quoted language suffices to

- 561 -




preclude DER from issuing the order presently appealed-from, i.e., suffices to
require that we sustain the instant appeal. In the first place, DER was not a
party in the OHA hearing which led to Judge Shepherd's adjudication. Therefore,
as NCF recognizes, in order for Judge Shepherd's adjudication to have a binding

res judicata effect in the instant appeal, DER and OSM must be regarded as being

"in privity". Thompson v. Karastan Rug Mills, 228 Pa.Super. 260, 323 A.2d 341

(1974). The standard tests for privity for res judicata purposes require some

mutual or successive relationship to a right of property, title or estate.

Central Pennsylvania Lumber Co. v. Carter, 348 Pa. 429, 35 A.2d 282 (1944); Estate

of William Flinn, 479 Pa. 312, 388 A.2d 672 (1978). Obviously there is no such

relationship between OSM and DER.
NCF argues, however, that under recent federal court holdings there is

privity for purposes of res judicata if there is "a sufficiently close relationship

between parties to the first proceeding and parties to the second proceeding." NCF
further argues that the necessary "close relationship" between DER and OSM does
exist because under the Federal Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act ("FSMCRA"),
30 USC §§1201 et seqg., OSM has primary jurisdiction over surface mining regulation;
consequently, according to NCF, DER's authority to regulate surface mining, and
therefore to issue its appealed-from order to NCF under state statutes,——namely
the Pa. Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act ("SMA"), 52 P.S. §§1396.1
et seq., and the Clean Streams Law, 35 P.S. §§691.1 et seq.-—stems solely from the
federal government's delegation to Pennsylvania of the aforesaid primary jurisdiction
to regulate surface mining.

We are not convinced by these arguments. Not one of NCF's numerous cited
cases holds that a state agency like DER can be in privity with a federal agency
like OSM. Under our federal system of government, the United States and the Common-

wealth of Pemnsylvania are independently sovereign entities. NCF points to no
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statutory provision or memorandum of understanding which implies that OSM
(in its prior civil penalty action) was acting on behalf of DER and could
bind DER by its results. As DER argues, in the instant appeal DER is attempting

to enforce Pemnsylvania Law, not federal law [see Ralph Bloom v. DER, EHB Docket

No. 84-145-G (Adjudication, February 20, 1985)]; this basic fact is not vitiated
by the additional fact that OSM is willing to defer its enforcement of the FSMCRA
provided DER properly enforces the SMA.

We conclude that DER and OSM are not in privity for res judicata purposes.

For the same reason, namely lack of privity, issues litigated in the OSM hearing

before Judge Shepherd are not precluded from relitigation in this appeal by NCF
.1 . . . . .

of a DER action. Moreover, even if DER and OSM were in privity, application of

res judicata and/or collateral estoppel principles still would be unjustified

because the issues in the instant appeal are not identical with the issues liti-
gated in the previous OHA appeal. “

The OHA action was concerned solely with the propriety of OSM's civil |
penalty assessment agéinst NCF for degradation of the Watterson well during 1980
and 1981. The instant appealedffrom DER order requires NCF to replace seven
residential water supplies; these seven wells allegedly affected by NCF's mining
activities include the Watterson well, but also include the wells serving the

residences of Thomas Rietscha, Michael Bugal, Edward Beilchick, Dwight Yarnell,

1. It is true that for purposes of collateral estoppel it is not absolutely
necessary that there be privity between the parties in the first and second actions.
Thus if NCF had been found responsible for the Watterson well's degradation in the
original OHA hearing, it is possible that collateral estoppel would preclude NCF's
arguing in the instant appeal that it is not responsible for the same well's degra-
dation. However, the actual holding in the OHA adjudication does not permit
"offensive" use of collateral estoppel against NCF, and the lack of privity between
0SM and DER prevents NCF from using against DER the favorable holdings NCF obtained
against OSM. See Restatement Judgments, 2d, §29.
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Richard Simo and Merle Lydic. Judge Shepherd's findings and rulings (quoted
supra) that NCF had not been proven responsible for degradation of the Watterson
well are far too indefinite for extrapolation to NCF's responsibility for the
degradation (alleged by DER) of the other six residential wells in the area.
Furthermore, even for the Watterson well the issues involved in the
OHA action and the instant appeal are not obviously the same. The appealed-
from DER order finds that NCF's mining operations contaminated and degraded the
Watterson well (along with the other six residen;iial wells) "on or about March

1983." Because our hearings are de novo [Warren Sand and Gravel Co. v. DER,

20 Pa.Cmwlth. 186, 341 A.2d 556 (1975)], and because DER obviously could renew
its order at any time so as to meke the order's findings more current, we take
our obligation in this appeal to be that we must decide whether--on all the
evidence before us, including evidence developed after March 1983--DER's require-
ment that NCF replace the Watterson well (and the other six water supplies) is

an abuse of discretion. DER already has placed in evidence analyses of water
samples taken from the Watterson well as late as October 24, 1984 [DER Exhibit
14-3]; NCF has done the same [NCF Exhibit 36(a)]. Whether NCF has caused degra-
dation of the Watterson well in late 1984 is not the same question as whether
NCF had degraded the Watterson well by 1981. In addition, NCF's own witness

testified at the hearings in this appeal that the Watterson well was deepened

in June-July of 1981, and that an aquifer presumably discharging into the Watterson

well was plugged in February-March 1984 (N.T. 1418). Thus the basic geologic
circunstances determining the water supply to the Watterson well are very
different now than they were for most of the period 1980-81 that Judge Shepherd

was examining.
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In sum, use of the OHA adjudication for res judicata or collateral

estoppel purposes cannot be justified, for any of the seven water supplies named

in the appealed-from DER order which is the subject of this appeal.

Preclusive Effect of DER's June 25, 1981 Order

DER asserts, and NCF does not deny, that on June 25, 1981 DER issued
an order to NCF containing the following findings:

(a) Commencing on or about August 6, 1979,
and continuing to the present, North Cambria Fuel
Company ("North Cambria") has conducted a surface
mining operation in Pine Township, Indiana County;

(b) The mining operation is authorized by
Mine Drainage Permit No. 39A78SMl and Mining Permit
No. 10-49, and Mining License No. - 10.

(c) As of January, 1981, the above-referenced
mining operation diminished the rate of recharge of
domestic water wells, causing a water loss at the
residences of Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Watterson, Mr.
and Mrs. Michael Bugal, Mr. and Mrs. Richard Simo,
and Mr. and Mrs. Dwight Yarnell located in Pine
Township, Indiana County, Pennsylvania.

(d) The loss of these water supplies violates
Section 4.2(f) of the Surface Mining Conservation
and Reclamation Act, Act of May 31, 1945, P.L. 1198,
52 P.S. §1396.1 et seq. ("Surface Mining Act") and
constitutes unlawful conduct. :

DER also asserts, and again NCF does not deny, that NCF never appealed this order.

— S P o~ ~ 3 1 3
DER therefore maintains that the above findings are established for the purposes

@

of the instant appeal, and cannot now be challeneged by NCF. NCF argues that
because the foregoing findings were determined by DER without a hearing, and were
never actually litigated between NCF and DER, those findings should be subject to
challenge in the hearing on the merits of this appeal.

It is true that under the general rules for issue preclusion, the liti-
‘gation of findings such as those just quoted should not be precluded in the instant

- 565 -




appeal unless they previously actually had been litigated. Restatement Judg-
ments 2d, §27. Section 27 of the Restatement Judgments 2d also states quite
unequivocally:
In the case of a judgment entered by

confession, consent, or default, none of

the issues is actually litigated. Therefore,

the rule of this Section does not apply with

respect to any issue in _a subsequent action.
NCF's failure to appeal DER's June 25, 1981 order within the 30-day period allowed
by our rules [25 Pa.Code §21.52(a)]--thereby permitting the order to become final

under the holding of Rostosky v. DER, 26 Pa.Cmwlth. 478, 364 A.2d 761 (1976)--

is quite analogous to permitting a default judgment.
On the other hand, this Board regularly has held that the findings in
an unappealed order to a party are final and no longer challengeable in a timely

appeal of a later order to the same party. Municipality of Bethel Park v. DER,

Docket No. 83-067-G, 1984 EHB 716 (Opinion and Order, August 8, 1984); Armond

Wazelle v. DER, Docket No. 83-063-G, 1984 EHB 748 (Opinion and Order, August 21,

1984). We see no reason to depart from such holdings at this time. Consequently
we rule that the above-quoted findings in DER's June 25, 1981 order are established
for the purposes of the instant appeal. We stress that this ruling says nothing
about the validity of NCF's argument that DER should be estopped from putting

these June 25, 1981 findings on the record. Estoppel defenses against DER are
possible, but we are in no position to decide whether the estoppel NCF urges is
warranted without additional testimony about the circumstances surrounding NCF's

failure to appeal the June 25, 1981 order. Bear Creek Watershed Authority v. DER,

Docket No. 84-242-G, 1984 EHB 837 (Opinion and Order, October 29, 1984). 1In this
connection we add, for the parties' guidance, that (for reasons discussed earlier
in this Opinion) the import to this appeal of findings "as of January, 1981" is
unlikely to be more than minor.
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ORDER

WHEREFORE, this 18th day of July, 1985, it is ordered that:

1. Jﬁdge Shepherd's OHA adjudication of August 13, 1982 has no
binding effect ‘w'_hatsoever on the issues or findings of this appeal.

2. The findings in DER's June 25, 1981 order to NCF are established

for the purposes of this appeal; challenges to those findings will not be allowed.

DATED: July 18, 1985

cc: Bureau of Litigation
For the Appellant:
John A. Bonya, Esquire,
Mack and Bonya,
Indiana, PA
For the Commonwealth:
Donald A. Brown, Esquire, Harrisburg, PA
John C. Dernbach, Esquire, Harrisburg, PA
For the Intervenors:
Eugene E. Dice,. Esquire,
Dice & Childe,
Harrisburg, PA
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SEC'HAN LIMESTONE INDUSTRIES, INC.

Docket No. 85-162-G
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DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES i
and SLIPPERY ROCK CREFK CLEAN WATER, INC., '
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- and ARMCI),"]_I\IC., Intervenor

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR MOTTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

SYNOPSIS

‘The 1984 amendments to the federal Resource Censervation 'and Recovery
Act (RCRA), 42 U.S.C. §6901 et geg ., do not preempt the authority of the Common-
.V wealth éf_ Permsylvahi_a to'ireqﬁir‘e the submission of a Part B épplicetion for a
' hazarddue waste .permit'under t;he Permsylvenia'Solid Waste Management Act, 35 P.S.
§6018.101 (if seqg., as implenented vié 25 Pa.Code §7.5.265(z) . 'The federal pro-
visions appiy only to RCRA permlt requirements. The requirements of §75.265(2)
are prerequisites to obtaining a permit uhder, state law. However, summary judg—-
ment is not granted. at this time; the parties have not had an opportunity to
address the issue of whether §75.265(z) requires DER to terminate interim statue
once it has been determined that an operator of a hazardous waste management h

facility has failed to submit the Part B application required by §75.265(z).
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OPINION

This appeal concerns three actions taken by the Pennsylvania Depart-—
ment of Environmental Resources ("DER") affecting a hazardous waste landfill
operated by Appellant, Sechan Limestone Industries ("Sechan"). By a letter
dated April 24, 1985 and an order of April 29, 1985, DER suspended Sechan's
Solid Waste Permit, terminated Sechan's "interim status", and ordered the
cessation of waste disposal activities in a particular area of the landfill known
as the C-1 cell. This opinion discusses DER's authority to terminate Sechan's
interim status. Interim status is granted to allow an existing hazardous waste
management facility to continue to operate while its application for a permit is
being considered. Provisions allowing a grant of interim status exist under both
the state and the federal reguiatory programs dealing with hazardous waste
management. DER has filed a motion for summary judgment seeking a ruling that
it had the authority as a matter of law to terminate Sechan's interim status.
Sechan has argued that DER's authority to terminate interim status has been
preempted by certain amendments to the federal Rescurce Conservation and Recovery
Act, 42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq., the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984.
Before proceeding to the merits of the parties' contentions, the relevant legal

background must be set forth.

A. The Federal Regulatory Program

In 1976, Congress enacted the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
("RCRA"). 42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq. Sections 6921 through 6929 of RCRA, as amended,
deal exclusively with hazardous waste and establish nationally applicable minimum
standards for its management. Under §6926 of the Act, a state may apply to the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for authorization to administer the state's

own hazardous waste program in lieu of the federal program established by RCRA.
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In order to receive authorization under §6926, the state program must be at

least equivalent to the minimum federal requirements, not inconsistent with

those requirements, and not incbnsistent with hazardous waste management programs
in other states. 42 U.S.C. §6926(b). Once EPA determines that these prerequi- -
sites have been met, the state will be granted "final authorization" to administer
its program in the place of the RCRA program and EPA, in effect, will step out of
the picturel 40 CFR, Part 271, Subpart A.

Interim Authorization

If at the time the RCRA requirements take effect, the state already has
in effect a hazardous waste management program but the program cannot immediately
qualify for final authorization, §6926 (c) provides the state with an option whereby
it may be granted temporary authority ("interim authorization") to carry out
portions of its own program in lieu of the RCRA requirements if the evidence sub~
mitted by the state demonstrates the existing state program to be "substantially
equivalent” to the federal requirements. Under the regulations promulgated
pursuant to §6926 [40 CFR Part 271, see esp. §271.121(b)], interim authorization
may be granted in two phases, Phase I and Phase II. Phase I allows the state to
implement those portions of the federal program which establish preliminary, i.e.,
"interim", standards for hazardous waste treatment, storage, and disposal. (40 CFR,
Part 265). Phase II allows the state to administer the permit program for hazard-
ous waste treatment, storage and disposal facilities in lieu of the federal program.
(40 CFR Parts 124, 264, and 270). Once a state has been granted interim authoriza-
tion, either Phase I or Phase II, the state, rather than EPA, has the primary

authority for enforcing the associated program requirements.

lEIF'A retains oversight authority to ascertain that the state program continues
to comply with the federal requirements. See 40 CFR §271.8.
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It is important to understand what the two phases of interim author-
ization entail. With the enactment of RCRA, operators of hazardous waste
facilities must obtain hazardous waste management permits which assure compliance
with the RCRA requirements. Operation without a RCRA permit is prohibited.

42 U.8.C. §6925(a). Since this permit requirement meant that, in theory, hazard-
ous waste facilities in existence on the effective date of RCRA would be without
the necessary permit, and thus required to cease operations, §6925(e) of RCRA
allows for continued operation, despite the lack of a permit, if the operator

has filed a permit application and complied with the RCRA notification provisions
(requiring notice to EPA of the nature of the facility's hazardous waste activities;
42 U.S.C. §6930). Compliance with the requirements of §6925(e) results in a
grant of "interim status" until a final decision is made on the RCRA permit appli-
cation. During the period of interim status, standards other than the final RCRA
operaticnal and design standards are imposed. These "interim status standards”
are contained in 40 CFR, Part 265 and are the standards which a state granted
Phase I interim authorization is empowered to administer. 40 CFR §271.121(b).

Once a state has been granted Phase II authorization it actually carries
out the RCRA permit programin lieu of EPA, and the final RCRA operation and design
standards are applicable. 40 CFR §271.121(b). These standards are found in
40 CFR, Part 264.

Interim Status

Under the regulations promulgated pursuant to RCRA, the RCRA permit
application consists of two parts, Part A and Part B. 40 CFR §270.1(b). Part A
consists of general information concerning the location, scope, and nature of
the hazardous waste operation. Part B is considerably more detailed and reéuires

 information demonstrating how the facility will comply with the RCRA operational
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and design standards contained in 40 CFR, Part 264. See, 40 CFR §§270.13 and
270.14. Operators of existing hazardous waste facilities may satisfy the
requirement of 42 U.S.C. §6925(e) that a permit application be submitted, by
submitting only Part A until such time as EPA requires the submission of Part B.
Timely submission of Part A and compliance with the notification provisions of

42 U.S.C. §6930 result in a grant of interim status by EPA. 40 CFR §270.1(b).

B. The Pennsylvania Regulatory Program

The course of Pennsylvania's legislative actions concerning the manage-
ment of hazardous waste parallels that of the federal law in many particulars.
Prior to 1980, the management of solid waste within the Commonwealth was governed
by the Solid Waste Management Act, the Act of July 31, 1968, P.L. 788, No. 241.
This Act did not contain specific provisions for hazardous waste. In 1980, the
Pernsylvania legislature repealed the 1968 Solid Waste Management Act and
replaced it with a much more elaborate statute, the Solid Waste Management Act
of 1980 ("swA"), 35 P;S. §6018.101 — §6018.1003. The 1980 Act required, for the
first time, a hazardous waste permit for the operation of any hazardous waste
management facility within the Commonwealth and made operation without such a
permit unlawful. 35 P.S. §6018.401(a).

Interim Status

Since the imposition of the new permit requirement theoretically would
have meant the cessation of all hazardous waste management activities within
Pennsylvania until the new permits could be issued, a transition scheme similar
to that set up under §6925(e) of RCRA was implemented. The provisions of this
scheme are set forth at 25 Pa.Code §75.265(z). Pursuant to §75.265(z) (3), an

existing hazardous waste disposal facility will be regarded as having "interim
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status" if it 1) has a current solid waste permit,-2 2) has camplied with the
SWMA notification requirements (requiring that DER be notified of the nature
of the hazardous waste activities of the facility), 3) has submitted a Part A
application for a hazardous waste permit, and 4) is in compliance with the
operational and design standards of 25 Pa.Code §75.265 (the "interim status"
standards). A facility which has been granted interim status may continue to
operate although a»permit under the 1980 SWMA has not yet been received.
Eventually, however, a hazardous waste permit under the 1980 SWMA must be ob-
tained. Interim status is designed simply to allow continued operation through
the permit review period. 25 Pa.Code §75.265(z) (5).

Submittal of the Part A permit application, one of the prerequisites
to obtaining interim status, is only an initial step in the permitting process.
A Part B application also must be submitted. The purpose of the Part B appli-
cation is to enable DER to compare the facility's design and operational standards
- with the requirements imposed under state law for suéh facilities, i.e. Pa.Code

§75.264. ‘See 25 Pa.Code'S 75.265(z) (18) and (20), and §75.264(a) (1) and (2).

'C. The Relationship between the State and Federal Programs

RCRA contenplates joint state and federal authority for the administra-
tion of the minimum regquirements for hazardous waste management imposed by RCRA
and its.aséociated regulations. Emphasis is placed upon the transfer of the
administrative function to the states. 42 U.S.C. §6902(a) (1); §6902(a) (7); §6926.
Once ‘EPA has granted the state authority to administer a portion of the RCRA

program, EPA essentially steps out of the picture with respect to that particular

2Under §6018.1001 of SWMA, all permits issued under the prior act "remain in
full force and effect unless and until modified, amended, suspended or revoked."
This savings clause, of course, does not obviate the need for a hazardous waste
permit pursuant to §6018.401(a) of the Act. In the case of a hazardous waste dis-
posal facility, it simply serves the purpose of enabling the facility to meet the

first of the four prerequisites for interim status.
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portion of the program. Thus, for example, once a state is granted Phase II
interim authorization, and is allowed to administer the RCRA permit program,

EPA will suspend the issuance of federal permits for those activities subject

to the approved state program. 40 C.F.R. §271.121(f). Until the state is granted
final authorization pursuant to §6926 (b), however, there may be dual state and
federal authority over the management of hazardous wastes within the state.

The possibility for dual state and federal regulation derives from the
fact the RCRA does not preclude states from regulating the management of hazardous
waste within their borders. It simply establishes minimum standards. Section 6929
of the Act expressly provides that:

Upon the effective date of regulations under this _
subchapter [Subchapter C dealing with hazardous waste]
no State or political subdivision may impose any
requirements less stringent than those authorized
under this subchapter respecting the same matter as
governed by such regulations . . . Nothing in this
chapter shall be construed to prohibit any State or
political subdivision thereof from imposing any
requirements . . . which are more stringent than
those imposed by such regulations.

"42 U.S.C. §6929 (emphasis added).

In addition, 40 C.F.R. §271.1(i) provides in pertinent part:

Nothing in this subpart [Subpart A dealing with
Requirements for Final Authorization] precludes
a state from:

1) Adopting or enforcing requirements which
are more stringent or more extensive than those
required under this subpart;

2) Operating a program with a greater scope
than that required under this subpart. Where an
approved state program has a greater scope of
coverage than required by federal law, the
additional coverage is not part of the Federally
approved program.

Given this possibility of simultaneous state and federal regulation, the
operator of a hazardous waste management facility may have to comply with two sets

of statutes and regulations, at least until such time as the state is granted
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3 . . .
final authorization by EPA to carry out the RCRA program. The obligation to
comply with the state law is distinct from the obligation to comply with the

requirements established under RCRA.

" D. Pemnsylvania's Authorization to Administer the Federal Program

The Pennsylvania hazardous waste management program under SWMA has
been granted Phase I interim authorization by EPA. 46 Fed.Reg. 28161 (May 26,
1981). The practical effect of thJ.S actlon is that DER, rather than EPA, is
responsible for carrying out certaln portions of the RCRA regulatory program,
most notably monitoring complianceyﬁ.th the interim status standards for existing
hazardous waste manageﬁent facilitiéé established by 40 CFR, Part 265. See 40
CFR §271.121(b). 'The state standards which must be met by operators of existing
hazardous waste management facilities granted interim status under state law
pending DER action on a SWMA hazardous waé£e permit are contained in 25 Pa.Code
§75.265. As the very numbering suggests, the state standards in 25 Pa.Code
§75.265 reflect the federal standards contained in 40 CFR, Part 265. Thus, to
this extent, i.e. the standards applied to interim status facilities under SWMA

and under RCRA, the Pennsylvania and federal programs have been unifiec’i.4

3’I‘he state provisions must be "consistent" with the federal requirements, d
however. 40 C.F.R. §271.4. 1In other words, the State cannot impose a requirement
which can be satisfied only by violating federal requirements. Michigan Canners
and Freezers Association, Inc. v. Agricultural Marketing and Bargaining Board
U.5. ° , 104 s.Ct. 2518, 81 L.Ed.2d 399 (1984).

4Of course, Pennsylvania is free to impose additional, not inconsistent
requirements upon hazardous waste facilitites operating under interim status.
The federal program requirements do not relieve the facility from the obligation
of complying with these additional state requirements. 40 CFR §270.1(b). Pennsyl-
vania has in fact taken the opportunity to impose requirements which go further
than those required by EPA. For example, under 25 Pa.Code §75.265(n), dealing
with groundwater monitoring, DER makes no provision for waivers. The federal
regulations do allow waivers under certain circumstances. See, e.g., 40 CFR
§265.90(e).
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Pennsylvania has not been granted Phase II interim authorization, or
final authorization, and therefore cannot administer the RCRA permit program
itself.5 RCRA permits in Pennsylvania are still issued by EPA. Pennsylvania
issues its own hazardous waste permits under SWMA. In other words, the state
and federal permit programs have not been unified; two permits are required.
When the state receives final authorization from EPA it is possible that only
a single permit will be necessary-—one which assures that the operation will
comply with koth the federal and the state requirements. Until that time,
haowever, both EPA and DER regulate the management of hazardous waste within

Pennsylvania.

£. DER’'s Authority to Terminate Sechan's Interim Status

Sechan was issued Solid Waste Permit #300705 in 1979 by DER pursuant
to the Solid Waste Management Act of 1968. With the passage of the new Act in
1980, Seché&n was _required to obtain a hazardous waste permit under 35 P.S.
§6018.401(a). Sechan camplied with the provisions of 25 Pa.Code §75.265(z) (3)
and was granted interim status; that is, Sechan was treated as if it had a SWMA
hazardous waste permit during the permit application review period.

In order for LER to complete review of a hazardous waste permit appli-
cation,; a Part B application must be submitted. Pursuant to 25 Pa.Code §75.265(z) (6),
on March 17, 1983 DER issued a letter to Sechan requiring the submission of a

Part B application to DER. It admits that its landfill cannot meet the design

5Pennsylvania is applying for authorization to administer the Phase IT portions
of the federel program as part of its application for final authorizaticn under
42 U.S.C. §6%26(b). It is anticipated that Pennsylvania will submit its application
for final authorization by the end of July, 1985, and that final authorization will
be granted by the end of the year. EPA has extended Pennsylvania's interim author—
ization period until January 31, 1986, in light of this schedule. 50 Fed.Reg.3347
(Jarwaary 24, 1985).

6Apparent1y, EPA alsc granted Sechan's facility interim status pursuant to
42 U.S.C. §6925(e).
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requirements set forth in 25 Pa.Code §75.264, which a facility must meet in
order to be issued a SWMA hazardous waste permit.
25 Pa.Code §75.265(z) (7) provides that:
Failure to furnish a requested Part A or Part B
application on time, or to furnish in full the
information required by the Part A or Part B
application, shall be grounds for termination
of interim status.
The issue presented here is whether, given Sechan's failure to submit
a Part B application, DER had the authority to terminate Sechan's interim status
pursuant to §75.265(z) (7). Sechan claims that DER lacks such authority.7

1. Construction of 1984 Federal Amendments to RCRA

Sechan's argument is premised upon the doctrine of federal preemption
under the supremacy clause of the United States Constitution, Art.VI, §2. Sechan
contends that by enacting certain amendments to RCRA in 1984 Congress intended
to preempt state authority to terminate interim status for failure to submit a
Part B application (such as the Part B application which DER required Sechan to
submit) if the termination would occur prior to November 8, 1985. In support of
this argument Sechan directs us to the following language of the 1984 amendments:

(e) Interim status

* % %
(2) In the case of each land disposal facility which
has been granted interim status under this subsection
before Novenber 8, 1984, interim status shall terminate
on the date twelve months after November 8, 1984 unless
the owner or operator of such facility-—

() applies for a final determination regarding
the issuance of a permit under subsection (c) of this
section for such facility before the date twelve months
after November 8, 1984; and

TWe remark that DER's March 17, 1983 action, requiring submission of a
Part B application within six months, was appealable but was not appealed by
Sechan. Therefore DER's discretion in imposing this requirement on Sechan is
not subject to challenge in the instant proceedings. ‘
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(B) certifies that such facility is-in
campliance with all applicable groundwater
monitoring and financial responsibility re-
quirenents.

42 U.S.C. §6925(e) (2).
Sechan would have us construe this language as a grant of an extension

of time to hazardous waste facility operators for the submittal of their Part B
applications. 1In other words, Sechan contends that the 1984 amendments to
§6925(e) (2) create a "grace period" during which states are powerless to terminate
interim status for failure to submit the Part B application. Sechan also relies
upon the 1984 amendment to §6926(g) of RCRA which provides:

(g) Amendments made by 1984 act.

(1) Any requirement or prohibition which
is applicable to the generation, transportation,
treatment, storage or disposal of hazardous waste
and which is imposed under this subchapter pur-
suant to the amendments made by the Hazardous and
Solid Waste Amendments of 1984 shall take effect
in each State having an interim or finally author-
ized state program on the same date as such require-
ment takes effect in other States. The Administrator
shall carry out such requirement directly in such
State unless the State program is finally authorized
(or is granted interim authorization as provided in
paragraph (2)) with respect to such requirement.

(2) 2Any State which, before November 8, 1984
has an existing hazardous waste program which has
been granted interim or final authorization under
this section may submit to the Administrator evidence
that such existing program contains (or has been
‘amended to include) any requirement which is sub—
stantially equivalent to a requirement referred to
in paragraph (1) and may request interim authoriza-
tion to carry out that requirement under this sub-
chapter. The Administrator shall, if the evidence
submitted shows the State requirement to be sub-
stantially equivalent to the requirement referred
to in paragraph (1), grant an interim authorization
to the State to carry out such requirement in lieu
of direct administration in the State by the Adminis-
trator of such requirement.

42 U.S.C. §6926(g).
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This provision, Sechan arqgues, indicates that Congress intended the
changes in RCRA resulting from the 1984 amendments to be enforced by EPA, rather
than by the state, until such time as the state receives authorization from the
EPA administrator to put those changes into effect. Since the claimed "grace
period" for submittal of Part B applications is a result of the 1984 amendments,
Sechan contends that Pennsylvania cannot now require the submittal of a Part B
application because it allegedly has not yet received authorization from EPA
to implement the 1984 amendments to RCRA.

We find these arguments unconvincing. First, the plain language of
§6925(e) (2) indicates that the provision should be construed as providing a
date for the conclusion of interim status, i.e., a date by which existing hazard-
ous waste management facilities must have obtained a RCRA pemmit or else cease
operations. The section refers to the termination of interim status. No portions
of the provision connote an extension of the period of time within which operators
are to complete the permit application process. The sense conveyed is the
creation of an end point, not of a grace period. Certainly §6925(e) (2) does
not say-—as it easily could have said had Congress had the intention Sechan
postulates——that interim status cannot be terminated before November 8, 1985.

Our construction of §6925(e) (2) is consistent with the legislative
intent underlying the 1984 amendments, particularly with regard to the interim
status provisions of §6925 as they are applied to land disposal facilities. The
1984 amendments derive largely from H.R. 2867. The report of the House Committee
on Energy and Commerce which accompanied the bill to the floor contains several
references to the need for expediting the permit review process to assure that
RCRA permits are in effect at the earliest date possible. Commenting upon the

1984 revisions affecting interim status, the Committee stated:
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The primary purposes . . . are . . . to
expedite the final permit review of major
land disposal and incineration facilities
and close those facilities that cannot or
will not meet the final standards at the
earliest possible date. The Committee is
dissatisfied with the pace projected by
EPA to complete the permit review process
for hazardous waste facilities. (emphasis
added.)

H.R.Rep. No. 198, 98th Cong., 2nd Sess. 44-45
reprinted in 1984 U.S.Code Cong. & Ad. News
5603-04.

The Committee repeatedly made clear its concern with the problems
associated with land disposal methods. Indeed, the 1984 amendments added the
following "Congressional findings":

Certain classes of land disposal facilities.
are not capable of assuring long-term contain-
ment of certain hazardous wastes, and to avoid
substantial risk to human health and the
environment, reliance on land disposal should
be minimized or eliminated, and land disposal,
particularly landfill and surface impoundment,
should be the least favored method for managing
hazardous wastes . . .

42 U.S.C. §6901(b) (7)

Not until permit applications are complete can the facility be measured
against the standards established under RCRA in 40 CFR, Part 264 to determine its
ability to effectively and safely handle hazardous substances. The Committee
noted that "a large number «f hazardous waste management facilities currently
operating under interim status standards can present significant human health and
environmental problems" and concluded by stating that it "intends to convey a
clear and uaambiguous message to the regulated community and the Environmental

Protection Agency: reliance on land disposal of hazardous waste has resulted in

an unaccep:able risk to human health and the environment. Consequently, the

- 580 -




Committee intends that through the vigorous implementation of the objectives
of this act land disposal will be minimized . . ." H.R.Rep. No.198, 98th Cona.,

2nd Sess., 55-56, reprinted in 1984 U.S.Code Cong. & Ad. News 5613-14.

Given these statements of legislative intent, we find it inconceivable
that section 6925 (e) (72) was meant to grant operators an additional period of
time within which to submit the information necessary to determine whether their
hazardous waste facility complies with the firnal design and operational standards
imposed under RCRA, particularly where the facility uses disposal methods which
have resulted in groundwater contamination (as is the case for Sechan's landfill).
The 1984 amendments to §6926(e) clearly were intended to provide a final deadline
by which such information must be submitted or the facility forced to close.

Since we have rejected Sechan's argument that §6925(e) (2) creates a
grace period for the submission of Part B applications, we need not address the
contention that §6926(g) requires that the state receive authorization from EPA
before applying the RCRA time limits. No argument has been raised that Pennsyl-
vania is imposing any other requirement of the 1984 RCRA amendments against Sechan
in contravention of the provisions of § 6926(g).

2. Preemption of State Authority

Moreover, and equally importantly, even if we were to accept Sechan's
interpretation of §6925(e) (2), we could not conclude that this statutory pro-
vision preempts Pennsylvania's authority to require a Part B permit application
pursuant to 25 Pa.Code §75.265(z) (6). RCRA--even as anznded-—-does not completely

preempt state suthority.

]

State regulatory authority may be preemrt+ed bv a fed:ra . statute i hree

ways: 1) if Congress indicates its intention to occupy an entire field of P

N
.

lation, precluding the states from engaging in any act: 'ty in th:t area,
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the federal statute ex -essly states that Congress intends to preempt state
law, or 3) if the stat law conflicts with the federal statute. Michigan

Camners and Freezers Association, Inc. v. Agricultural Marketing and Bargaining

Board, U.s. 04 s.ct. 2518, 81 L.Ed.2d 399 (1984).
This case clearly is not cne which falls within the first of these
categories. Relatively few reas have been found to be "occupied" by the

federal govermment. Typical examples are foreign affairs and national security.

See, Zschernig v. Miller, 389 U.S. 429, 88 S.Ct. 664, 19 L.Ed.2d 683 (1968);

DeGregory v. Attorney General of New Hampshire, 383 U.S. 825, 86 S.Ct. 1148,

16 L.Ed.2d 292 (1966). MCreover,\§6929 ("Retention of state authority") and
§6926 ("Authorized State hazardous waste programs") of RCRA make plain Congress'
intent that the states can and should play a role in the regulation of hazardous
waste management.

To a certain extent, the operation of RCRA falls within the second of
4the three preenption categories. RCRA establishes minimum federal standards for
hazardous waste management. 42 U.S.C. §6929. States may not impose less stringent
requirements than those imposed under RCRA, and to this extent state authority is
preenpted. However, there has been no contention here that Pennsylvania's stand-
ards are not as stringent as the federal; thus, this area of federal preemption

is not at issue. For this reason 1! : recent case cited by Sechan, New Jersey

State Chamber of Comme! e v. Hughey, 600 F.Supp.606 (D.N.J.1985), is inapplicable.
There the controlling i :deral statut :, Tﬁe Occupational Safety and Health Act,

29 U.S.C. §651 et seq., expressly r ‘cluded the states from establishing their
own regulatory program. Section 667.a) precludes a state from "asserting juris-

dicti .- under state law" over any oc. upational safety or health issue with respect
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to which a standard has been imposed by the Act.8 In the present circumstance,
RCRA explicitly permits the states to impose more stringent or addit ional
requirements in the very ai:eas of concern addressed by RCRA. 42 U.S.C. §6929.
As noted above, under RCRA both the federal government and the state ay simul-
taneously exercise requlatory authority over a given hazardous waste facility.
Dual state and federal regulation creates the possibility that the

third type of federal preemption will arise, i.e., a conflict between the state
and federal provisions, requiring that the federal law prevail. "Conflict" is

defined in Michigan Canners, supra, as follows: [Clonflict arises when com-

pliance with both state and federal law is impossible, . . . or when the state
law "stands as an obstacle to the accomplishment and execution of the full pur—
poses and objectives of Congress."

It is this type of preemption which Sechan argues applies in the
present context. It contends that by requiring the Part B application before the:
RCRA deadline of November 8, 1985, Pennsylvania is imposing a requirement which
is inconsistent with the federal program. |

We reject this argument, however. Even if we were to agree that the
1984 amendments to §6925(e) (2) were intended to provide an extension of the
period within which hazardous waste facility operators could submit their Part B
applications under RCRA, we would be constrained to hold that §6925(e) (2) has no
effect upon Pennsylvania's authority to require a Part B application pursuant to
25 Pa.Code §75.265(z) (6). The Part B application which Pennsylvania is requiring
from Sechan is for a state permit, one issued under §6018.401(a) of SWMA, rather

than a RCRA permit issued pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §6925. Sechan does : ot conter:

29 U.S.C. §667(b) permits a state to submit a plan for state i:plementaticn
of the federal Act; however, concurrent state/federal regulation of matters
addressed by OSHA is not permitted.
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that an application for a state permit would make it impossible for Sechan to
comply with federal law. Sechan has not convinced us that DER's authority to
require a Part B application from Sechan "is an obstacle to the accomplishment
and execution" of RCRA's objectives.

In other words, it is our view that the state program DER is attempting
to enforce does not conflict with the requirements established under RCRA. There-
fore, the state may freely exercise its police power to requlate the management
of hazardous waste within its borders; §6929 of RCRA expressly so states. Sechan
argues that Congress, in amending §6925(e) (2), intended to preclude the states
from requiring a Part B application prior to November 8, 1985. Congress certainly
has the authority to prescribe the time period for submission of Part B applications
for RCRA permits, but in light of §6929 of that Act, we cannot conclude that
Congress intended to regulate the time periods for submission of applications for
state hazardous waste permits. RCRA's provisions apply only to RCRA programs.
Pennsylvania's hazardous waste permit program has not yet been granted authoriza-—
tion by EPA to operate in lieu of the federal permit program; it is not yet a
RCRA program. The Pennsylvania permit requirement derives from an independent
body of law, the Pemnsylvania Solid Waste Management Act and its associated
regulations.

The fact that many, if not most, of the operational and design standards
which Sechan would have to meet under state law are identical to the RCRA require-
ments does not affect our conclusion herein. 1In order to obtain authorization
to administer the RCRA program, Pennsylvania must conform its regulations to
reflect the minimum standards established under RCRA. However, until such time
as EPA has granted such authorization, the state and federal regulatory programs

remain separate. Sechan must comply with both. After Pennsylvania receives
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authorization to administer the RCRA program, Sechan will have to comply only
with the specific requirements Pennsylvania imposes, which will be consistent
with RCRA requirements. At no point during the transition from joint federal/
state authority to solely state authority does RCRA permit an operator to ighore
state law requirements.

Thus, since Sechan admits it never has submitted its Part B application
as reguired by DER, and since we have concluded DER is not preempted, DER may
justifiably rely upon this failure as grounds for termination of interim status
pursuant to 25 Pa.Code §75.265(z) (7), even if the intent of Congress in amending
§6925(e) (2) of RCRA was to grant operators additional time to meet operational

standards imposed under RCRA, as Sechan has argued.

CONCLUSION

Despite the immediately preceding paragraph, at this time we are not
willing to grant DER's request for summary judgment. The language of 25 Pa.Code
§75.265(z) (7), quoted supra, is to the effect that failure to timely furnish the
Part B application "shall be grounds for termination of interim status.® The
language does not state unequivocally, as it might have, that "DER shall terminate
interim status upon a finding that a requested Part B application has not been
timely furnished.," BRecause of the speed with which these prcceedings have
advanced (the motion for summary judgment was filed by DER on May 8, 1985, only
eight days after the appeal was filed), we are not convinced the parties have had
anple time to address the crucial issue now remaining, namely: Since the Board
has ruled herein that DER had the authority to request a Part B application and
to terminate interim status before November 1, 1985 if sufficient grounds were
shown, does section 75.265(z) (7) require DER to terminate interim status because

of Sechan's failure to submit a Part B application?
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The parties will have the opportunity to brief this question in due
course. In the meantime, the accelerated hearing on the merits of this matter

will take place as scheduled.

ORDER

WHEREFORE, this 24th day of July, 1985, it is ordered that a ruling
on DER's Motion for Summary JSudgment is deferred pending the hearing on the
merits of this matter and receipt of post-hearing briefs addressing, inter
alia, the issue set forth in the final paragraph of the foregoing opinion.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
= Y
o / 7 .
e
LA /w-v/

EDWARD GERJUQY
Member

DATED: July 24, 1985

cc: Bureau of Litigation
For the Appellant: ,

Lawrence A. Demase, Esguire,

Rose, Schmidt, Chapman, Duff & Hasley

Pittsburgh, PA
For the Commonwealth:

Howard J. Wein, Esquire, Pittsburgh
For Intervenor (Slippery Rock Creek Clean
Water, Inc.):

Linn K. Beachem, President

Slippexry Rock Creek Clean Water, Inc.
For Intervenor (Armco):

Harley N. Trice, II, Esquire

keed Smith Shaw & McClay

Pittsburgh, PA
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' COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
' THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

JOHN P. NIEBAUER, JR., et al. Docket No. 85-212-M

Appellants . Issued: July 25, 1985
V. -
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES
, Appellee
and FRANKLIN TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Intervenor

OPINION AND ORDER
'‘SUR PETITION FOR SUPERSEDEAS

Synopsis

Appeliants' petition for supersedeas from DER's order of April 25, 1985,
which, inter g_]i‘_a_ , required appellants to sample and analyze containerized wastes
stored (at DER's direction) at appellants' landfill site in Franklin Township,
Hmﬁngdon County, Pennsylvania, foilom‘mg leakage of said wastes onto the ground
and into a 1ag60n fr<'3m a flbob drain in a maintenance bullding located '01;1 appellants'
site, is demed without a hearing due to the petltlon s lack of spec1f1c1ty
25 Pa. Code, §21 77 Iﬁ addition, the ‘Board lacked the power to grant the equltable '
relief requested by appella.nts—— namely, permission to dispose of the containerized
wastes at a sewage treatment plant chosen by appellants. Also, a sﬁpersedeas could

not issue because such issuance would result in an alteration of the status quo.
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OPINION

Appellants, John : . Niebauer, Jr., Delta Excavating and Trucking Company,
Inc., Delta Quarries and Disposal, Inc., and, Earthmovers Unlimited, Inc., peti-
tion the Board for supersedeas in appellants' appeal of an order of appellee,
Commorwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Enviromrentél Resources (DER), dated
April 25, 1985, which, inter alia, required appellants to sample and analyze
containerized wastes stored at appellants' landfill site located in Franklin
Township, Huntingdon County, Pennsylvania. DER moves the Board to dismiss appellants’'
petition for supersedeas. Appellants collected and containerized the aforementioned
wast:s in compliance with DER's appealed-from order, which alleges that the wastes
were generated by appellants and discharéed onto the ground and into a lagoon on
appellants' landfill site through a floor drain in appellants' maintenance building.
DER's appealed-from order also directed appellants to store the containerized wastes
at appellants' landfill site until appellants completed the sampling and analysis
(in a manner approved and supervised by DER] to determine whether the wastes should
be classified as residual or hazardous wastes pursuant to the Solid Waste Management
Act. 35 P.S. §601t.i0l et seq. Such classification will apparently determine the
appropriate method ai'1 location for storage or disposal of the aforementioned wastes.
Appellants have complied with that portion of DER's appealed-from order which requires‘
storage of the contai erizec '=stes ¢ -site until the completion of sampling and
analysis, but appellants seek the Board's grant of a supersedeas allowing appellants
to dispose of the wastes .1 a sewage . ‘eatment plant of their own choosing.

Appellants also arc:: that being equired to sample the wastes and to provide
DER with the analytical results would -iolate appellants' privilege against self-
incriminetion, in view of the fact tha* the discharge of the wastes allegedly

constitutes a violation .f the S.lid Waste Management Act (SWMA) and the Clean
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Streams Law (CSL) and because théSe e staﬁutes provide for criminal prosecu-
tion of violators of these statutes. CSL, 35 P.S. §691.602; SWMA, 35 P.S. §6018.606.
However, since the self-incrimination issue is more properly addressed following
hearing or argument on the merits, we will not address it at this time in consid-
ering appellants’® pefition for supersedeas, especially in view of the fact that
appellants are not entitled to a supersedeas for mcre fundamental reasons which
are set forth below.
First, appellants have failed to comply with the requirements of Section 21.77
of the Board's Rules and Regulations, which provides:
fa] petition for supersedeas shall state with particularity
the facts and citations of legal authority upon the basis of
which the petitioner believes the petition should be granted.
A petition for supersedeas may be denied without hearing for

Jack of such specificity, or for failure to state yrounds
sufficient for the granting thereof. o

25 Pa. Code, §21.77 (emphasis added]l. We note that appellants' petition for
supersedeas, filed with appellants® notice of appeal on May 24, 1985, consisted
entirely of the following paragraph:

John P. Niebauer, Jr., Delta Excavating & Trucking Company,

Inc., Delta Quarries and Disposal, Inc., and Earthmovers Un-

limited, Inc., Appellants in the above captioned appeal, for

the reasons set forth in their Notice of Appeall,] hereby pe-

tition the Environmental Hearing Board for supersedeas allow-

ing Appellants to dispose of the containerized waste referred

to in DER's Order of April 25, 1985, in a sewage treatment

plant of Appellants' choosing.
Section 21.77 is explicit and unambiguous concerning the specificity requirements
of a petition for supersedeas, especially when Section 21.77 is read in conjunc-
tion with Section 21.78, which sets forth the circumstances affecting the grant
or denial of a petition for supersedeas. Appellants' petition .for su,gefs.edeas;- ‘nots
withstanding its reference to their notice of appeal, is wholly deficient and does not
comply with the specificity requirements of Section 21.77. Our reprobation of such

deficient petitions has been stated in the past, see, e.g., Oak Tree Coal Company

V. DER, 1983 EHB 255, and we unhésitatingly reaffirm our condemmation of the practice
of filing such petitions. In addition, appellants' attempt to refer the Board to
- 589 -




appellants' notice appeal for grounds for granting supersedeas is likewise
denounced, especially where, as is true here, the notice of appeal only sets
forth arguments concerning the merits of the appeal and does not contain argu-
ments addressing the circumstances affecting grant or denial of a petition for
supersedeas pursuant to 25 Pa. Code, §21.78.

Moreover, after the filing by appellants on May 30, 1985 of a self-labeled
supplemental petition for supersedeas ,l and the filing by appellants on June 24,
1985 of a response to DER's motion to dismiss appellants' petition for supersedeas,
appellants to date have yet to argue in more than perfunctory, boilerplate fashion
the specific circumstances affecting the grant or denial of a petition for super-
sedeas. Although we do not mean teo exalt form over substance in considering appel=- |
lants' petition for supersedeas and supplemental petition for supersedeas, we do
not believe that appellants have complied with the express and unambiguous reguire-
ments- of Sections 21.77 and 21.78 of the Board's Rules and Regulations. 25 Pa. Code,

2
§§21.77, 21.78. In the absence of such compliance, we will not grant supersedeas.

1

Although the Board's Rules and Regulations do not expressly provide for
the filing of a so-called supplemental petition for supersedeas, Section
21.76, which states that a petition for supersedeas may be filed at any
time during the proceeding, provides support for the filing of such a peti-
tion. 25 Pa. Code, §21.76.

2

We also note that appellants' response to DER's motion to dismiss appel-
lants' petition for supersedeas—- the first filing by appellant which con-
tains citation to case law— also contains factual allegations followed by
citation to legal authority allegedly in support thereof. However, appel-
lants merely cite supposedly applicable case law without ewven including
or discussing, even parenthetically, the holdings of those cases, let
alone argument showing how those holdings support appellants' factual
allegations. We do not look favorably upon such bare citation to legal
authority—— ~ nractice which fails to comport with the spirit and language
of 25 Pa. « e, §21.77 (concerning the specificity requirement of a peti-
tion for supersedeas] and which unnecessarily consumes the Board's time
and resourcss.
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Second, twoiadditiona,l grounds exist to support denial of appellants’
petition for supei;sedeas without hearing. In their petition, appellants ask
the Board to grant supersedeas "allowing appellants to dispose of the contain-
erized waste...in a sewage treatment plant of appellants' choosing." However,
as DER correctly notes in its motion to dismiss appellants' petition for super-

- sedeas, the B:)ard does not possess the power to grant such equitable relief.

Elias v. Environmental Hearing Board, 10 Pa.(mwlth. 489,495-96, 312 A.2d 486,

488-89 (1973). In addition, a supersedeas granting the relief requested by appel-

lants ‘.v'muld impermissibly alter the status quo. See, e.g., William Fz_'.ore t/d/b/a

Municipal and Industrial Disposal Company v. DER, EHB Docket No. 85-020-G (0&O,

February 12, 1985) (citing Parker Sand and Gravel v. DER, 1983 EHB 557). The status

quo which exists herein is that the containerized wastes are stored at appellants®
landfill site pending resolution of the merits of appellants' appeal. Prior to

a hearing and/or argument on the merits, the Board cannot and will not alter the
status quo; it must be maintained by continued storage of the containerized wastes
at appellants' landfill site.

Accordingly, for the foregoing reasons, we enter the following order.

Ay
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ORDER

WHEREFORE, this 25th day of July, 1985, the petition for

supersedeas filed by appellants in the appeal of John P. Niebauer, Jr., et al.

v. DER and Franklin Township Board of Supervisors, EHB Docket No. 85~212-M,

is denied.

Dated: July 25, 1985

: Bureau of Litigation

For Appellants:
John F. Stoviak, Esqg.
Michael L. Krancer, Esq.
Dilworth, Paxson, Kalish and Kauffman
Philadelphia, Pa.

For Appellee:
Paul Simon, Esqg.
Assistant Counsel
Central Region
Harrisburg, Pa.

For Intervenor:
David G. Mandelbaum, Esq.
Joseph M. Manko, Esq.
Robert B. McKinstry, Esqg.
Wolf, Block, Schorr and Solls—Cohen
Phlladelphla . Pa.
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Docket No. 83-190-M

Issued: July 25, 1985

X3

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA -
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

Appellee
and S.R. DATLEY AND SONS

Permittee

OPINIGN, AND :ORDER

[y

Synopsis

on ’Ia_nri located in Washington 'Th.mch'i‘n ”"F‘rank"l'h'\ County. Dprmq;z

CLEAS Sad el lllg Aadle S B L T L) ff 2

Appellant has a substantlal direct and immediate interest in the establishment
of an agricultural utrllza'tlon operation within its borders so as to confer standing

to challenge DER's issuance of a permlt for such an operat_lon. Bedminster Township,

et al . DER et al., P anlth. , 486 A.24 570 CL9.85).
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‘ OPDIIOIT

' The TownshJ.p of Wash:.ngton, appellant here:.n, fn.led on August 29 1983

’ 'an appeal from the 1ssuance by appellee the Oommrmealth of Pennsylvanla, Depa.rt- -

ment of Env:n.romrental Resources (DER), to permlttee, S. R.» DaJ.ley and Sons, »of two

solid waste management permlts allow:Lng the agrlcultural utJ.lJ.zatlon of sewage o

sludge on land located J.n Washmgton Townshlp, Franklln County, Pennsylvam.a
' (permlt no. 602341) and on land located in Antrim Townshlp, Franklin County,

. -Pennsylvam.a (permlt no. 602340} . Follow:.ng the f:Lllng by perm:.ttee of two

A notlons to dJ.st.ss, one for each penm.t 1ssued by DER, the Board on ‘January 19

1984, granted permlttee s mt:.on to dlsnu.ss that port:Lon of appellant's appeal

' ooncerm.ng permJ.t no.» 602340— on the bas:.s that Wash:mgton 'Itmnshlp dld not

Conmomzealth Court declsion !

'so as;

possess standlng to challenge a.npermlt 1ssued for the agrlcultural utJ.lJ.zatlon of
sewage sludge on land located outs:.de its borders.

Followmg a perlod of 1nact1v1ty, and in response to a Board status report
request dated July 7, 1985, both the appellant and pe.rm1ttee responded with a re-
quest for action on the rexm.m.ng port:.on of permlttee s motion to dismiss, '
concerning perm:.t no. 602341 for the agrlcultural utilization of sewage sludge -

on land located in Washington 'Downstup. We have oon51dered the mot:Lons and er.efs

flled by the pa.rtJ.es :Ln late 1383 and early 1984 although there may have been

Hsome doubt oonoenung the msue of appellant's standlng at that t1me, a reoent

_ resolved a.ny such doubt. It J.s now beyond dlspute

that the 'Ii nsth of Wash.mgton has a substantlal dJ.rect and mmed::.ate mterest

ln the establ:.sl'ment of‘an agrlcultural utlllzata.on °Perat1°n Wlthm 1ts borders S

standing ’to challenge' DER'S 1ssuance of a perm:l.t for that operatlon.?";l:

Bedm:n.nster 'Ibwnsh:.p,et.a.‘t.‘ v. DER, et al Pa anlth. __ 486 A 2d 570 (].985) '
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application of sewage sludge to land located within the township's borders);

Susquehanna County v. DER, 500 Pa. 512, 458 A.2d 929 (1983); Franklin Township

v. DER, 499 ra. 162, 452 A.2d 718 (1982); William Penn Parking Garage v. City

of Pittsburgh, 464 Pa. 168, 346 A.2d 269 (1975).

Second, DER's argument that appellant has waived any issues on appeal which
were not raised in the comments appellant submitted to DER pursuant to Section
504 of the Solid Waste Management Act (SWMA), 35 P.S. §6018.504, is rejected.
Section 504 states, in its entirety:

[alpplications for a permlt shall be reviewed by the appropriate
county, county planning agency or county health department where
they exist and the host municipality, and they may recommend to
the department conditions upon, revisions to, or .disapproval of
the permit only if specific cause is identified. In such case the
department shall be required to publish in the Pennsylvania Bull-
etin its justification for overriding the county's recommendations.
If the department does not receive comments within 60 days, the
county shall be deemed to have waived its right to review.

35 P.S. §6018.504. Section 504 states that only a county shall be deemed to
waive its right to review if it does not file comments within the sixty (60)
day period. Appellant herein, not a county but a township, cannot be subject
to the reach of the waiver provision of Section 504. Moreover, it is not al-
together clear to us whether the legislature's use of the term "review" in

section 504 refers to review by DER or review by the Board on appeal. We are

s within the pwrview of the

|l

inclined to believe that the former situation
waiver provision of Section 504 and that the latter situation is not. This
construction of Section 504 is clearly more reasonable, especially in view
of the fact that when the legislature provides for waiver of issues on appeal,

they do so in explicit terms. See, e.g., 2 Pa.C.S.A. §703(a); Pa.R.A.P., Rule

302, 42 Pa.C.S.A.

Accordingly, for the foregoing reasons, we enter the following order.
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ORDER

WHEREFORE, this 25th day of July, 1985, the permittee's
motion to dismiss the appeal of appellant Township of Washington (of DER's

issuance of permit no. 602341), EHB Docket No. 83-190-M, is denied.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Dated: July 25, 1985

cc: Bureau of Litigation
For Appellant:
Stephen E. Patterson, Esq.
Patterson, Kaminski, Keller and Kiersz
Waynesboro, Pa.
For Appellee:
Michele Straube, Esq. (withdrawn)
Assistant Counsel
Central Region
Harrisburg, Pa.
For Permittee:
E. Franklin Martin, Esq.
Martin and Kornfield
Waynesboro, Pa.
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COMMON WEA LTH ‘ » PENNSYLVA NIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
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THIRD FLOOR
25 HARRISBURG,PENNSYLVANIA YMOLsovrne ouly maimaih
(717) 787-3483 °
; BT (LALE0S Lowr dimreg Yo s
A ]
Docket No. 85-117-m
Issued: July 25, 1lui5
v.
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA o
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES SR S
Appellee '
and S. ahd M. WASTE OIL, INC.,

Permittee

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR PERMITTEE'S MOTION TO DISMISS

S sis

Betty Lehman, et al. from the issuance by appellee’ Ccmm Lt

vania, Deparhtmt of Envirommental Resources (DER) of a permlt for
operation of an o0il separation facility located in Milford Townshlp,_ pike
County, Penﬁsylvania, is denied.’ Appellants filed their notice of appeal
within the requisite thirty (30) day appeal period. 25 Pa. Code, §s21.11,
21.52(a). Also, service upon counsel for the permittee of a copy of appellants'
notice of appeal camplied with the requirement that appellant serve such a

copy upon the permittee. 25 Pa. Code, §21.51(f)(3).
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OPINION
Permittee S. and M. Waste 0il, Inc. moves the Board to dismiss the
appeal of appellants Sonnie and Betty Lehman, et al. from the issuance by
appellee Commornwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Environmental Resources
(DER) of a permit for the operation of an oil separation facility located
in Milford Township, Pike County, Pennsylvania. Permittee's motion to
dismiss is denied for the reasons stated in our Opinion and Order in Milford

Township Board of Supervisors v. DER and S. and M. Waste Oil, Inc., dated

July 25, 1985, EHB Docket No. 85-107-M, and in view of the fact that the
record indicates that appellants® appeal was docketed on April 12, 1985,
within the requisite thirty (30) day appeal period. 25 Pa. Code, §§21.11,
21.52(a).

It should be noted that the permittee has raised no allegation herein

concerning the standing of appellants to challenge DER's permit issuance.

ORDER

Permittee's motion to dismiss the appeal of appellants, Sonnie and
Betty Lehman, et al., EHB Docket No. 85-117-M, is denied.

ENVIRONMENTAT, HEARTNG_ BOARD

Mzﬁ%ﬂ%

ANTHONY J
Member

DATED: July 25, 1985
cc: Bureau of Litigation
For Appellant:
Joseph F. Kameen, Esg.

For Appellee:
John Wilmer, Esg./Eastern

For Permittee:
John T. Stieh, Esqg.

- 598 -
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ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
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' THIRD FLOOR '
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MILFORD TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS.
Appellant
Docket No. g5-107-Mm
Issued: July 25, 1985

V.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

Appellee
and S. and M. WASTE OIL, INC. '
Permittee

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR PERMITTEE'S MOTION TO DISMISS

Synopsis

Permittee's motion to dismiss the appeal of appellant Milford Township
Board of Supervisors from the issuance by appellee Cammonwealth of Pennsyl-
vania, Department of Environmental Resources (DER) of a solid waste management
permit for the operatlon by permittee S. and M. Waste 0il, Inc., of an oil
separatlon facility located in Milford TownshJ.p, Pike County, Pennsylvanla,
is denied. Appella.nt's appeal was filed in a tJ.mely fashion pu.rsuant to the
Boaxd!s, Rules and Regulations. 25 Pa. Code, §§21.11, 21.52. In addition,
appella;nt's failure to ‘serve a copy of its notice of appeal upon the permittee,

as required by 25 Pa. Code, §21.5(f) (3), did not constitute sufficient grounds
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for dismissal where appellant instead served a copy of its notice of appeal
upon counsel for permittee, thereby perfecting its appeal pursuant to 25

Pa. Code, §21.52(b).
OPINION

Permittee S. and M. Waste Oil, Inc. moves the Board to dismiss the
appeal of appellant Milford Township Board of Supervisors from the issuance
by appellee Commorwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Envirormental
Resources (DER) of a solid waste management permit for the operation of
an oil separation facility located in Milford Township, Pike County, Pennsyl-
vania. Permittee argues three grounds for dismissal--untimely £iling, lack
of perfection, and absence of standing--all of which are discussed and
rejected below.

First, permittee alleges that appellant's appeal was not filed in a
timely fashion. In support of this allegation, permittee states that
DER's permit issuance occurred on March 1, 1985 and that appellant's appeal
was filed on April 12, 1985. If these allegations were correct, we would
| grant permittee's motion to dismiss pursuant to 25 Pa. Code, §§21.11, 21.52,
which require the filing of an appeal within thirty (30) days after appellant's
receipt of notice of DER's action. However, both of permittee's allegations
are incorrect. , |

The record indicates that, although the permit at issue herein is dated
March 1, 1985, the cover letter (enclosing the permit) which DER sent to
permittee is dated March 10, 1985. Appellant indicates in its answer to
permittee's motion to dismiss that DER's cover letter of March 10, 1985 was
received by appellant on March 12, 198%. AT theexss appetlaneshoald have

included this date of receipt in its notice of appeal, as required by
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25 Pa. Code, §21.51(d), and while we do not condone such a practice, the
inclusion of the date of receipt in appellant's answer cures é.ppéliant's
mnconlpliance with Section 21.51(d). Thus, it is apparent that the thirty
(30) day appeal period began following appellant's receipt on March 12,
1985 of DER's cover letter.

Also, it is equally apparent that appellant's appeal was filed within
the requisite thirty (30) day appeal period. Contrary‘to permittee's un-
supported allegation that appellant's appeal was filed on April 12, 1985,
which would constitute timely filing following appellant's receipt of
notice of DER's action on March 12, 1985, the record indicates that appellant's
~appeal was docketed on April 8, 1985, clearly within the thirty (30) day
appeal period.

Second, permittee seeks dismissal based upon appellant's failure to
sexrve a copy of its notice of appeal upon the permittee, as required by
25 Pa. Code, §21.51(f) (3). Permittee bases its argument on Section 21.52,
which states in pertinent part:

§21.52. Timeliness and perfection.

(a) Except as specifically provided in §21.53 of this
title (relating to appeal "nunc pro tunc"), jurisdiction of
the Board shall not attach to an appeal from an action of
the Department unless the appeal is in writing and if filed
with the Board within 30 days after the party appellant has
received written notice of such action or within 30 days after
notice of such action has been published in the "Pennsylvania

Bulletin" unless a different time is provided by statute,
and is perfected in accordance with subsection (b) of this
section. o

(b) No appeal from the granting of a permit, license,
approval or certification shall be deemed to be perfected
unless and until the recipient of the permit, license,
approval or certification is served with a notice of appeal .
in accordance with §21.51 of this title (relating to cammence-

ment, form and content of appeals).
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(c) an appeal which is perfected in accordance with
tt.le provisions of this section but does not otherwise comply
with the form and content requirements of §21.51 of this
title will be docketed by the Board as a skeleton appeal.
The appellant shall, upon request fram the Board, file the
required information or suffer dismissal of the appeal.
25 Pa. Code, §21.52. However, appellant states in its answer to permittee's
motion to dismiss that a copy of appellant's notice of appeal was served
upon counsel for permittee. This was sufficient for the purpose of per-
fection of appellant's appeal pursuant to Section 21.52--especially since
permittee has not alleged that prejudice to permittee's case has occurred

as a result of appellant's action. See, e.g., Ferri Contracting Campany,

Inc. v. DER, 1984 EHB 675, 677.

Third, permittee alleges that appellant lacks standing to challenge
DER's issuance of a permit for an oil separation facility located in
Milford Township. Permittee cites no legal authority in support of its
-allegation and we doubt permittee could do so, in view of the fact that
applicable case law unquestionably supports the proposition that a munici-
pality has a substantial, direct and immediate interest in the establishment

of an oil separation facility within its borders so as to confer standing

to challenge DER's issuance of a permit for such a facility. See Bedminster

Township, et al. v. DER, et al., Pa. Cmwlth. Y 486 A.2d 570 (1985)

(township has standing to challenge the grant by DER of a permit for the
application of sewage sludge to land located within the township's borders) .

Accordingly, for the foregoing reasons, we enter the following order.
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ORDER

WHEREFORE, this 25thday of July, 1985, the motion to dismiss of

permittee S. and M. Waste Oil, Inc. in the appeal of Milford Township

Board of Supervisbrs v. DER and S. and M. Waste Oil, Inc., EHB Docket

No. 85-107-M, is denied.

© ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Al ) Dl 5,

ANTHONY f/MAZULLO, .

DATED: July 25, 1985
cc: Bureau of Litigation

For Appellant:
Joseph F. Kameen, Esd.
Krawitz, Ridley, Berger & McBride
Milford, PA

For Appellee:
John Wilmer, Esqg.
Kenneth A. Gelburd, Esq.
Eastern Region
Philadelphia, PA

For Permittee:
John T. Stieh, Esqg.
Ievy, Stieh & Gniewek
Milford, PA
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
. THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
: (717) 787-3483

KING COAL COMPANY

“Docket No. 83-112-G
Issued: July 25, 1985

: _ v,
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA ‘
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

o0

.. .. OPINION AND ORDER o
"' 'SUR PETITION FOR RECONSITERATION

Reconsideration of the Board's partial adjudication is graﬁtea. " The
Board erred in ordering DER to return forthwith certain bonds to Appellant.
Appellant must comply w1th the provisions of 25 Pa.Code §86.171 concerning bond
ielease. Therefore , the portions of the order accompanying the partial adj11di-
cation directing immediate return of the bonds is vacated. | '

The criterion established in the prior adjudication governing bond
forféiture where a site ‘has been substantiélly though not completely reclaimed,
is contrary to law, 52 P.S. §1396.4(h), and therefore is vacated. Section
1396.4 (h) does requ:.re the exercise of discretion by DER insofar as a determin- |
ation must be made whether the operator has failed or refused to comply with
the requirements of the act. DER would be in error if it were to forfeit a bond
for a de nunnmlsv:o]atlm. Boweves, t‘ﬂa violation at issue here is not de mihimis.
Therefore, bond forfeitui'e was appropriate. BAny portions of the previously issued
partial adjudication inconsistent with this opinion are \/;acated. .'Ih.e appeal is
dismissed. |
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OPINION .

DER has i:imely petitioned the Boerd for reconsideration of our Parti'al" :
Adjudication in this matter, issued March 18, 1985. 25 Pa.Code §21.122. The
Board granted reconsideration on April 12, 1985, within the 30-day period pre-
scribed by Rules of Appellate Procedure 1512(a) (1) and 1701(b)(3). A hearing
on the petition was held June 13, 1985, and the parties have been given the
opportunity to file brief'sf We now proceed to rule on the petition.

DER has petitioned for reconsideration on the following grounds.

1. Our March 18, 1985 Adjudication, after
sustaining DER's bond forfeitures in some respects '
but reversing DER in other respects, ordered DER

. to return certain portions of the forfeited bonds
forthwith. DER argues that such return would be
unlawful because King has not complied with the

statutory and regulatory requirements for band:
release :

2. In connection with Certificate of Deposit
No. 10544, a collateral bond on the area covered
by Mining Permit No. 1566-3, the Board set forth the
criterion: " [W]lhere, but only where, a site has '
been substantially though not completely reclaimed
and where no violations beyond the failure to wholly
reclaim are alleged, it is an arbitrary exercise of
DER's duties or functions to forfeit the bond cover-
ing the site unless it can be said with a substantial
degree of certainty that the mine operator has no
intention or no ability to wholly complete the
reclamation.” DER argues that this criterion is
contrary to law. .

3. In connection with this same Certificate of
Deposit No. 10544, the Board deferred adjudication of
DER's forfeiture of this bond for six months, during
which time King would have the opportunlty to reclaim
the mere 1000 sq. ft. which remain unreclaimed on this
mining site, out of ten acres originally affected. DER
argues that there was no need to defer adjudication for
six months, and that in giving King this additional. six
months the Board oversteppes' ltsaﬁmﬁr .

We will examine each of these contentlons.-
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1. oOrder that TER Forthwith Return Some Forfeited Sums

At the reeonsiderationvhearing King and the Board agreed with DER
that the Board had erred in ordering DER to return forthwith certain portions
of King's bonds. (Tr. 14). The Board had overlooked the fact that the record
had nc‘>t4 eStablished King's entitlement to any bond releases, e.g., had not
established King's conplianee with the requirements of 25 Pa.Code §86.171. The
Order accompanying this Opinion appropriately corrects our Order of March 18,
1985 in thJ.s regard. |

Crlterlon Eor Forfelture When Site Has Been Substantially Reclaimed

DER's petition for reconsideration, and its brief in support of the
petition, argue that the Board's criterion for forfeiture when a site has been
substantially though not vwholly reclaimed is contrary to the explicit language
of Section 4(h) of the Surface Mmmg Oonservatlon and R“eclamatlon Act ("SMCRA"),
52 P S. §139%. 4(h), Whlch reads-

~(h) If the operator fails or refuses to comply
with the requirements of the act in any respect
for which liability has been charged on the bond,
the department shall declare such portion of the
bond forfeited . . . [emphasis provided)

DER contends, citing Morcdal Company v. Commonwealth, 459 A.2d 1303 (Pa.Cmwlth. 1983),

fhat under this language DER had a mandatory duty to ferfeit Certificate of Deposit
No. 10544 once DER had determined that King had failed or refused to comply with
its reclamation obligatidﬁs in any resEct.‘ Therefore, DER's brief concludes, the
 Board's criterion--which puts a condition on forfeiture when a site has been sub-
stantially but admittédly not whelly reclaimed—is inconsistent with the SMCRA

and ‘Morcoal. | "

=7 w@mﬁmthDER that our criterion is ocontrary to

law; the criterion herewith is vacated. In so doing, however, we do not necessarily
agree with DER's seemingly rigid cénstruction of the statutory language. 1In the

first place, DER's own arguments, in its brief and during the reconsideration
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hearing, make it evident that DER's enforcément of Section 4(h) ddes involve
oonsiderable discretion, despite ER's insistence that the language .of Section
4(h) leaves LER no roam for discretion. For example, DER's brief explains
that although the area bonded by Certificate of Deposit No. 10544 has been in
its present condition since approximately October 1981 (Finding of Fact 62),
DER did not send King a Notice of Intent to forfeit the bond "if the violations
were not corrected"” until October 1982; then DER waited another seven months
before forfeiting the bond.

Moreover, we believe these exercises of enforcement discretion by DER

in connection with Certificate of Deposit No. 10544 are consistent with the

language of Section 4(h) and withMorcoal, supra. Under Section 4(h), DER must
declare a bond forfeited whenever DER determines the operator has failed or has
refused to comply with the requirements of the SMCRA. But the ILegislature surely
did not expect that the crucial prerequisite determmatlon to forfeiture, namely
the determination that the operator actually has failed or has refused to comply
with the requirements of the SMCRA, would be made completely rigidly without any
consideration of relevant circumstances, e.g. (when as in the instant appeal the
alleged violation of the SMCRA is failure to properly reclaim), the size of the
unreclaimed area and the amount of time the non-reclamation has persisted.

In particular, the Board believes, and DER apparently agrees, that the
phrase "in any respect" in Section 4 (h) does not require DER to declare bond
forfeitures for de minimis violations of the SMCRA, i.e., for violations which

are too insubstantial to be legally significant. De minimis non curat lex. It

is not possible to give a bright line formula for de minimis failures to reclaim,
But DER apparently is willing to agree that, e.g., a failure to reclaim just one
square foot out of many affected acres, or a failure to meet a reclamation dead-
line by a few hours, must be regarded as de minimis from the standpoint of bond

forfeiture requisites. (Tr. 34).
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In sum, it evidently would be an error were DER to declare a bond
forfeiture for a de minimis violation of the SMCRA. Our now vacated criterion
was an attempt to set some guideline for deciding when declaring a bond forfeit-
ure for a violation which was samewhat more than de minimis might be such an
error. On reflecting, we have found this criterion to be ill conceived. Indeed
we now are inclined to think that if the violation really is more than de minimis,
then under Section 4 (h) DER's determination that the operator has failed to comply
with the requirements of the SMCRA cannot be an abuse of discretion, assuming of
course that the mine operator cannot establish some affirmative defense (e.g.,
estoppel) to the determination. We stress, however, that any determination by
IER that a mine operator has failed or has refused to comply with the requirements
of the SMCRA is a discretionary action the Board is entitled to review. Warren

Sand and Gravel Company v. DER, 20 Pa.Cmwlth. 186, 341 A.2d 556 (1975). Morceoal's

supra, discussion of DER's obligations under Section 4(h) is consistent with the
assertion just made.

3. TForfeiture of Certificate of Deposit No. 10544

In our March 18, 1985 Adjudication, we concluded that King's failure to
reclaim the 1000 sg. ft. unreclaimed area which led to the forfeiture of C.D. No.
10544 was not necessarily a de minimis violation. In view of the foregoing dis-
cussion, we now must decide whether, on all the facts before us, the aforesaid
violation should be considered de minimis. We believe it should not be. As we
wrote on March 18, 1985, King should be required to repair the erosion and complete
reclamation of the 1000 sq. ft. Moreover, by the time of our hearing on reoonsider—
ation, when King's counsel admitted the reclamation had not yet been completed
(Tr. 53), the 1000 sq. ft. had been unreclaimed for nearly four yoms (Oatobes 26,

1981 to June 13, 1985, see Finding of Fact 62). After a delay this long, a failure
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to reclaim even a mere 1000 sqg. ft. area out of lO at:fes aﬁffécﬁed’carmot be
termed de minimis. | S

Therefore, we now believe DER's forfeiture of C.D. No. 10544 must be
sustained in the absence of an established affirmative defense to DER's 'determj_n_-l
ation that King failed to reclaim the affected area. Mr. Woods' claim (Findings
of Fact 59 and 60) that his inability to_ secure bond réleases hindered his
ability to hire subcontractors to perfonh‘ the necessary reclamation appears to
have been an attempt to establish such an affirmative defense, although the legal
‘theory underlying the defense is not altogether clear. Howéver, our March 18,
1985 conclusion that there is "some truth" to this claim of Mr. Woods hardly is
 sufficient to meet King*s burden of proof for any affirmative defense the Board
can envisagel, e.g., for the affirmative defense that DER now is estopped from
determining there was a reclamation failure. | " |

" The Order which follows is consistent with the foregoing.

o

ORDER

WHEREFORE, thJ.s 25th day of July , 1985 it is ordered as follows:

1. Our Order of March 18, 1985 is vacated, and is now replaced by the
following paragraphs of the present Order.

2. For the homi&«l.l.ste.d in the immediately following Takle, DER's
forfeitures are sustained for the anbunts shown in the third colum of the Table-;

DER's forfeitures are vacated for the amounts shown in the fourth colum of the Table.
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Amount Originally Forfeiture Amount  Forfeiture Amount

Bond Number Forfeited Sustained Vacated
BD 1435 $21,620 $20,000 $1,620
BD 1631 32,235 32,235 —_—
BD 1666 32,890 32,890 —_—
BD 1830 8,300 8,300 ——
BD 1965 22,800 22,800. ——
BD 20240 22,300 . | 22,300 —_—
Cashier's check _

265244 8,015 8,015 —
13751 15,570 13,000 2,570
13358 . 24,360 23,380 980

BD 1428 5,980 5,980 J—

3. v'Ihe appeal of the forfeiture of Surety Bond 13366 is sustained,
and the bond forfeiture is vacated. |

4. DER's forfeiture of Certificate of Deposit No. 10544 is sustained
for an amount of $5,750; DER's forfeiture of this bond is vaéated for an amount
of $1,799.75.

5. Conclusion of Law No. 11 in our March 18, 1985 Adjudication is
vacated. |

6. Any portion of our March 18, 1985 Adjudication which is inconsistent
with this Opinion and O.rder' is vacated.

7. The Board no longer retains jurisdiction over any of the bond
forfeitures appealed under the above Docket Number; this Adjudication now is final

and conplete, not partial.
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ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Aatblns f] W)

ANTHONY J.’MAZULIO, JR/

Member

W @2
EDWARD GERJUOY 7/
Member

DATED: July 25, 1985

cc:

Bureau of Litigation
For the Commonwealth:
Alan S. Miller, Esquire, Pittsburgh
For the Appellant:
Bruno A. Muscatello, Esquire, Stepanian and
Muscatello, Butler

- 611 ~




COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

SPRINGETTSBURY TOWNSHIP SEWER AUTHORITY
Docket No. 84-287-M

Pppellant July 29, 1985.

v.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

Appellee

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR DER'S PETITION FOR RECONSIDERATION

opsis

DER's petition for reconsideration of the Board's June 3, 1985 Opinion
and Order, which denied DER's motion to dismiss the appeal of appellant Spring-
ettsbury Township Sewer Authority, is denied. The Board's Rules and Regulations
and precedents state that an interlocutory decision is not the proper subject
of a petition for reconsideration in the absence of exceptional éircumstances.

25 Pa. Code, §21.122.
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OPINION

Appellee Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Environmental Resources
(DER) filed on June 24, 1985 a petition for reconsideration of the Board's June
3, 1985 Opinion and Order which denied DER's motion to dismiss the appeal of appel-
lant Springettsbury Township Sewer Authority (STSA) of DER's denial of STSA's
National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) interim permit and pending
permanent permit application modification requests. STSA filed a reply to DER's
petition for reconsideration on July 22, 1985; however, since the filing deadline
for such a reply, as éppellant was informed by the Board, was July 17, 1985, we will
not _.consider appellant's reply to DER's petition.

Fortunately for STSA, however, no reply was needed as DER merely cites 25
Pa. Code, §21.122 as the authority for its petition, without supporting argument
to convince the Board to deviate from its customary practice of denying petitions
for reconsideration of our interlocutory rulings. Although the language of Section
21.122 raises some doubt, because it refers to a "decision" of the Board as being
the proper subject of a petition for reconsideration, Board precedents resolve any

such doubt—— only a final decision is subject to reconsideration. Envirosafe Ser-

vices of Pennsylvania, Inc. v. DER, 1984 EHB 609; Magnum Minerals v. DER, 1983

EHB 589, DER neither cited nor addressed the holdings of these Board decisions.

In addition, although Magnum Minerals, supra, states that the Board possesses

inherent authority to reconsider its rulings at any time prior to final adjudication,

Magnum Minerals- also states that the Board's limited resources do not permit re-

consideration of interlocutory rulings in other than exceptional circumstances.

Magnum Minerals, supra, 1983 EHB at 589 (citing Old Home Manor, Inc. and W.C.

Leasure v. DER, 1983 EHB 463). DER has not presented any exceptional circumstances

in its petition.
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Finally, we note that DER argues that the Board's June 3, 1985 Opinion
and Order was based inter alia upon a Board decision which DER allegedly did
not have the opportunity to brief. However, in view of the fact that the decision

DER refers to, James Martin v. DER, 1984 EHB 736, was issued August 20, 1985--—

forty-four (44) days prior to the filing of DER's motion to dismiss and one hundred
and eight (108) days prior to the filing of DER's supplemental memorandum of law
in support of its motion to dismiss-~ DER's allegation of any irregularity in Board
procedure is not well taken. Rather, the responsibility for DER's failure to brief
the decision rests squarely upon counsel for DER. We will not speculate as to the
cause of DER's failure, whether it was faulty research, oversight or deliberate

(or unintentional) disregard of a decision which was unfavorable to DER's legal
position.

Accordingly, for the foregoing reasons, we enter the following order.

ORDER

AND NOW, this29th day of July, 1985, DER's Petition for Reconsideration
of the Board's June 3, 1985 Opinion and Order Sur DER's Motion to Disnu'gsg,mthe
appeal of appellant Springettsbury Township Sewer Authority, EHB docket n(-)?‘i.-r
84-287-M, is denied.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

At/

AT\ﬁ'HONY J. MAZHHAIO,

Dated: July 29, 1985.

cc: Bureau of Litigation
For Springettsbury Township Sewer Authority:
Robert J. Sugarman, Esq.
Joanne R. Dernworth, Esqg.
Philadelphia, Pa.
For DER:
John C. Dernbach, Esq.
Assistant Counsel
Central Region
Harrisburg, Pa.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
' THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

J.T.C. INDUSTRIES, INC.

o

" Docket No. 84-154-G

Issued:. July 29, 1985

: ) '..V.
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA ST
" DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

OPINION AND ORDER _
' 'SUR MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

S |

DER's Motion for ismnnary judgment is denied. The ‘appeal donceiné
DER's denial of ‘Appbellant's permit application for a coal processing plant.
[ER denied the application oﬁ vthe basis that it was deficient, J.e, that
| insufficient i_rifonnation had been submitted to allow DER to complete its review
of the application. In its 'amer,lded statéxrent of facts, Appellant éﬁéted that
it had replied in detail to the "deficiencies" identified by DER. Despite.
DER's contention that {:he use of the. term "deficiencies" amounts to an adrnission
that the permit application was incomplete, summary judgment cannot be granted.
It is apparent that Appellant continues to maintain that the permit application A

was full and complete when submitted to DER.
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OPINION

This is an appeal of a denial of Appellant's permit application for
a coal processing facility. The Department of Environmental Resources ("DER")
denied the permit on the basis that Appellant had failed to provide sufficient
information to enable DER to proceed with review of the application. DER has
now moved for summary judgment. Appellant has not responded to the DER motion,
despite the fact that the twenty-day period for filing such a response has long
since elapsed.
The DER denial letter, dated 2pril 19, 1984, reads in pertinent part:

By this letter, the Department of Environmental

Resources is denying the permit application

which your company submitted for its coal prep-

aration plant located in Bruin Borough, Butler

County. The Department had notified your company

of the deficiencies in the application by letters

dated August 24, 1983, December 9, 1983, and

February 21, 1984. Without the requested infor-

mation, the Department is unable to proceed with

its review of the application.
The second paragraph of this letter informed the Appellant of the steps it now
was required to take concerning the ocoal processing plant, in light of the permit
denial. These steps were required by a previous DER order, which also had directed
Appellant to file the instant permit application. The critical issue before the
Board in this matter is whether the permit application as submitted to DER was
sufficient under the applicable statutes, rules, and regulations to enable DER to
conmplete its review. Appellant has maintained that it fully complied with all
lawful requirements concerning the permit application. DER contends that Appellant
not only did not submit a complete application but that Appellant has admitted
that the application was deficient. It is upon the latter basis, i.e., the claimed

admission, that CER has rested its Motion for Summary Judgment.

- 616 -




Pennsylvania Rule of Civil Procedure 1035 provides that summary
judgment may be rendered where there is no genuine issue of material fact and
the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. In ruling upon a
motion, the Board is entitled to examine the pleadings, answers to interroga-
tories, and admissions of the parties, inter alia. In the instant matter we
cannot grant summary judgment in favor of DER, because the alleged admission
of deficiencies by Appellant has not removed all genuine issues of material fact.

DER points to the following language of Appellant's amended Statement
of Facts to its pre-hearing memorandum:

10. On November 1, 1984, Scott forwarded to
the DER a revised geology report of Giddings
(October 26, 1984). This letter replied in

" detail to all deficiencies not previously
answered by the Scott letters of September 22,

1983 and December 29, 1983.
(emphasis added)

We do not agree with DER's contention that the underscored language in
the quote above anounté to an admission that the permit application as originally
submitted was indeed deficient. The quoted statement from Appellant's amended
statement of facts is responding to the specific contentions of DER contained in
its letter of April 19, 1984 and the three letters to which that April 19th letter
makes reference. These letters spell out in considerable detail the information
which DER considered to be lacking and necessary to complete review of the permit
application. Appellant's amended statement of facts is merely responding to the
items identified in DER's letters. Indeed, in so responding Appellant was merely
complying with the Board's order of April 30, 1985 which directed Appellant to:

. . . file a statement listing the facts
JIC intends to establish in support of its
claim that JIC's permit application complies
with all applicable rules and regulations;

insofar as possible, this statement shall
respond specifically to the allegations
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concerning deficiencies in JIC's permit
applications made by DER in its April 19,
1984 permit denial letter (via reference
“to DER's letters of August 24, 1983, Decem-
ber 9, 1983 and February 21, 1984).
(emphasis added).

In light of this directive to respond to the allegations concerning "deficiencies",
we are wnwilling to grant summary judgment in févor of DER. Appellant's use of
the teﬁn "deficiencies" was appropriate, although perhaps somewhat careless.
Hdwever, we will not dismiss this appeal on a technicality stemming from Appel-
_lant's failure to iﬁsert the term "alleged" in front of the word "def1c1enc1es

It 1s clear that Appellant continues to maintain that its perm1t application was
full and complete when submltted to DER. This, of course, is the central factual

issue herein. Since it remains a disputed matter, sumary judgment is inappropriate.

ORDER

WHEREFORE, this 29th day of July , 1985, it is ordered that DER's
‘Motion for Summary Judgment is denied.

ENVIFONMENTAL, HEARING BOARD

4 ed 4L 5

EDWARD GERJUQOY
Member

DATED: July 29, 1985

cc: Bureau of Litigation
For the Appellant:
Sanford M. Lampl, Esquire, P:Lttsburgh
Robert O. Lampl, Esquire, Pittsburgh
Janice L. Morison, Esquire, Pittsburgh
For the Commonwealth:
Richard S. Ehmann, Esquire, Pittsburgh
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C OM MONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
. THIRD FLOOR
" HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

J.T.C. INDUSTRIES, INC.

" Docket No. 84-155-G
Issued: July 30, 1985

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

" DEPARTMENT O_F ENVIRONMENTAL RESOQURCES

OPINION 2AND ORDER
" 'SUR MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

- SYNOPSIS

Appellant's motion for summary judgment is denied. Pursuan£ to
Pa.R.C.P. 1035, sumary judgment may be granted where no material facts are
in dispute and the moving party is entitled to judgment‘as a mattef of law.
All raterial facts are in dispuﬁe in the present proceeding. Appéllant's

motion does not dispose of any factual issues.

OPINION
This is an appeal of a DER order dated May 10, 1984 directing Appellant,
J.T.C. Industries, Inc., to submit to DER a preparedness, prevention and contingency
plan ("P.P.C. plan") pursuént to 25 Pa.Code §101.3. Appellant has moved for
sumary judgment; DER has filed a response to Appellant's motion.

25 Pa.Code §101.3 provides:
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Activities utilizing polluting substances.
(a) All persons . . . engaged in an activity
which includes the impoundment, production,
processing, transportation, storage, use,
application, or disposal of polluting sub-
stances shall take all necessary measures
to prevent such substances from reaching the
waters of the Commonwealth, directly or
indirectly, through accident, carelessness,
maliciousness, hazards of weather, or from
any other cause.

(b) Upon notice from the Department and within

the time specified in the notice, such person

. « . shall submit to the Department a report

or plan setting forth the nature of the activity,

the nature of the preventative measures taken

to comply with subsection (a) of this section

and such other information as the Department may

require.
25 Pa.Code §101.3 is promulgated under the authority of 35 P.S. §691.5, the
provision of the Pemnsylvania Clean Streams Law which delegates certain powers
to DER. Appellant has not challenged the authority of DER to issue the instant
order; rather, Apr<llant claims it has submitted an acceptable P.P.C. plan to
PER in conjunction with a permit application for a coal processing plant and,
therefore, DER's order is arbitrary and capricious.

Appellant has provided no affidavits or other evidence in support of
its motion, nor has it provided the Board with a copy of the P.P.C. plan which
it claims was submitted to DER. DER has furmished a copy of a "Pollution Incident
Prevention Plan" which apparently accompanied an industrial waste permit appli-
cation submitted by J.T.C. Industries for a coal preparation plant. At this time
the Board has no way of determining whether this Pollution Incident Prevention
Plan is the plan which Aprellant claims to have submitted to DER and which it
contends should suffice to satisfy the obligations of the order appealed herein.

In its response to Appellant's motion, DER argues that a Pollution Incident
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Prevention Plan is not equivalent to a P.P.C. plan and that no acceptable P.P.C.
plan has been submitted by Appellant for this particular site. Consequently,
the central factual issue in this matter, whether an acceptable P.P.C. plan has

been submitted to DER, remains in dispute. Summary judgment cannot be granted.

ORDER

AND NOW, this 30th day of July, 1985, it is ordered that:

1. Appellant's Motion for Summary Judgment is denied.

2. Within thirty (30) days of this date Appellant shall furnish the

- Board an affidavit addressing the issue of whether the Pollution Incident Pre-
vention Plan attached to DER's letter to this Board of March 18, 1985 is the
so-called P.P.C. plan which Appellant alleges it submitted to DER in connection
with its Coal Processing Plant Application (Paragraph 3 of Appellant's Motion
for Summary Judgment). If there have been additional documents submitted to DER
by Appellant which constitute the P.P.C. plan to which Appellant makes reference
in Paragraph 3 of its Motion for Summary Judgment, Arpellant shall attach copies
of these additional documents to the aforesaid affidavit. Appéllant will be

precluded from introducing other documents allegedly constituting this P.P.C. plan
at the hearing on the merits unless Appellant can supply good cause why said
documents were not submitted in response to this order.

3. Appellant is reminded that its inadequate pre-hearing memorandum

also may cause the Appellant to be sanctioned at the hearing on the merits of

this matter (see our Order of January 28, 1985 in this matter).
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DATED: July 30, 1985

cC:

Bureau of Litigation
Sanford M. Lampl, Esquire
Robert O. Lampl, Esquire
Janice L. Morison, Esquire
Richard S. Ehmann, Esquire

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Sod Ay

EDWARD GERJUOY °
Member
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

J. L. HARTMAN COMPANY
Appellant

Docket No. gs_129_M

(Issued: August 5, 1985)
v,

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

Appellee

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR DER'S MOTICN TO DISMISS

Synopsis

The motion to dismiss filed by appellee, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
Department of Environmental Resources (DER), in the appeal of appellant,
J. L. Hartman Company, is granted. Appellant failed to file its appeal
with the Board within the requisite thirty (30) day appeal perlod 25
Pa. Code, §§21.11, 21.52(a). Consequently, the Board lacked jurisdiction

to hear appellant's appeal. 25 Pa. Code, §21.52(a); Joseph Rostosky V.

DER, 26 Pa. Cmwlth. 478, 364 A.2d 761 (1976) .
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OPINION

Appellee, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Environmental
Resources (DER), moves the Board to dismiss the appeal of appellant
J. L. Hartman Company from DER's order of March 4, 1985, which required
appellant to submit operations and progress reports for 1983 and 1984
and to complete by May 30, 1985, reclamation and revegetation of appellant's
quartzite surface mine, located in Greenfield Township, Blair County,
Pennsylvania. DER's motion to dismiss, based on appellant's failure to
file its appeal within the requisite thirty (30) day appeal period, is
granted.

Appellant, in its answer to DER's motion to dismiss, admits receipt
of DER's appealed-from order on March 14, 1985. Our docket shows that
appellant's appeal was filed on April 18, 1985. This is beyond the
thirty (30) day appeal period provided for in 25 Pa. Code, §21.52(a).

Consequently, we lack jurisdiction herein. Joseph Rostosky v. DER,

26 Pa. Cmwlth. 478, 364 A.2d 761 (1976) . Thus, we enter the following order.

ORDER

DER's motion to dismiss the appeal of appellant J. L. Hartman Company,
EHB Docket No. 85-129-M, is granted.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARINGy BOARD

ANTHONY 37 MAZULiD, JVI mm)"

~
EDWARD GERJUQY, MEVEER
DATED: August 5, 1985
cc: Bureau of Litigation
For Appellant:
John Woodcock, Jr., Esqg.
For Appellee: - 624 —

Joseph K. Reinhart, Esqg.




COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

JOHN E. KAITES, et al.

‘Docket No. 84-104-G
(Issued: August 7, 1985)

V.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA |
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR MOTIONS FOR SUMMARY JU]I§MENT

SYNOPSIS ,
Partial summary judgment is granted in favor of DER regarding the
issues directed toward Appellants' responsibility for remedying the pollutional

conditions existing at their mining complex. The order was issued under the

authority of the Clean Streams Law, 35 P.S. §691.1 et seg., the Coal Refuse

Disposal Act,._52_E..S._§30..5]_e_f: seg., and the Administrative Code, 71 P.S.
§510-1 et seq.

mc.ti%a 315(a) of the Clean Streams Law, 35 P.S. §691.315(a), inposes
upon an operator the responsibility for treating all unpermltted discharges on
its mining site part:.cularly where, as here, those d.lscharaes were caused or
affected by the operator's mining activities. The Mine Sealing Act, 52 P.5.
§28.1 gE _s_e_q_ , does not relieve Appellahts_ of this obligation. The Statutory

Construction Act, 1 Pa.C.S.A. §1936, 'requires that later statutory.enactments
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prevail over possibly inconsistent previous enactments. Section 315(a) controls.

Appellants' allegation that they no longer own or lease portions of
the site does not diminish DER's authority to issue the instant compliance order.
Section 1917-A of the Administrative Code, 71 P.S. §510-17, grants DER express,
unoonditional authority to issue orders for the abatement of nuisances. Under
Section 315(a) of the Clean Streams Law the discharges presently existing at the
site are deemed a nuisance. Furthermore, Section 610 of the Clean Streams Law,

35 P.S. §691.610, and Section 9 of the Coal Refuse Disposal Act, 52 P.S. §30.59,
grant DER the authority to issue the instant order.

To the extent that the violations existing at the site may be the
result of the actions of Appellants' subcontractors, Appellants nevertheless remain
liable. The existence of a subocontractual relationship cannot shield an operator
from liability for violations of the Commonwealth's mining laws, where the sub-
contractor operated under the authority of the operator's permit. Appellant is
responsible for assuring that operations conducted under its permit are carried
out in accordance with engineering and mining practices which will not result in
violations of the applicable law.

The president, chief executive officer and sole shareholder of Appellant
corporation is individually responsible for complying with the terms of the instant
order. Being the sole individual responsible for the decisions necessary to
guarantee that DER requirements were followed, he undertook, explicitly or implicit-
ly, a duty to assure that his corporation would comply with these legal requirements.
The corporation's admitted failure to do so can be directly attributed to him.

That portion of the appealed compliance order which suspends Appellants'
permits was not addressed in the motions for summary judgment and %herefbre has not

been discussed herein.
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OPINION

This appeal concerns a compliance order issued by the Department of
Environmental Resources (DER) to Appellants, Johnstown Coal and Coke and John E.
Kaites. The order suspends Johnstown's coal refuse disposal and industrial
waste permits and directs Appellants to take certain remedial actions to remedy
alleged violations of statutes, requlations and permit conditions at a site
located in Indiana County, Pemnsylvania. A stipulation of facts has been sub-
mitted and both parties have moved for summary judgment. DER has responded to
2ppellant's notion; Appellants, however, have failed to respond to the DER motion.

The following facts are undisputed unless otherwise noted. The site
in question is known as the Bear Run mining complex. The complex consists of the
Bear Run No. 1 mine, the Bear Run No. 2 mine,:L a coal processing plant, a coal
refuse disposal area and a coal storage area (which is designated the "old coal
storage area" to distinguish it from another coal storage area located within
the vicinity of the coal processing plant). Portions of the site had been affected
by mining activities prior to Appellants' operations on the site. With the
exception of the Bear Run No. 2 mine, the facilities described have been the
subject of two consent orders and agreements entered into by Johnstown with DER
in 1975 and 1976.

Johnstown bought the Bear Run No. 1 mine in 1966 or 1967 and operated
it until approximately 1972,. at which time it sealed the mine. Oral approval
of the seals was given by a DER official. A box cut at the mine portal entry

was not filled in at the time of sealing. Sometime between the fall of 1972 and

l’Ihe Bear Run No. 2 mine is not a subject of the order at issue and is not
discussed further herein.
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‘the spring of 1973, the Benjamin Coal Company backfilled the box cut, pursuant
to an agreement with Johnstown and under the authority of Johnstown's permit.
In order to f£ill the box cut, Benjamin conducted blasting over the approximate
location of the mine seals. Benjamin also conducted surface mining activities
in the same general area. Before Benjamin took the aforementioned actions
there had existed a discharge from the mine portal of approximately two gallons
per mimite. Thereafter, the discharge increased significantly. Appellants
contend that the discharge is the result of Benjamin's actions; DER disputes
this contention.

In the past, in accordance with the terms of the 1975 and 1976 consent
orders and agreements, Johnstown unsuccessfully attempted to reseal the Bear Run
No. 1 mine. The discharge continues, however, and is inadequately treated. It
is flowing into .the South Branch of Bear Run. Appellants have stipulated this
condition is the result of the mining activities which have occureed on the site.

Johnstown is the lessee of the surface land upon which the coal process-
ing plant is located. The plant was originally constructed in the 1960's and was
operated by Johnstown from 1969 until 1982. The plant consistsvof several facili-
ties: a coal washery énd-tippiey>an acid mine drainage treatment plant, several
ponds, a coal storage stockpile area, and a weighing station. From Septenber 1983
to January 1984 the coal processing plant was operated by Mears Enterprises under
an agreement with Johnstown and under the authority of Johnstown's permits.

The processing plant was designed to use a closed hydrologic system;
therefore, the permit for the plant does not authorize any discharges to the
waters of the Cammonwealth. Nevertheless, there are presently existing discharges
from the plant to the South Branch of Bear Run and unnamed tributaries. These
discharges are caused or affected by the mining activities which have taken place

at the site.
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Until January 1984, Johnstown was the lessee of the land upon which
the ocoal refuse disposal area is located. Johnstdm established the disposal
area in 1976 and operated it until 1982. The permit authorizing operation of
the disposal area does not allow any discharges from the area to the waters
of the Comorwealth. Nevertheless, there are acid discharges from the disposal
area which are entering the waters of the Cammonwealth in either an untreated
or an inadequately treated condition. Appellants have stipulated that this
condition is the result of the activities conducted by Johnstown at the mining
complex.

Johnstown bought the old coal storage area in 1966 or 1967. During
the course of its mining activities at the Bear Run mining complex, Johnstown
deposited coal and coal refuse material on the old coal storage area. Under
both the 1975 and 1976 consent orders and agreements, Johnstown agreed to reclaim
this area; however, large piles of coal refuse remain on the storage area. Pur~
suant to the 1976 agreement, Johnstown constructed an acid mine drainage treatment
plant at the coal preparation plant and a gravity collection channel for conveying
the discharge from the Bear Run No. 1 mine and the storage area itself to the
preparation plant for treatment. The treatment plant is no longer in operation,
resulting in inadequate treatment of the acid drainage from the Bear Run No. 1
mine and the storage area. Water collected for treatment at the coal preparation
plant is being discharged in an inadequately treated or untreated condition to
the South Branch of Bear Run and to cértain of its unnamed tributaries. This
discharge is the result of the mining activities conducted at the site.

Since 1972, John E. Kaites has been chief executive officer and president
of Johnstown Coal and Coke, which is a Delaware corporation authorized to conduct

business in Pennsylvania. Kaites is the 100 percent shareholder of the corporation,
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having purchased all the stock in 1972. Although Johnstown has a board of
directors, it acts simply in an advisory capacity to Kaites and has not met in
the past five years. Kaites is responsible for making all management decisions
for Johnstown concerning the disposition and operation of the Bear Run mining
camplex. These decisions include dealing with DER and the resolution of
campliance orders. Kaites negotiated the 1976 consent order and égreenent and
was the signatory thereto. We stress that these facts concerning Mr. Kaites
have been stipulated by the parties.

Appellants have moved for partial summary judgment in their favor on
the issue of their responsibility for the discharge from the Bear Run No. 1 mine.
Appellants contend that once DER approves mine seals it becames responsible for
treating any discharge that occurs at the sealed portion of the mine thereafter.
Appellants rely upon the Pennsylvania Coal Mine Sealing Act of 1947, 52 P.S. §28.1
et §gg_ , in support of this argument. DER contends that the Clean Streams Law,
35 P.S. §691.1 et seq., controls here, regardless of the provisions of the Mine
Sealing Act, and requires that Appellants be held responsible for treating the
acid discharge from the Bear Rum No. 1 mine.

Section 5 of the Mine Sealing Act, 52 P.S. §28.5, provides that the
maintenance of mine seals shall be the duty of the Commonwealth, acting through
the departm_==.nt,2 where the mine has been sealed to the satisfaction of the
department. It is, however, the operator's responsibility to seal the mine in
the first instance, 52 P.S. §28.3. Appellant contends that since DER did in fact
approve the seals in the Bear Run No. 1 mine, DER is now responsible for treating

the discharge that emanates from the mine.

2'Ihe "department" as originally defined in the Act was the Department of Mines.
[ER now administers the functions previously carried out by the Department of Mines.
71 P.S. §510-1.
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We find Appellant's argument untenable. The cases and statutory
provisions which DER has cited are controlling. Section 315(a) of the Clean
Streams Law, 35 P.S. §691.315(a), provides that:

No person . . . shall operate a mine or allow
a discharge from a mine into the waters of

the Commonwealth unless such operation or
discharge is authorized by the rules and reg-
ulations of the department or such person . . .
has first obtained a permit from the depart-
ment . . . A discharge from a mine shall
include a discharge which occurs after mining
operations have ceased. . . . The operation

of any mine or the allowing of any discharge
without a permit or contrary to the terms or
conditions of a permit or contrary to the rules
and regulations of the department is hereby
declared to be a nuisance.

Similarly Section 316 of the Clean Streams Law, 35 P.S. §691.316 authorizes DER
to order a landoyner or occupier of land to correct the condition "Whenever the
department finds that pollution or a danger of pollﬁtion is resulting from a
condition which exists on land [emphasis added]." Neither §315(a) nor §316
makes any exception for a discharge resulting from a mine seal which DER formerly
had approved.

The Board previously has had occasion to construe Section 315(a) in
the context of an appeal which presented factual circumstances very similar to

those present in the case at hand. In Adam Greece d/b/a Cherry Run Fuel (o. v. DER,

1980 EHB 135, a central legal issue was a mine operator's responsibility for
treating a discharge fram a mine which he previously had operated and then sealed.
The operator testified that the seals had been approved by an employee of the
Department of Mines. When the seals began to leak, DER ordered the operator to
take remedial action. Construing the import of the statutory provision quoted

supra, the Board stated:

-631-




Section 315 of the Clean Streams Law places
upon the mine operator the responsibility

for abating discharges from his mine, either
during or after the completion of the operation
of the mine, regardless of the reason for the
discharge.

1980 EHB 141.

The Board upheld the DER order requiring the operator to treat the discharge.
The Adam Greece holding is fully consistent with the statements of the

Pennsylvania Supreme Court in Commonwealth, DER v. Barnes and Tucker Co. (Barnes

and Tucker II), 472 Pa. 115, 371 A.2d 461 (1977), appeal dismissed, 434 U.S. 807
(1977) . Like Appellants here, and the operator in Adam Greece, Barnes and
Tucker had sealed their mine after ceasing coal removal activities. They were
held responsible for treating the discharge which subsequently resulted, despite
the fact that it was in-large part the result of mining which had taken place in
adjacent underground mines. Construing the authority of DER to require treatment
of the discharge under the Clean Streams Law, the court stated:

The conduct of (the operator) in its mining

activity remains the dominant and relevant

fact without which the public nuisance would

not have resulted where and under the circum—
stances it did.

371 A.2d at 476.
This statement is equally applicable here. Appellants do not dispute that they

operated the mine for several years. Thus, under Barnes and Tucker, they are the

principal force responsible for the creation of the polluting discharge, and
therefore, they are liable for its treatment and abatement.

Our holding that the Mine Sealing Act does not absolve Zppellants from
liability for the discharge from the Bear Run No. 1 mine does not necessarily do
violence to that Act. The Mine Sealing Act does not address responsibility for
discharges. The Clean Streams lLaw, on the other hand, clearly does-—placing the
responsibility on the shoulders of the mine operator.
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In any event, to the extent that the two statues are viewed as incon-
sistent, we are constrained to follow the later of the two enactments. Section
1936 of the Statutory Construction Act provides that "whenever the provisions
of two or more statutes enacted by different General Assamblies are irreconcilable,
the statute latest in date of final enactment shall prevail." 1 Pa.C.S.A. §1936.
The Mine Sealing Act was enacted in 1947. The relevant provisions of Section 315
of the Clean Streams Law were enacted in 1970, some twenty three years later, in
conjunction with a substantial tightening of the Commonwealth's mining laws. [See

discussion of the legislative history of the Clean Streams Law in Commonwealth, DER

v. Bames and Tucker Company (Barnes and Tucker I), 455 Pa. 392 319 A.2d 871,

873—76].3

Any lingering doubts concerning the possibility that the Mine Sealing
Act requires DER--rather than the operator—--to treat acid mine discharges are
resolved by the Supreme Court's interpretation of the statement of legislative
intent contained in Section 4 of the Clean Streams Law which reads, in pertinent

part:

(3)_It is the objective of the Clean Streams
law not only to prevent further pollution of
the waters of the Commonwealth, but also to
reclaim &and restore to a clean, unpolluted
condition every stream in Pennsylvania that
is presently polluted.

35 P.S. §691.4

3'I'he chronologic relation of the two statutes, however, does prevent us from
accepting DER's argument that Section 801 of the Clean Streams Law explicitly repeals
the provisions of the Mine Sealing Act. Section 801 was part of the original Clean
Streams Law enactment of 1937. It repealed all inconsistent statutory provisions.
However, it camnot be construed to repeal the provisions of an Act, i.e., the Mine
Sealing Act, which were enacted ten years later. It has not been updated or
amended since 1937.
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The Pennsylvania Supreme Court, commenting upon this statement, has
indicated that the public is not to bear the cost of abating pollutional con-

ditions created by the coal mining industry. In Conmonwealth, DER v. Harmar

Coal Company, 452 Pa. 77, 306 A.2d 308, 321 (1973) the court observed:

If the operator of a mine need not treat these
discharges, pollution will not end and the
general public will be subjected to either the
continued degradation of its surface waters

or be forced to subsidize the coal industry by
paying for treatment through its taxes . . .
The public interest is not served if the public,
rather than the mine operator, has to bear the
expense of abating pollution caused as a direct
result of the profit-making, resource-depleting
business of mining coal.

The Barmar decision relied upon the authority granted DER by Section 315 of the
Clean Streams Law.

In sum, it is clear that the Clean Streams Law, specifically Section
315(a), requires that Appellants be held responsible for the discharge from the
Bear Run No. 1 mine.

This conclusion holds true regardless of whether a third party's actions
may have contributed to the discharge. BAppellants argue that the activities of
Benjamin Coal contributed to the discharge from the Bear Run No. 1 mine. (It is
undisputed that the discharge existed to a lesser degree prior to Benjamin's

actions.) As we stated in Adam Greece, supra, Section 315(a) of the Clean Streams

Law places the obligation for abating discharges from a mine upon the mine operator,
no matter what the reason for the discharge. We emphasized that “"the actions of

a third party can't diminish that obligation." 1980 EHB 142. As we noted there,
the operator may have an independent cause of action against the third party.

Such issues, however, are not for this Board to decide.
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The case law construing the Clean Streams Law repeatedly has empha-
sized that where a party has operated a facility in the past, discharges from
that facility are the party's responsibility. It is the location of the dis-
charge that is dispositiwve; the fact that the actions of another may have

contributed to the discharge is of very little import. National Wood Preservers,

Inc. v. Commonwealth, DER, 489 Pa. 221, 414 A.2d 37, 45 (1980); Commonwealth, DER

v. Barnes and Tucker Co., 472 Pa. 115, 371 A.2d 461, 466 (1977), appeal dismissed

434 U.8. 807 (1977); Commonwealth, DER v. Barnes and Tucker, 455 Pa. 392, 319 A.24

871 (1974); Commonwealth, DER v. Harmar Coal Company, 452 Pa. 77, 306 A.2d 308,

318 (1973).

Although there is no dispute that the pollutional discharges at issue
here are all located at the Bear Run Mining Complex, which was previously operated
by Appellants, Appellants have argued that DER lacked the authority to issue the
instant order because they no longer own or lease the property. (This issue was
raised in Appellant's pre-hearing memorandum. In the subsequently formulated
stipulation, Appellants agreed that Johnstown remains the lessee of the land upon
which the ooal processing plant is located.) Even assuming that Appellants'
allegations are true——as we are required to do in ruling upon DER's motion for
sumary judgment--we cannot conclude that DER lacked the power to order Appellants
to remedy the conditions at the site.

DER's order is based upon Section 1917-A of the Administrative Code of
1929, 71 P.S. 510~-17 (among other statutory provisions). Section 1917-A grants
IER "express, unconditional authority" to issue orders directing the abatement

of nuisances. Ryan v. Commonwealth, DER, 30 Pa.Cnwlth. 180, 373 A.2d 475 (1977).

Pursuant to Section 315(a) of the Clean Streams Law, quoted supra, the operation

of a mine or the allowing of a discharge in violation of the terms or conditions
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of a permit or DER rules or regulations is deemed to be a nuisance. Appellants
do not dispute that the conditions existing at the coal processing plant and
the coal refuse dispeosal area amount to violations of DER rules and regulations,
the terms and conditions of the applicable permits, as well as of the Clean Streams
Law and the Coal Refuse Disposal Act, 52 P.S. §30.51 et seq. Inasmuch as Appel-
lants agree that there are presently existing, unpermitted discharges from the
Bear Rum No. 1 mine and the old coal storage area to the waters of the Commonwealth,
it is clear that those discharges also constitute a nuisance within the meaning
of Section 315(a).
Under the Ryan holding, supra, the fact that the party responsible for

the creation of the nuisance is no longer in possession of the land is not a bar
to a [ER order directing the abatement of the nuisance. The court there stated
(quoting prior case’law):

The owner of the soil where the nuisance is

must not be allowed to control the public

right to have it abated; and what the law

commands to be done for the benefit of the
public an individual may not resist.

373 A.2d at 478.

In Ryan, as in the present matter, DER's action was taken under the authority of
the Clean Streams Law. The site in question there was a sanitary landfill; the
order requiring abatement of the nuisance was upheld.

Moreover, in addition to Section 1917-A, DER premised the issuance of
the instant order upon Section 610 of the Clean Streams Law, 35 P.S. §691.610,
and Section 9 of the Coal Refuse Disposal Act, 52 P.S. §30.59, both of which
grant DER the authority to issue "such orders as are necessary to aid in the
enforcement of the provisions of this act." Neither of these provisions requires
that the recipient of the order be in possession of the property with which the

mlawful condition or conduct is concerned.
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In sum, Appellants are responsible for remedying the violations
existing at the Bear Run Mining camplex regardless of their allegations that
some of these problems are the result of the actions of another mining company
and regardless of their_ claim that they no longer own or lease portions of the
site. Appellants admit that the mining activities which took place on the site
resulted in many of these violations (specifically, those existing at the coal
processing plant and the coal refuse disposal area) and that from the late 1960's
through 1984, those activities were conducted by Appellants or their subcontractors.
To the extent that the violations may be the consequence of the actions of their

subcontractors, Appellants remain liable, nevertheless. Black Fox Mining and

Development Corporation v. DER, EHB Docket No. 84-114-G (Adjudication dated

2pril 29, 1985) (the existence of a subcontractor relationship will not shield
the party from lfability for violations of the Comonwealth's mining laws). More-
over, given the fact that Benjamin was operating under the terms of Appellants'
Permit No. MD32703303 when it conducted the blasting in the vicinity of the seal,
Appellants' argument that DER is somehow responsible for whatever consequences
allegedly resulted lacks merit. Appellants' permit was approved by DER based
upon the representations Appellants made in their permit application. DER approval _
of a mining practice does not discharge the permittee's obligation to do its own
careful engineering so as to assure that operations conducted under the authority
of its permit will not result in a violation of the applicable legal requirements.
To the extent that Appellants have not expressly admitted that their
mining activities resulted in the violations present, i.e., on those portions of
the site other than the coal processing plant and the refuse disposal area, the
stipulation formulated by the parties establishes that the violations existing

there are a consequence of the activities conducted by Appellants on those areas
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of the site. In light of the long-term, diverse nature of Appellants' activities
at the Bear Run mining complex, we have little difficulty concluding that they
are responsible for remedying the violations which are presently existing there.

Individual Liability of Corporate Officer

The final issue which we are called upon to address is the individual
liability of John E. Kaites under the terms of the order at issue here. The
directory portion of the order names both Johnstown Coal and Coke and Kaites as
the parties who are charged with carrying out the obligations set forth therein.
Appellants have contended that the facts of this case will not support individual
liability of Mr. Kaites, i.e. liability apart from that imposed upon the corporation
itself by the terms of the order.

Both parties have cited this Board's previous decision discussing this

legal issue, W. C. Leasure v. DER, 1982 EHB 355, wherein we held that in order to

hold a corporate officer responsible for carrying out the obligations imposed
upon a corporation by a .DER order, an explicitor implicit duty to take those remedial
measures must be established. We rejected the argument that this duty arises
simply by virtue of the officer's position within the corporation. The officer's
duty must be otherwise established, e.g., by his own acts or by virtue of public
policy.

The, Pennsylvania courts have permitted piercing of the "corporate veil"
in order to "prevent the perpetration of wrong, to prevent its use as a shield
for illegal or wrongful conduct; or where its use, as a technical device, brings
about injustice or an inequitable situation so that justice and public policy demand

it be ignored." McKenna v. Art Pearl Works, Inc., 225 Pa.Super. 362, 310 A.2d 677,

679 (1973). A director or officer of a corporation may be held personally liable

where he actually participates in a wrongful act. 2Amabile v. Auto-Kleen Car Wash, Inc.,
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249 Pa.Super. 240, 376 A.2d 247 (1977); Chester—Cambridge Bank and Trust Co. v.

Rhodes, 346 Pa. 427, 31 A.2d 128 (1943).

We have little difficulty finding that the prerequisites for reaching
beyond the corporate veil are present here. As the president and chief executive
officer of Johnstown, Mr. Kaites made all decisions regarding the operation of
the Bear Run mining complex, including most notably those dealing with the
resolution of DER requirements as set forth in compliance orders. Mr. Kaites
negotiated the 1976 consent order and agreement on behalf of Johnstown Coal and
Ccke, thus assuming an unquestionably active role in determining the obligations
which the corporation would agree to assume. The record established here indicates
large scale problems which have persisted over a long period of time at the Bear
Run mining complex. The person admittedly responsible for making the decisions
necessary to assure that these problems would be resolved is Mr. Kaites. He, and
no other, assumed the responsibility of assuring that Johnstown Coal and Coke
would operate in conformity with the requirements of the Commonwealth's environ-—
mental laws. It is apparent that the numerous violations presently existing at
the site must be attributed to whatever choices and decisions he has elected to
make over the years that he has been in control of Jehnstown Coal and Coke. The
board of directors of the corporation apparently had little or no real influence
over the affairs of the corporation, since it acted only as an advisory body to
Mr. Kaites. Indeed, the existence of this board as a viable, legal entity is
subject to serious doubt, given the admitted fact that it has not met since
sametime in the late 1970's.

Mr. Kaites assumed the duty of assuring that the Bear Run mining complex
be operated in conformity with the terms and conditions of its permits, and the

applicable statutes, rules and regulations. This duty clearly was not fulfilled.
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The order, in addition to directing Appellants to take remedial action
to abate the pollutional conditions existing at the site also suspended 2Appellants'
Industrial Waste Permit No. 3274207 and Permit No. 500147 for Appellants' coal
refuse disposal site. DER's Motion for Summary Judgment does not address the
factual and legal bases for this portion of the order. Consequently, we cannot

grant summary judgment on all issues relevant to the dlSpOSltlon of this appeal,

SRR

as DER requests that we do.

partial summary judgment is granted in favor of DER on the issues of John E. Kaites'

individual liability for complying with the directives of the order appealed herein
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and the issue of Appellants' responsibility for correcting violations existing at
the Bear Run Mining Complex. Issues concerning the validity of the suspension
of Appellants' permits have not been addressed herein. The Board will arrange
a conference call among the parties within a short time to discuss further actions

to be taken concerning the final disposition of this appeal.

DATED: August 7, 1985

cc: Bureau of Litigation

For the Appellant:
Gary C. Horner, Esquire
Spence, Custer, Saylor, Wolfe & Rose
Johnstown, PA

For the Commonwealth:
Marc A. Roda, Esquire
Harrisburg, PA
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
' THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

HUNIOCK SAND AND GRAVEL COMPANY , Docket No. g4-411-M

.Appellant Issued: August 7, 1985

v.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

Appellee .

.. .... OPINION AND ORDER - -
‘SUR DER'S MOTION TO DISMISS

Synopsis
DER'S motion to dismiss the appeal of appellant Hunlock Sand and Gravel

Company from DER's assessment of a civil penalty in the amount of two thousand

five hundred dollars ($2,500.00} is granted. Appellant failed to pre-pay the
am;unt of the civil penalty assessment within the requisite thirty (30] day
appeal period pursuant to the Clean Streams Law, 35 P.S. §691.605(b).(1); appel-
lant's submiésion of a so-called "Public Office Mohey Oerti.ficate‘,‘ " deemed

not to be legally negotiable by the comptroller, failed to satisfy the pre-
payment provision of the Clean Streams Law. Therefore, the Board lacked juris-

diction to hear the matter.
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OPINION

Appellee Commorwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Environmental
Resources (DER) has moved the Board to dismiss the appeal of appellant
Hunlock Sand and Gravel Company (Hunlock) from DER's assessment’ on Novenber
29, 1984 of a civil penalty against Hunlock in the amount of two thousand
five hundred dollars ($2,500.00). DER assessed a civil penalty because of
Hunlock's alleged violations of the Clean Streams Law, 35 P.S. §691.1 et seqg.
which allegedly occurred as a result of Hunlock's non-coal surface mining
operations in Hunlock Township, Luzerne County, Pennsylvania.

In support of its motion to dismiss, DER avers that the Board lacks
jurisdiction to hear this appeal due to Hunlock's failure to perfect its
appeal within the statutorily mandated thirty (30) days by pre-payment of
cash or bond in the amount of the appealed-from civil penalty assessment.

35 P.S. §691.605(b) (1) . Hunlock avers that its submission of a so-called
"Public Office Money Certificate" purporting to be in the amount of DER's
civil penalty assessment was sufficient to satisfy the pre-payment require-
ments of the Clean Streams Law-- despite the fact that the so~called "Public
Office Money Certificate" was—rejected by-the comptroller's office because
it -was deemed not to be legally negotiable. We disagree with Hunlock's con-
tention and therefore have no choice but to grant DER's motion to dismiss

based upon the following reasoning.
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stating that the POMC is a negotiable instrument. (The Board's June 4th letter
also informed Mr. Rampp that failure to fifle the requested affadavit would result
in the rendering of a decision without further notice to Mr. Rampp). The filing
of the requested affadavit would have resulted in DER's acceptance of the POMC

to satisfy the pre-payment requirement of Section 605 (b) (1).

However, in response to the Board's June 4th letter, Mr. Rampp submitted a
vexatious and confusing "Affadavit and Statement of Facts" and "Affadavit of Pov-
erty," neither of which contained the requested affadavit from Hunlock's bank
guaranteeing the negotiability of the POMC. It should be noted that Mr. Rampp's
"Affadavit of Poverty" contained no facts in support of his affadavit. To date,
Hunlock has not complied with the pre-payment requirement of Section 605 (b) (1)
of the Clean Streams Law.

We note that Hunlock received the appealed-from civil penalty assessment on
December 4, 1984 . the thirty (3Q) day appeal period has long since expired. Despite
our concern for the protection of Hunlock's legal rights due to its failure to pro~-
ceed herein with legal counsel, and as evidenced by our January 8th and June 4th

letters to Hunlock's apparent President, Mr. Rampp, we cannot extend the stétutorily
mandated thirty (30) day appeal period to permit Hunlock any further opportimty to
comply with the pre-payment requirement of Section 605 (b) (1). Nor can we extend the

th:.rty (30) day appeal period by docketing Hunlock's appeal as a "skeleton appeal."

25 Pa. Code, §21.52; ORCT Corporation v. DER, EHB Docket no. 84-009-M (0&0, February
11, 1985). Consequently, Hunlock's failure to perfect its appeal by pre-payment

of the amount of the appealed-from civil penalty assessment within the statutorily
mandated thirty (30) day appeal period deprives the Board of jurisdiction to hear

this matter. Rostosky v. DER, 26 Pa.Cmwlth. 478, 364 A.2d 761 (1976). Accordingly,

we enter the following order.
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ORDER

AND NOW, this 7th day of Augustl985, DER's Motion to Dismiss the
appeal of Hunlock Sand and Gravel Company, EHB docket no. 84-411-M, is granted
and the appeal is dismissed with prejudice. DER's assessment of a civil penalty
against Hunlock in the amount of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00)
is affirmed. The amount of the civil penalty is due and payable into "The Clean

Water Fund" pursuant to 35 P.S. §691.8 upon receipt of this order.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Dated: Auqust 7, 1985

cc: Bureau of Litigation

For Hunlock Sand and Gravel Companys:

Helmut Rampp (pro se)

President, Hunlock Sand and Gravel Company
Hunlock creek, Pa.
For DER:

John Wilmer, Esqg.

Assistant Counsel

Eastern Region

Philadelphia, Pa.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483
ANTHONY J. MAZULLO, JR, MEMBER

M. DIANE SMITH
FODWARD GERJUOQY, MEMBER

SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

In the Matter of:

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL: RESOURCES,

Plaintiff
V. : DOCKET NO. 84-159-CP-G
(Issued August 7, 1985)
K. INTERNATIONAL, INC.
and
FRANK R. KOWALSKI, SR., :
Defendants
OPINION AND ORDER
SYNOPSIS

Pursuant to an earlier Board order in this matter, DER submitted a
memorandum of law delineating which facts it considered had been established
for the purposes of this appeal as a result of defendants' failure to respond
to DER's interrogatories. The Board herein rules that the failure to answer
the DER interrogatories results in the establishment of facts sufficient to
constitute deemed violations of 25 Pa.Code §102.31, §102.4, §102.12(b), §102.12(d),
§102.12(e), §102.12(g), and §102.11l. Facts amounting to a violation of 25 Pa.
Code §102.13(d) and §102.12(f) are not established via defendants' failure to
respond to the DER interrogatories. Likewise, no violation of 35 P.S. §691.401
is established at this stage of this proceeding. The Board cannot rule upon the
amount of a civil penalty imposed under the authority of 35 P.S. §691.605 without

considering factors including, but not limited to, the willfulness of the
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violation, damage or injury to the waters of the Commonwealth or their uses,
and the cost of restoration. The DER interrogatories did not inquire into
any of these factors. Therefore, the Board cannot deem any facts concerning
the same established for present purposes and cannot proceed to assess a civil

penalty for the established violations outlined herein at the present time.
OPINION

This matter stems from a complaint filed by the plaintiff, the Penn-
sylvania Department of Environmental Resources ("DER") against the defendants,
K International, Inc. and Frank Kowalski, Sr. The complaint seeks an assessment
of civil penalties against defendants for several alleged violations existing
on a site owned by them, located in Venango Township, Butler County, Pennsylvania.
In August of 1984, DER served the defendants with a set of interrogatories
which were to be answered within thirty days of service, pursuant to Pa. Rule of
Civil Procedure 4006. When no answer to these interrogatories had been made by
February, 1985, counsel for DER moved for the imposition of sanctions against
defendants. Defendants did not respond to the DER motion and have never answered
the interrogatories. By an order dated April 5, 1985, the Board imposed sanctions
against the defendants, holding that all facts regarding which DER's interrogatories
had inquired were deemed to be established for the purposes of DER in this proceeding.
The order also provided that all allegations in defendants' answer to the DER
conmplaint and in the new matter were stricken to the extent they were inconsistent
with the facts established by the order. DER was ordered to file a statement of
the specific facts which it considered established by the sanctions imposed, a
list of the penalties which DER recommended in light of the established facts,

and a memorandum of law. DER has done so; defendants have not responded to DER's
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filings. The Board's order of April 5, 1985 provided that a failure to respond
might result in the Board's accepting DER's recommendations in full.
Count 1
Count I of the Complaint alleges a violation of 25 Pa.Code §102.31

which reads in relevant part:

§102.31. Permit requirements.

(a) Any person or municipality who engages in

an earthmoving activity within this Commonwealth

shall obtain a permit prior to commencement of

the activity; except a permit shall not be required

under the following circumstances:

(1) If the earthmoving activity involves
plowing or tilling for agricultural purposes.

(2) If an activity is required to obtain a
permit pursuant to the Clean Streams Law (35 P.S.
§§691.1 - 691.1001), the Surface Mining Conservation
and Reclamation Act (52 P.S. §§1396.1 - 1396.21),
the Water Obstruction Act (32 P.S. §§681 - 691) or
the provisions of Chapters 91 - 101 (relating to
water resources).

(3) If an earth-moving activity disturbs less
than 25 acres.

(4) If an activity inwvolving more than 25
acres is subdivided into parcels of less than 25
acres and earthmoving is undertaken on non—-contiguous
parcels and the parcels are stabilized before con-
tiguous parcels are disturbed.
DER alleges that defendants engaged in earthmoving activities without
a permit between June 1982 and March 1983. These activities allegedly were
conducted on approximately seventy acres of the defendants' site. Defendants
admitted in their answer that they had indeed engaged in earthmoving activities
on the site, but paragraph 8 of their answer asserts that the activities took

place on several sections of land, each section being less than 25 acres. Thus,

defendants would have us conclude that no permit was required under §102.31,
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since the activities would fall within the exception delineated by §102.31(a) (4).
Defendants have not specifically alleged, however, fhat the 25-acre parcels were
non~-contiguous or that the parcels were stabilized before contiguous parcels
were disturbed.

The DER interrogatory which is directed at the alleged violation of
25 Pa.Code §102.31 reads:

3. DESCRIBE the earthmoving activity referred
to in Paragraph 8 of the Answer, including:

(a) the total number of acres on which
earthmoving occurred,

(b) the size of each section,
(c) the location of each section,

(d) the dates earthmoving began and enaed
on each section,

(e) the nature of erosion and sedimentation
control measures implemented at each section and the
date each was implemented,

(f) the date each section was seeded,

(g) the type and amount of seed and mulch
used on each section,

(h) the germination rate of seed planted
on each section.

In its memorandum of law, DER contends that defendants' failure to
respond to this interrogatory has established that: 1) defendants affected an
area in excess of 25 acres, i.e., approximately 70 acres, 2) that these 70 acres
were contiguous, 3) that the earthmoving occurred between June 1982 and March
1983, and 4) that this earthmoving activity was not authorized by a permit.
Given the fact that DER's interrogatory referred specifically to paragraph 8 of
defendants' answer, and that defendants nonetheless did not respond tc the interrog-

atory, we consider it reasonable and appropriate to deem the aforesaid DER
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contentions established for the purpose of this civil penalty complaint. Taken
together, contentions 1) through 4) amount to a violation of 25 Pa.Code §102.31.

Count IT

Count II of the complaint alleges a violation of 25 Pa.Code §102.4,
which provides in pertinent part:
§102.4. General.

(a) All earthmoving activities within this
Commonwealth shall be conducted in such a way
as to prevent accelerated erosion and the
resulting sedimentation. To accomplish this,
except as provided in subsection (b) of this
section, any landowner, person, or municipality
engaged in earth-moving activities shall dewvelop,
implement, and maintain erosion and sedimentation
control measures which effectively minimize
accelerated erosion and sedimentation. These
erosion and sedimentation measures shall be set
forth in a plan as set forth in §102.5 of this
title (relating to erosion and sedimentation
control plan) and be available at all times at
the site of the activity. The Department or its
designee may, at its discretion, require this
plan to be filed with the Department or its
designee.

In particular, paragraph 12 of the complaint alleges that since June 1982 and
continuing to at least the time the camplaint was filed, defendants had not
prepared or had available on the site an adequate erosion and sedimentation
control plan. Defendants' Answer alleges that they had an erosion and sedimen-
tation control plan which was prepared at the direction of DER.

The DER interrogatories directed to this issue are Nos. 4-7. No.-4
is directed at establishing the facts necessary to make out a violation under
§102.4. The remaining interrogatories are directed more toward discovery of
the facts which defendants would establish in support of their contention that

there was an erosion and sedimentation control plan which had been prepared at
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the direction of DER personnel. We need focus only on No. 4 here, since if
the facts necessary to make out a violation of §102.4 have been established,
contrary allegations raised by defendants are deemed stricken (see our order
of April 5, 1985).
Interrogatory No. 4 provides:
4. DESCRIBE the erosion and sedimentation
control plan referred to in Paragraph 12 of the
Answer and Paragraph 35 of the New matter,
including:
(a) when the plan was prepared,
(b) the IDENTITY of the person(s) who
prepared the plan or assisted in its prep-
aration, ,
(c) the control measures to be imple-
mented at the K. International Site,
(d) when the plan was sukmitted to
the Department,
(e) when the plan was rejected,
(f) the reasons stated for the rejection.
In order to establish a violation under §102.4, there must be shown
a failure to develop, implement, and maintain an erosion and sedimentation control
plan. This plan is to be available on the site of the earthmoving activity at
all times. DER contends that defendants' failure to answer the interrogatories
directed to §102.4 establishes that no erosion and sedimentation plan has been
submitted to DER for this site since at least June, 1982 and that none has been
available on the site. (Pursuant to our ruling supra, regardingCount I, it already
is established that tfle earthmoving activities in question took place between
June, 1982 and March, 1983.) We concur with this contention, for reasons of the
sort given supra in connection with Count I and Interrogatory No. 3. Interrogatory
No. 4 inquires into the specific steps which would have been taken in the develop-

ment and implementation of an acceptable erosion and sedimentation control plan.

Defendants' failure to answer the interrogatory and their subsequent failure to
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respond to DER's memorandum of law, despite the threat of sanctions explicitly
stated in our April 5, 1985 order, now justifies a ruling that no erosion and
sedimentation plan was fornulated by defendants. Defendants are deemed to have
violated 25 Pa.Code §102.4.
Count III
Count III of the complaint alleges violations of 25 Pa.Code §§102.4,
102.11, 102.12, and 102.13. Section 102.4 is set forth above. Sections 102.12
and 102.13 are made applicable to defendants' earthmoving activities by virtue
of §102.11 which reads:
§102.11. General requirements.
The erosion and sedimentation control facilities
set forth in §§102.12 - 102.13 of this title (relating
to control measures and control facilities) shall be
appropriately incorporated into all earth-moving
activities unless the designer of the erosion and
sedimentation control plan shows that alteration
of these measures and facilities or inclusion of
other measures and facilities shall prevent acceler-—
ated erosion and sedimentation.
DER alleges that defendants have violated this regulatory provision in that they
have failed to comply with several of the requirements set forth in §§102.12 and
102.13. Interrogatories 7 — 19 are directed toward establishing violations of
various subsectionsof §§102.12 and 102.13. We see no need to reproduce these
interrogatories here. For reasons of the sort explained in connection with
Counts I and IT, at this stage of these proceedings we cannot but conclude that
the defendants' failure to answer interrogatories 7 — 19 has established the
facts into which these interrogatories inquired. More specifically, we herewith
deem established violations of §§102.12(b), 102.12(d), 102.12(e) and 102.12(g).

On the other hand, for reasons which follow, we cannot accept DER's

claim that defendants' failure to answer interrogatories has established violations
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of §102.12(f) and 102.13(d). DER's Interrogatory No. 14 reads:

14. DESCRIBE the ditches referred to in
Paragraph 20 of the Answer, including:

(a) the IDENTITY of the person(s) who
constructed them,

(b} when they were constructed,

(c) their dimensions,

(d) their locations,

(e) the cost to Defendants for their
construction. '

Section 102.12(f) merely provides that all runoff must be collected
and diverted to treatment facilities. It does not specifically require that
there be ditches employed for this purpose. Thus, taken alone, Interrogatory 14
does not suffice to delineate all relevant facts concerning a violation of
§102.12(f). Defendants' answer to DER's complaint denied a violation of §102.12(f)
only insofar as they claimed to have in place ditches satisfying the requirements
of §102.12(f). Thus, since Interrogatory No. 14 is directed solely at facts
concerning those ditches, we cammot hold that facts concerning the absence of
collection and diversion facilities have been established by virtue of defendants'
failure to respond to this interrogatory. A violation of §102.12(f) has not been
established at this stage of this proceeding.

In support of its contention that it should be deemed established that
defendants have violated §102.13(d), supra, DER relies upon its Interrogatory 17
which provides:

17. State the facts that support Defendants'
legal conclusion in Paragraph 22 of the Answer that
25 Pa. Code §102.13(d) did not apply to the K. Inter-

national Site prior to the waiver alleged in that
paragraph.

25 Pa. Code §102.13 reads:
§102.13. Control facilities.

* * *

(d) Sedimentation basins. The following shall
apply to sedimentation basins:
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(1) A sedimentation basin shall
have a capacity of 7,000 cubic feet for
each acre of project area tributary to
it and shall be provided with a 24-inch
freeboard.

(2) The basin shall be cleaned when
the storage capacity of the basin is
reduced to 5,000 cubic feet per acre of
project area tributary to it.

(3) Outlet structures shall be designed
to pass a minimum flow of two cubic feet
per second for each acre of project area
tributary to the basin.

(4) 'The discharge from a sedimentation
basin shall be to a natural waterway.

(5) Sedimentation basins shall be
structurally sound and protected from wn-—
authorized acts of third parties.

Defendants' Answer, paragraph 22, contends that "sedimentation basins
in this project were not required and, in fact, specifically were waived as a
means of erosion and sedimentation control by personnel of the plaintiff . . ."
[ER's Interrogatory 17 is directed at this allegation by the defendants; the
interrogatory does not request information bearing upon those facts necessary
to establish a violation of §102.13(d). Therefore, we cannot conclude that
such a violation is established by virtue of defendants' failure to respond to
this interrogatory.
Count V1
Count V of the complaint alleges a violation of §401 of the Clean
Streams Law, 35 P.S. §691.401, which states:
§691.401. Prohibition against other pollutions
It shall be unlawful for any person or munici-
pality to put or place into any of the waters of
the Commonwealth, or allow or permit to be discharged
from property owned or occupied by such person or

municipality into any of the waters of the Common-
wealth, any substance of any kind or character

1 The complaint does not contain a Count IV.
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resulting in pollution as herein defined.
Any such discharge is hereby declared to be
a nuisance.

1937, June 22, P.L. 1987, art. IV, §401l. As
amended 1970, July 31, P.L. 653, No. 222, §l4.

DER argues that defendants' failure to respond to Interrogatories
18 and 19 should result in a determination that the facts necessary to estab—
lish a violation of this provision have been established. In order to estab—
lish a violation of §401, there must be some basis upon which to rest a finding
that a pollutional discharge to waters of the Commonwealth has occurred. We

already have quoted Interrogatory 19. Interrogatory 18, like Interrogatory 19,

does not inquire about discharges, but rather is directed at obtaining information
concerning construction and design of treatment facilities and the manner of
removal of sediment from runoff. We cannot conclude that failure to answer
Interrogatories 18 and 19 results in a determination that defendants allowed or
permitted a pollutional discharge to the waters of the Commonwealth. Consequently,

such a violation has not been established at this stage of this proceeding.

ASSESSMENT OF PENALTIES

DER's complaint for civil penalties is based upon the authority granted
the Department under Section 605 of the Clean Streams Law, 35 P.S. §691.605.
Section 691.605(a) requires that the following factors be considered in determining
the amount of a civil penalty assessed pursuant to that statutory provision: willful-
ness of the violation, damage or injury to the waters of the Commonwealth or their
uses, oost of restoration, and "other relevant factors".

The Board cannot find anything in DER's interrogatories which inquires
into facts which might be taken to establish any of the additional factors delineated
in §691.605(a). The established facts are sufficient to determine that certain

violations have occurred, but the fact of violation is only the first step in
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determining how large a civil penalty properly may be assessed. We are
constrained by §691.605 to give consideration to other "relevant factors"

in determining the amount of the penalty. . Since we cannot determine from

the present record of tl:is matter whether any or all of these factors are
present here, we cannot at this time assess civil penalties for the violations
which we consider establishea under the terms of this opinion and the order

of April 5, 1985.

ORDER

WHEREFORE, this 7th day of August, 1985, it is ordered that in
further proceedings in this matter, including final adjudication, the defendants
will be deemed to have violated 25 Pa.Code §102.31, 25 Pa.Code §102.4, 25 Pa.Code
§102.12(b), §102.12(d), §102.12(e), §102.12(g), and (as a consequence of the
violations of §102.12) 25 Pa.Code §102.11.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

oA/ I

EDWARD GERJUOY -
Member

DATED: August 7, 1985

cc: Bureau of Litigation
For Appellants:
Thomas R. Ceraso, Esquire, Ceraso and Tarosky,
Greensburg, Pa.
For the Commonwealth:
Joseph K. Reinhart, Esquire, Pittsburgh, Pa.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

- ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD -

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
: (717) 787-3483 ’

GLENN COAI, COMPANY

" Docket Nos. 84-389-G a
- 84-390-G

_ (Issued August 9, 1985)

. ) Y. . .

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA -

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

OPTNION AND ORDER SUR MOTION TO DISMISS
= AND MOTTON FOR SANCTIONS

*SYNOPSIS

Action upon DER's Motion for Sanctions is deferred for the present.
The thion may be renewed at a future date. DER's Motion to Dismiss is
granted in part .and denlied in part. These appeals were filed in the name of
Gienn Coal Company. ‘ It subsequently having been revealed that Glemn Coal
- Company may not have authorized the filing of these appeals, the Board wés
requiréd to determine who the '. proper Appellants herein would be. ]j'espite doubts
ooncérning Glenn Coal _Conipany‘s intention of éppealing the bond forfeitures
at issue herein, the Board will not at this tﬁre dismiss the éppeals as to the
company. Counsel is directed tb_file affidavits and supporting documents con-
cerning his >authorization to répresent the cénpany, and concerning the company's
receipt of notice of £hese bond forfeitures. The appeal is dismissed as to one
of two individuals who counsel claims to be representing herein. fThis individual

did not sign a Notice of Appeal and his identity and relationship to this matter
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was not made clear until several months after the filing of the Notice of
Appeal. Consequently, this individual's appeal of the instant bond forfeitures
is untimely and must be dismissed pursuant to 25 Pa.Code §21.52. The other
individual w#iem counsel claims to be representing signed the initial Notices of
Appeal; therefore, the Board deems this individual to be a proper Appellant
herein. Henceforth, pending receipt of the aforementioned affidavits and
docurents from cowumsel, the Board deems this individual and Glenn Coal Company
to be the Appellants in this matter. In addition, counsel is directed to
provide the Board with documentation of the grounds upon which this individual

Appellant bases his standing.
OPINION

These appeals of several DER bond forfeitures were filed in November
of 1984. Each appeal was filed on the standard form furnished by the Board.
In paragraph 1 of the appeal form, headed "Complete Name, Address and Telephone
Number of Appellant," each appeal listed "Glenn Coal Company, Division of Champion
Coal Co., Inc. c/o Robert M. Hanak," with an address and telephone nurber. Under
the affirmation, "The information submitted is true and correct to the best of
my information and belief," each appeal was signed by Francis D. Marrazo, Jr.,
who was otherwise unidentified. In response to the form's statement: "If you
have authorized an attorney to represent you in this proceeding before the Board,"
please supply the attorney's name, address and telephone number, each appeal once
again listed Mr. Hanak, Esqg., with the same address and telephone number as
previously.

Shortly thereafter the Department of Environmental Resources ("DER")
served its first set of interrogatories in each appeal upon Glenn Coal Company,
c/o Mr. Hanak. Having received no response to said interrogatories within the
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thirty-day period prescribed by Pennsylvania Rule of Civil Procedure 4006, DER
moved for the imposition of sanctions, in accordance with Pa.R.C.P. 4019. In
response to this motion Mr. Hanak stated that the Appellant in these appeals

was not, in fact, Glenn Coal Company, as had been stated in each Notice of
Appeal filed by Mr. Hanak; rather, Mr. Hanak now stated, the Appellants were

two individuals, Francis Marrazzo and Robert Fleming, former stockholders and
owners of Glenn Coal. Mr. Hanak further stated that these individuals no longer
had any right, title, or interest in Glenn Coal Campany, and therefore that

Mr. Hanak was unable to respond to DER's discovery requests because the aforesaid
individuals did not possess the corporate records necessary to provide the infor-
mation requested. In addition, Mr. Hanak stated that "there has been no direct
appearance on behalf of Glenn Coal Company by any counsel."

Having received this response from Mr. Hanak, DER moved to dismiss
these appeals on the basis that the purported Appellant, Glenn Coal Company,
apparently does not intend to proceed with these appeals, whereas the two individ-
uals identified in the response to DER's Motion for Sanctions had not appealed
in their own right within the thirty-day time period prescribed by 25 Pa.Code
§21.52(a). Mr. Hanak has responded to the DER motion. His response is identified
as "Glenn Coal Company's Response to Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Motion To
Dismiss Appeal." The essence of his response is that Fleming and Marrazzo have
standing to appeal because they are "endorsed sureties" or "indemnifying parties"
on the bonds whose forfeitures are the subject of these appeals.

The first issue we are called upon to address is whether there are any
appellants before the Board. If we were to accept at face value Mr. Hanak's
claim that he was "at all times . . . acting as the attorney for Fleming and
Mazzarro in pursuing this appeal," we would have to infer that Glenn Coal Company
is not the proper Appellant herein. Despite the fact that Mr. Hanak signed
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several documents filed with the Board as “counsel for Appellan "_ and simul-
taneously identified the Appellaht as Glennl Coal Company, he now is asserting

that he acted without the consent of Glenn (oal Company in so doing. Consequently,
we cannot deem these appeals tc have been taken on behalf of Glenn Coal Company.
On the other hand, we are hesitant to wholly dismiss Glenn Coal Company as an
Appellant on the sole word of Mr. Hanak, whose past statements to the Board
scarcely have been accurate, to put it mildly. For the present, therefore, we
will retain Glenn Coal as an appellant in these appeals, pending our receipt of
the information called for in the acconpanying Order.

As for Mr. Fleming and Mr. Marrazzo, these appeals were filed in Novenber
of 1984. The Notice of Appeal forms filed with the Board at that time bear the
signature of Mr. Marrazzo and only Mr. Marrazzo. Mr. Fleming's relationship to
this bond forfeiture proceeding was first made apparent more than seven months
after the appeals were fi_led, long aftér Mr. Hanak claims to have begun acting
for Mr. Fleming in this matter. Appeals from DER actions must be filed with the
Board within thirty days of the date of notice of the DER action. Consequently,
the Board is without jurisdiction to hear an appeal brought on behalf of Mr. |
Fleming. However, the Board is willing to waive the technical deficiency that
Mr. Marrazzo's name appeared in the signature blank but not in the first portion
of the appeal form. Therefore we do deem these appeals to have been taken by
Mr. Marrazzo, a ruling we believe to be consistent with the precepts of 1 Pa.Code
§31.2. Henceforth these appeals will be captioned as follows:

Glenn Coal Company
and Francis D. Marrazzo, Jr.,
_Appellants
V.
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Department of Environmental Resources,
Appellee
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Of course, our present accepténce of this caption carries no implications
whatsoever ag to Glenn Coal's ultimate status as an appellant in these appeals,
aftter theA Board has had the opportunity to review the information the accompany-
dmg Ofder requests. Moreover, in accepting Mr. Marrozzo as an appellant for
the present, the Board reserves the riéht to dismiss Mr. Marrozzo's appeal if
Me. Marrazzo cannot establish his standing to appeal these bond forfeitures.
FiRaslly,' DER's Motion for the Imposition of Sanctions remains to be
addressed. Mr, Hanak failed to respond in any manner to the DER interrogatories
other than via his response to DER's Motion for Sanctions in which it was stated
that "Marrazzo and Fleming questién whether théy are legally obligated" to
respond to DER'S interrogatories. Tt is now clear that since Mr. Fleming is
not a party to this appeal, he is under no obligation to respond to said interrog-
atories. Mr. Mérrazzo, however, having been accepted as a party, does indeed
have an obligation to respond to inte_rxogatories directed to him. Given the
substantial conquion surrounding the status of this appeal during the past few
months, however, the Board will ﬁot at this tJ_me impose sanctions against Glenn
Coal or Mr. Marrazzo for failure to respond to the DER interrogatories in any
satisfactory Way. The Board will deem DER'S interrogatories—-previbusly served
upon Glenn Coal-—to have been served upon Mr. .Marrazzo as well. Mr. Marrazzo
shall respond to said intefrogatories in full compliance with the Pennsylvania
Rules of ‘Civil Procedure within thirty days of the date of the accompanying Order.
The Board emphasizes that under these Rules Mr. Marrozzo must answer or object to

‘each interrogatory propounded by DER. Pa.R.C.P. Rule 4006 (a) (2).
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WHEREFORE, this 9th day of August, 1985, it is ordered that:

1. DER's Motions to dismiss these appeals and for sanctions are
rejected for the present, but may be renewed at scme future time upon good
cause shown.

2. Francis D. Marrazzo, Jr. is accepted as an appellant in these
appeals, which henceforth are to be recaptioned as indicated in the accompany-
ing Opinion.

3. Robert Fleming is not an appellant in either of the above-captioned
appeals.

4. Within thirty days of the date of this Order, Mr. Marrazzo is to
respond to the interrogatories previously served upon Glemn Coal c/o Mr. Hanak.

5. Within twenty days of the date of this Order, Mr. Hanak is to file
affidavits with the Board, accompanied by suitable supporting documents, which
will respond to the following questions:

a. Has Mr. Hanak ever represented Glenn Coal?

b. To Mr. Hanak's best knowledge and belief, did Glenn Coal
have any reason to believe that Mr. Hanak's filing of these appeals was done
in Glenn Coal's name, and satisfied the thirty-day requirement for Glenn Coal's
filing of such appeals?

c. How and when did these forfeitures of Glenn Coal's bonds
first come to Mr. Hanak's attention?

d. Does Mr. Hanak have any reason to believe that Glenn Coal
received notice of these bond forfeitures, and if so when?

e. Why does Mr. Marrazzo have standing to appeal these bond

forfeitures? This question must be answered very precisely, with reference to
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the language of bonds or other instruments, and including legal citations that

would establish standing under the facts of these appeals.
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

WZLM

EHVARD GERJUOY ¢

DATED: August 9, 1985
cc: Bureau of Litigation

Robert M. Hanak, Esquire
Joseph K. Reinhart, Esquire
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNS YLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

RUSSELL W. JOKI

" Docket Nos. 85-137-G
T © 85-138-G

Issued August 12, 1985
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR MOTTON FOR SANCTIONS

' 'S-Y.NOPSIS
Appellant has féiled to respond to a reﬁzuest for productionAof c']ocuments.
served upon him by the Department pursuant to.Pennsylvania Rule of Civil Procedure
4009. PAppellant also has not responded to the DER motion for sanctions. There-
fore, Appellant is ordered to pemit the inspeqtion of said documehts within
twenty days. Failure to comply with this order will result in PAppellant's being
precluded from introducing any evidence relatj_ng to the content of said docﬁments

at the hearing on the merits of this appeal, if and when held.

OPINION

The Department of Environmental Resources ("DER") has moved this Board
to impose sanctions against Appellant for failure to respond to DER's discovery

requests. The motion was filed in June of 1985. Subsequent to the filing of
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the motion, during the period allocated for the Appellant's response thereto,
Appellant partially complied with the DFR discovery request. Specifically,
Appellant filed answers to DER's first set of interrogatories. Accordingly, DER
withdrew that portion of its motion which sought sanctions on the basis that
Appellant had not responded to the first set of interrogatories within the
thirty-day period prescribed by Pa.R.C.P. 4006. DER, however, has ocontinued to
press for the imposition of sanctions against Appellant for Appellant's failure
to permit the inspection of documents, as requested by DER at the time it served
its first set of interrogatories upon Appellant. DER maintains that no response
to its request has been made. Appellant has not responded to the DER motion.
DER's request for production of documents in toto consists of the

following:

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department

of Environmental Resources ("DER") by its

attorney, hereby requests the right to inspect

and copy documents identified below pursuant

to Pa.R.C.P. 4009 and 25 Pa.Code §21.111 at

a time and place mutually satisfactory to the

parties.

1. All documents identified in the answers to

the attached DER interrogatories.

2. All documents used to prepare Russell W.

Joki's Notice of Appeal.

3. All documents used to prepare Russell W.

Joki's Application for Special Reclamation

Project No. 689, Mine Drainage Permit No. 63800106

and Mining Permits Nos. 102102-63800106-01-0 and
102102-63800101-01-1.

Pennsylvania Rule of Civil Procedure 4009 authorizes any party to serve
a request for production of documents on any other party at any time, without
leave of court, after commencement of the action. Rule 4009(b) (2) provides:
The party upon whom the request is served shall

serve a written response within thirty days after
the service of the request. . . The response shall
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state, with respect to each item or

category, that inspection and related

activities will be permitted as requested,

unless the request is objected to, in

which event the reasons for objection

shall be stated.
Appellant has neither responded to the DER request nor objected to its content.
In connection with his answers to DER's first set of interrogatories, Appellant
provided copies of certain documents identified in the answers to the interrog-
atories. Thus, the first paragraph of DER's request for production of documents
in fact may be moot. However, without more on the record the Board will not
so rule. It is Appellant's responsibility to explain to the Board why sanctions
should not be inmposed against him by, e.g., filing a response to the DER motion.
Moreover, at this late date, the Board no longer will permit the Appellant to

file objections.

ORDER
WHEREFORE, this 12th day of August, 1985, it is ordered that Appellant
shall provide DER with an opportunity to J'_nspect the documents identified in DER's
request for production of documents within twenty (20) days of this date. Failure
to comply with this order will preclude Appellant from presenting any evidence
relating to the content of said documents at the hearing on the merits if and

when held.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARTING BOARD

EDWARD GERJUOY
Member

DATED: August 12, 1985

cc: Bureau of Litigation
Robert O. Lampl, Esquire
David Fleming Taylor, Esquire
Richard S. Ehmann, Esquire




COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

* 221 NORTH SECOND STREET
THIRD FLOOR
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17101
(717) 787-3483

KISKI AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

'Docket No. 85-074-G

" Issued: August 15, 1985

=

' COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

OPINION AND ORDER

SYNOPSIS |
This appeal of a denial of an application for funding under Act 339,

35 P.S. §701, is dismissed. The applicatiQn was not submitted by the January 31

deadline set forth in Section 3 of the Act, 35 P.S. §703, and 25 Pa.Code §103.123(a).

Failure to timely sukmit the Act 339 application is a valid basis for denial of

the application.

OPINION _

This éppeal concerns a denial by' the Pennsylvania Department of Environ-
mental Resources ( "bER") of an application submitted by 'the Washington Township
School Buildj_ng Authofitj ("Authoi*ity“) for "Act 339" funding. DER denied the

application in a letter dated February 12,- 1985, on the basis that the application
| had not been timely submitted. DER has now filed a motion to dismiss this appeal,

on the basis that the untimely filing was per se a valid reason for DER to deny

~668~




the application. 2Appellant has not responded to the DER motion. The essential
facts here are not disputed, however.

"Act 339", 35 P.S. §§701 et seq., authorizes the Commonwealth to reimburse
mmicipalities, mmicipal authorities, and school di